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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

I am pleased to present the 2024 annual results of Xingfa Aluminium
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”, “the Company”, or “Xingfa Aluminium”).

In the past year of 2024, the real estate market in the PRC gradually
showed signs of marginal stabilization under the continuous impact
of policies. Despite certain challenges faced by the market, as
one of China’s leading manufacturers of aluminium profiles, the
Group, under the right leadership of the board of directors, had
established strong market competitiveness through flexible business
strategies and solid research and development capabilities, achieving
steady performance growth. In terms of the international market,
with the complexity and volatility of the current international
trade situation, the Group adopted a more prudent attitude when
developing overseas business, and enhanced research on trade
policies and market dynamics to address risks such as trade frictions
and exchange rate fluctuations, thus ensuring steady growth of its
overseas business.

As a leading supplier of aluminium profiles in China, the Group
integrated brand building into the construction of a modern
industrial system, consistently striving to strengthen and refine
its service brand, continuously enhancing and improving brand
management systems, and formulating a long-term brand
development strategy. The Group achieved outstanding results in
brand building, winning numerous high-quality landmark projects
at home and abroad with its excellent reputation and services, and
its products had been applied in landmark construction such as the
Shanghai Jiushi International Equestrian Center (/A EHEFH
fiTFALy), Hangzhou Grand Convention and Exhibition Center, and
Shenzhen Qianhai Financial Holdings Building CRINETESIEKE) .
The Group also continued to deepen its cooperative relationships
with real estate developers with good cash flow conditions to reduce
the Group’s financial risks and maintain healthy cash flow, so as to
sustain operational resilience amid market fluctuations. Meanwhile,
the Group actively expanded its business scope, including expanding
into the home decoration market, strengthening cooperation
with the government on public facility projects, and accelerating
the expansion of retail business to improve the level of business
diversification and further enhance the Group’s brand influence.
Moreover, the Group placed great emphasis on digitalization
and automation upgrades to enhance production efficiency, and
was actively increasing production capacity in overseas by setting
up production bases, establishing professional sales teams, and
building overseas sales networks to improve competitiveness in
overseas markets. Through a series of efforts, the Group further
consolidated its leading position in the aluminium profiles industry
and was moving towards a higher quality, more resilient, and more
sustainable development direction.
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In 2024, the Group continued to achieve steady growth in
performance. Revenue increased by 8.7% year-on-year to
approximately RMB18,854.6 million (2023: RMB17,352.6 million),
and sales volume increased by 6.8% year-on-year to 809,312 tonnes
(2023: 757,480 tonnes). Among them, the sales of construction
aluminium profiles and industrial aluminium profiles accounted
for 88.2% and 10.2% of the revenue respectively. During the
year, gross profit was approximately RMB1,763.7 million (2023:
RMB1,990.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.4%.
Profit attributable to shareholders increased by 2.7% year-on-year
to approximately RMB826 million (2023: RMB804.2 million). Despite
the increasing competition in the market and the impact on gross
margin during the year, the Group successfully overcame market
pressure through effective cost control and production efficiency,
achieving growth in profit attributable to shareholders.

Despite the numerous uncertainties in the macro environment,
the Group has demonstrated strong intrinsic resilience by relying
on continuous investment in research and development, advanced
production processes, and ever-improving management quality and
business standards. The Group has cumulatively participated in the
formulation of more than 100 national and industry standards and
held more than 900 valid patents. In terms of products, the Group
continued to focus on innovation in aluminium profile products,
striving to enhance the adaptability of products in various scenarios
such as construction and industry. In terms of the market, the Group
has accelerated its expansion into the home decoration and overseas
markets, developing lightweight and high value-added products to
meet the diversified demands of downstream sectors.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

In terms of business development, the Group has actively strived
for China’s dual carbon target, consistently adhered to the dual-
engine development model of “construction profiles + industrial
profiles”, and continued to promote digital intelligence and green
production. The Group continued to promote digital transformation,
with the Zhejiang digital base as a pilot, through digitalization and
automation upgrade, production efficiency has been significantly
improved. Currently, the first phase of the project has been fully put
into operation. At the same time, the Group's overseas projects are
steadily being implemented, with the construction of production
bases in Australia and Vietnam accelerating, and the global business
layout is gradually improving. The Group believes that the domestic
and overseas markets are expected to form a strong synergy, jointly
driving the development of the Group.

Looking ahead, we are still optimistic about China’s aluminium
profile industry. The policy support effect of the real estate market
will be gradually released, and with the continuous advancement
of green building construction, urban village renewal projects, and
supporting policies for “Three Major Projects”, the demand for
construction aluminium profiles will be sustained in the long term. In
terms of industrial aluminium profiles, the vigorous development in
high-end manufacturing sectors such as the new energy revolution,
photovoltaics, and communications will continue to drive the
diversification and advancement of aluminium profile applications.
The aluminium profile industry, as a large-scale stock market, is still
full of development opportunities. The Group places great emphasis
on product innovation and green development, and is expected to
seize more market opportunities in future developments.
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Finally, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express my
heartfelt thanks to all shareholders and customers for their support.
In the future, Xingfa Aluminium will continue to uphold its original
aspiration, fully promote the high-quality development of the Group,
and strive courageously towards the grand goal of becoming a
global leader in the aluminium profile industry, continuously creating
substantial and stable long-term value returns for shareholders.
Thank you.

Wang Li
Chairman

Foshan, China, 26 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WKk

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Industry Review

According to the data of the National Bureau of Statistics (“NBS"),
the PRC's Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) reached RMB134.9084
trillion in 2024, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.0%
at constant prices. Generally, in the face of complex and severe
situations such as increased external pressures and growing internal
difficulties throughout 2024, the national economic operated steadily
with steady progress. New advancements were made in high-
quality development, particularly with the timely deployment and
introduction of a package of incremental policies, which effectively
boosted social confidence and contributed to a significant economic
rebound, successfully achieving the major objectives and tasks of
economic and social development. For the real estate market, from
the perspective of the whole year of 2024, although real estate
sales continued the downward trend since 2022, the stabilization
and recovery of the real estate market began to take effect driven
by a series of regulatory policy combinations, and showed a
marginal stabilization trend on a quarterly basis. In 2024, the central
government continuously upgraded real estate stabilization policies,
insisted on the principle of “optimization of existing stock and
strict control of increment” to stabilize the real estate market from
both the supply and demand sides. In particular, since the meeting
of the Political Bureau held in September, multiple positive signals
have shown in the real estate market. There has been a recovery
in the housing demand from residents since October, and the real
estate market has been on a stable and positive trend at this stage.
In 2025, it is expected that the real estate market will undergo
continuous recovery with the gradual implementation of a series of
favorable real estate policies. According to the data of the NBS, the
sales area of newly built commercial housing nationwide in 2024
was 973.85 million square meters, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 12.9%. The amount of sales of newly built commercial
housing nationwide was RMB9,675 billion, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 17.1%. In the face of industry fluctuations
and uncertainties, Xingfa Aluminium, as a major manufacturer and
supplier of construction aluminum profiles in the PRC, adopted a
proactive business attitude, flexibly adjusted its business principles,
reinforced its cooperation with real estate developers with healthy
cash flow conditions, as well as actively expanded its business scope,
effectively resisted market risks, so as to maintain the Group’s market
competitiveness and profitability through the diversified development
of the aluminium profile business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profile
manufacturers in the PRC and is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles. As of 31 December
2024, the Group had a total of 960 valid patents, including 127
invention patents, 319 utility model patents, 514 design patents,
and participated in the drafting of approximately 113 national and
industrial standards. In this year, the Group ranked first among
the top 10 in the “2024 Top 500 Preferred Suppliers in terms of
Comprehensive Strengths in Real Estate Supply Chain e Aluminium
Category” and top 3 in the “2024 Top 500 Preferred Suppliers in
terms of Comprehensive Strengths in Real Estate Supply Chain e
Window System Category”. The Group was honoured with the
titles of “2024 Benchmark of Investment Value of China Real Estate
Suppliers” and was successfully included in the “5A Supplier”
enterprise database of the China Real Estate Association Supply
Chain Big Data Center. The Group’s brand is highly recognized in the
market.

In 2024, the national economy showed a stable and progressive
momentum, and the real estate market underwent continuous
recovery under policy-driven measures, currently in the stage of
recovery and stabilization. In a challenging business environment,
the Group embraced the difficulties and still adhered to the mission
of “Pursuing Excellence in Quality, Serving Global Customers”. With
the unremitting efforts of all members of the Group, advantages on
product technology and outstanding quality, the Group continued
to consolidate its good brand image and market reputation in the
industry.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2024, the Group
achieved revenue of RMB18,854.6 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 8.7% compared to RMB17,352.6 million in 2023.
The sales volume was 809,312 tonnes, representing a year-on-
year increase of 6.8% compared to 757,480 tonnes in 2023. The
net profit attributable to shareholders of the Group was RMB826.0
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.7% compared to
RMB804.2 million in 2023. Although the market competition was
intense, the Group had fully demonstrated the inherent resilience of
its business model, and improved its profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WKk

In terms of business development, the Group, as one of the earliest
enterprises to manufacture aluminium profiles in Mainland China,
specialises in the production of construction aluminium profiles and
industrial aluminium profiles. In terms of construction aluminium
profiles, the Group will continue to consolidate its market share and
enhance its profitability. In 2024, sales revenue from construction
aluminium profiles was RMB16,621.2 million (RMB14,121.8 million
in the corresponding period of 2023), representing a year-on-
year increase of 17.7%. Confronted with the increasing overall
volatility in the construction market and pressure on order volumes,
as well as the uncertain business environment, the Group adopted
a prudent business strategy, which proactively chose to establish
partnerships with central-government-controlled enterprises, state-
owned enterprises, and real estate developers with good reputations,
strong financial positions, and healthy cash flows, to reduce financial
risks, so as to ensure the Group possessed healthy cash flow for
stable operations and enhanced the certainty of its performance.
At the same time, the Group flexibly responded to market changes,
promptly adjusted strategic direction, deeply explored and expanded
the home decoration market. Compared to the construction
market, although the home decoration market was also affected
by the macroeconomic environment and the real estate market, its
demand was closely related to factors such as demographic structure
and consumption concept, resulting in relatively stable market
performance and certain counter-cyclical characteristics during
economic downturns. In addition, the customer base in the home
decoration market was broader, which was conducive to expanding
the Group's market coverage, enhancing its brand influence, and
further increasing market share and profitability. The Group believes
that by expanding the home decoration market, it can bring the
Group closer to the end market to gain an in-depth understanding of
users’ needs. Moreover, the coordination between the construction
market and the home decoration market can help the Group
diversify operational risks and seek steady growth.

To vigorously boost consumption and lead the development of new
quality productivity through technological innovation, the National
Development and Reform Commission and the Ministry of Finance
issued the “Notice on Expanding the Implementation of Large-scale
Equipment Renewal and Consumer Goods Trade-in Policy by 2025",
which clearly specified the expansion of support for consumer goods
trade-in and actively supported innovation in consumer goods for
home decoration. The Group believes that a series of policies to
promote consumption will bring new development opportunities to
the home decoration market and the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In addition, in response to the call for national infrastructure
construction and improvement of people’s livelihood, and to explore
commercial opportunities outside the commercial housing market,
the Group continuously reinforced cooperation with the government
on public facility projects such as stadiums, schools, hospitals,
roads and bridges. The public facility projects not only provided
performance growth opportunities to the Group, but also had a
higher social value, thus enhancing the Group’s social reputation.
In addition, the Group accelerated the pace of expanding its retail
business, continuously improved and enriched the product lines of
home doors and windows. We enhanced the market penetration
through the provision of door and window products that targeted
at the household market, expanded the brand’s influence at the
retail level, and made the retail business and engineering business
complement each other, jointly enhancing the Group’s brand
awareness.

Apart from the construction aluminium profile business, the Group
also continued to develop the industrial aluminium profile business.
Industrial aluminium profiles are widely used in various industries
such as new energy photovoltaics, automotive parts, durable
consumer goods, medical devices, electromechanical equipment,
aerospace, electronic consumer goods, and transportation, with
good development prospects. In 2024, sales revenue from industrial
aluminium profiles was RMB1,914.5 million (RMB2,642.8 million
in the corresponding period of 2023), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 27.6%. To better capture market opportunities,
the Group's research and development team will continue to
strengthen the research and development of industrial aluminium
profile products, so as to seek to develop new products with
better performance, continuously leverage the market competitive
advantage accumulated through research and development, and
achieve diversified business development.
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Despite the challenging market in the short term, with years of
industry experience and excellent product quality, the Group has
established a good brand reputation in the market and has built
long-term stable cooperation with customers. The Group flexibly
adjusted its business strategies to adapt to market trends and
continuously strove for orders to drive the Group’s long-term
sustainable development. Therefore, the Group actively enhanced
its production capacity to capture market opportunities. Currently,
the Group has 7 production bases domestically and continuously
improves the capacity layout to enhance production efficiency. In
addition, the Group attaches great importance to digitalization and
automation upgrades in the production process. The Group’s digital
and automated production base located in Zhejiang can reduce
the land use scale and personnel cost, allowing for more effective
use of land. Currently, the first phase of such production base
has commenced its production with output gradually increasing
with scale of business. The Group will align with the trend of
digital transformation to enhance the quality and efficiency of the
production process.

In terms of overseas business, the Group actively increased
production capacity to enhance competitiveness in overseas markets
such as Australia and Southeast Asia. In 2024, the equipment
installation of the plant of the Group's project in Australia was
officially launched, with a project planned capacity of 20,000 tonnes.
The project in Vietnam was also underway in an orderly manner,
and commenced the application process for the construction of the
plant in the second half of 2024, with a project planned capacity of
180,000 tonnes. The Group believes that establishing professional
sales teams in overseas and building overseas sales networks will
effectively intensify the cooperation relationship with overseas
customers. The Group is committed to realising the “zero-distance
strategy” of local production, local users, and local services so as
to provide higher quality and more efficient services to overseas
customers, which will not only help expand the Group’s business
footprint in the global market, but also further consolidate the
Group's industry position, propelling the Group to become a well-
positioned pioneer in this industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue and sales
volume of the Group increased by 8.7% and 6.5% to approximately
RMB18,854.6 million and 809,312 tonnes respectively (2023:
RMB17,352.6 million and 757,480 tonnes respectively), of which the
sales of construction aluminium profiles and industrial aluminium
profiles accounted for 88.2% and 10.2% of the revenue respectively.
The gross profit of the Group for the Year decreased by 11.4%
year-on-year to approximately RMB1,763.7 million. The gross profit
margin decreased to 9.4% (2023: 11.5%), and such decrease was
mainly due to the intensified market competition during the Year.
During the Year, the profit attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately RMB826.0 million, representing an increase of
2.7% year-on-year.

Construction aluminium profiles

Construction aluminium profiles are surface treated aluminium
profiles mainly used for the construction and installation of doors
and windows, curtain walls, ceilings and blinds and other decorative
products.

In 2024, the revenue of construction aluminium profiles increased by
17.7% year on year to approximately RMB16,621.2 million (2023:
RMB14,121.8 million), and sales volume grew by 8.1% year on year
to approximately 672,915 tonnes (2023: 622,678 tonnes).

Industrial aluminium profiles

Industrial aluminium profiles are mainly plain aluminium profiles,
which can be used as container frames and other products such
as new conductive profiles of urban railway locomotives and ship
components. In addition, they can also be made into different forms
and shapes, such as heat sinks of central processing units (CPUs) and
displays and frames of consumer electronic products.

The revenue of industrial aluminium profiles decreased by
27.6% year-on-year to approximately RMB1,914.5 million (2023:
RMB2,642.8 million) in 2024 while sales volume increased by 8.1%
year-on-year to approximately 136,397 tonnes (2023: 126,171
tonnes).
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PROSPECT

Looking ahead to 2025, the real estate industry is expected to
remain subdued. However, as policies serve as an important driving
factor for the fluctuations in the real estate cycle, with the Central
Economic Work Conference focusing on “stabilizing the property
market”, as well as a series of central and local policies in the future,
the PRC’s real estate market is expected to halt its downward trend
and gradually stabilize. Nevertheless, the extent of overall market
recovery and the pace of rebound depend on the strength of policies
for economic stabilization and de-stocking, a cautious approach is
still needed. In terms of aluminium profile industry, although the
industry may show marginal adjustment trend in the short term,
it is expected that with the advancement of global urbanization
and the acceleration of infrastructure construction, particularly
the promotion of green and energy-saving buildings, as well as
the rapid development of new energy, photovoltaic, and aviation
and aerospace sectors, the market demand for aluminum profiles
may continuously increase due to its excellent thermal insulation
and energy-saving performance. From a medium to long-term
perspective, the application of aluminium profiles will become more
diverse, with increasing focus on technological innovation and green
development. The aluminum profile industry, as a huge stock market,
is still full of development opportunities. The Group maintains a
cautiously optimistic attitude toward the aluminium profile industry
and its own development.

The Group firmly believes that opportunities are embedded within
challenges. In face of multiple market challenges, all employees of
the Group will work together, firmly believe in our mission, and
consistently uphold the core values of “Customer First, Quality
Foremost, Innovation Leading, Ingenious Craftsmanship”. We will
continuously develop products that meet market demands, while
vigorously expanding the market to achieve diversification in the
business model for the aluminium profile industry. In terms of
construction aluminium profiles, the Group will continue to reinforce
cooperation with market partners who have healthy cash flow
condition, and actively explore the potential of the home decoration
market and public facility projects, as well as accelerate the layout
of the retail market that can precisely reach consumers. In the field
of industrial aluminium profiles, the Group will also continue to
develop aluminium products that are highly resilient, lightweight,
and have high added value, striving to gain a competitive advantage
in such market with a wide range of applications, and to build the
industrial aluminum profiles business into a growth engine beyond
the construction segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In addition, to fully seize the market opportunities brought by the
intensifying of global trade, the Group will make every effort to
promote capacity expansion and overseas deployment to further
improve the domestic and overseas sales and production networks.
Domestically, the Group owned 7 production bases, among which,
the production base located in Zhejiang improved its production
efficiency through digital and automated technologies. With regard
to overseas, the project in Australia and the project in Vietnam
were underway in a smooth manner. Upon completion and put
into production, these projects will further improve the Group's
overseas sales layout. By then, in terms of production and sales, both
domestic and overseas are expected to form strong synergies to
jointly enhance the Group’s industry position and brand awareness
globally.

Since its establishment, the Group has upheld a spirit of seeking
progress and relentlessly pursued innovation and breakthroughs
with the help and support of customers, suppliers, and various
business partners. In the current challenging market environment,
the Group has always maintained a proactive stance. We deeply
understand that challenges and opportunities coexist, and only
through continuous self-innovation and market adaptation can
we maintain a competitive advantage in the wave of competition.
Looking ahead, the Group will continue to respond to changes in
market with flexible marketing strategies, provide powerful and cost-
effective products and services to customers nationwide to satisfy
the customers’ growing demand for products, at the same time, the
Group will realise sustainable growth, so as to continuously create
returns for the shareholders of the Group.

In the long run, the Group remains optimistic about the medium
and long-term development of the aluminium profile industry.
The aluminium profile industry, as a huge stock market, is full of
development opportunities, even though the industry is facing
increasing pressure in the short run. As a major participant in the
PRC's aluminium profile industry, Xingfa Aluminium is confident to
increase its market share and lay a solid foundation for sustainable
development in the medium and long run.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue and sales volume of the Group for the Year increased
by 8.7% and 6.8% year-on-year to approximately RMB18,854.6
million and 809,312 tonnes respectively (2023: RMB17,352.6 million
and 757,480 tonnes respectively). The growth of revenue was
attributable to the increase in sales orders during the Year.

The sales volume of construction aluminium profiles and industrial
aluminium profiles for the Year both increased by 8.1% to
approximately 672,915 tonnes (2023: 622,678 tonnes) and 136,397
tonnes (2023: 126,171 tonnes) respectively.

The following table sets forth the details of our revenue by reportable
segments for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Manufacturing and sale of aluminium profiles 4 E K& $5 & 87 1
— Construction aluminium profiles —EEEIRAUM

— Industrial aluminium profiles — T ZRAM

All other segments Fr B H A5 &R
Total @t

Note:  Our Group's revenue from all other segments represented revenue generated
from processing service contracts related to aluminium products, sale of
aluminium panels, aluminium alloy, moulds and spare parts, and sale of office

premises and residential properties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group for the Year decreased by 11.4% year-
on-year to approximately RMB1,763.7 million (2023: RMB1,990.2
million).

The overall gross profit margin for the Year of the Group decreased
by 2.1% to 9.4% (2023: 11.5%), and the sales to production ratio
decreased slightly to 98.8% (2023: 99.5%).

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our
aluminium profiles in 2024 and 2023:

Construction aluminium profiles FEEESRAUM
Industrial aluminium profiles T ZERAM

The gross profit margin of construction aluminium profiles and
industrial aluminium profiles decreased to 9.3% and 3.8% for the
Year respectively as compared to that of 2023. The decrease in gross
profit margin of construction aluminium and industrial aluminium
was mainly due to the intensified competitive market.

Other income

Other income of the Group for the Year increased to approximately
RMB200.9 million (2023: RMB193.7 million), which was mainly
attributable to the combined effect of the increase from income from
additional value-added tax input deduction, offset by the decrease in
interest income for the Year.

Distribution costs

The distribution costs of the Group for the Year increased by 6.8%
to approximately RMB399.4 million (2023: RMB374.1 million), which
accounted for 2.1% of the revenue (2023: 2.2%). The increase was
mainly due to the general increase in transportation costs and agent
fee.
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Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the Year increased by
2.0% to approximately RMB447.9 million (2023: RMB439.3 million),
which accounted for 2.4% of the revenue (2023: 2.5%). The
increase was mainly due to the general increase in staff costs.

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The impairment loss on trade and other receivables of the Group for
the Year decreased by RMB225.3 million to RMB67.9 million (2023:
RMB293.2 million), which was mainly attributable to the decrease
of RMB225.3 million in loss allowances provided for the credit-
impaired trade receivables. Such loss allowances were provided for
after considering the recoverability of trade receivables due from
certain property sub-contractors as a result of adverse circumstance
in construction aluminium profile industry.

Finance costs

Despite of the increase in the level of bank borrowings, finance
costs remained stable at approximately RMB104.6 million for the
Year (2023: RMB138.1 million) which is due to the decrease in the
average interest rate of bank borrowings.

Profit for the Year and net profit margin

The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
("Shareholders”) for the Year increased by 2.7% year-on-year
to approximately RMB826.0 million (2023: RMB804.2 million).
The increase was mainly attributable to decrease in provision of
impairment loss on trade and other receivables in the Year and
increase in sales orders of the Group in the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out our Group’s current and quick ratios as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Current ratio (Note i) b

Quick ratio (Note ii) R

it R (ff i)
Bt = (B i)
Notes:

(i) Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total
current liabilities at the end of the year.

(ii) Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total current
assets and the inventories divided by the total current liabilities at the end of
the year.

Both ratios as at 31 December 2024 decreased as compared to those
as at 31 December 2023. Such decreases were mainly due to the
increase in current liabilities as a result of an increase in trade and
other payables and bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2024.

Gearing ratio

The following table sets out our Group’s gearing ratio as at 31
December 2024 and 2023:

Gearing ratio (Note) BELE (M)

Note:  Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings divided by total

assets and multiplied by 100%.

The gearing ratio decreased for the Year as compared to that of
2023 which was mainly due to the decrease in the balances of loans
and borrowings as at 31 December 2024.
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Inventory turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s inventory turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

77 12 4 EA (A1 32)

Inventory turnover days (Note)

Note:  Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning
and ending inventory balance before provision for the periods divided by the
total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

Inventory turnover days for the Year remained stable as compared
to that for 2023 due to enhanced arrangement on production plans,
leading to a stable inventory backlog and inventory turnover days for
the Year.

Debtors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s debtors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

e R SRR AR (A i)

Debtors’ turnover days (Note)

Note:  Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning
and ending balance of trade and bills receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) for the periods divided by revenue during the years multiplied by 365
days.

The debtors’ turnover days decreased for the Year as compared to

that of 2023. This was mainly because the Group tightened credit
period to its debtors generally during the Year.
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Creditors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s creditors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Creditors’ turnover days (Note) FE BR R BRHA (A7 2)

Note:  Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning

and ending balance of trade and bills payables for the periods divided by the
total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The creditors’ turnover days for the Year increased as compared to
that of 2023. This was a result of Group’s bargaining strategy with
its suppliers to maintain the payment period in order to maintain a
competitive purchase costs.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s loans and borrowings
dominated in RMB amounted to approximately RMB2,877.4 million
(31 December 2023: RMB3,147.5 million), of which approximately
RMB564.8 million were fixed rate borrowings (31 December 2023:
RMB1,146.6 million).

Save for typically lower borrowing requirements in the first quarter of
the Year due to holidays during the Chinese Lunar New Year, there
was no seasonality in the Group’s bank borrowing requirements.

Banking facilities and guarantee

As at 31 December 2024, the banking facilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB14,231.2 million (31 December
2023: RMB14,176.2 million), of which approximately RMB6,420.1
million were utilised (31 December 2023: RMB4,509.0 million).

No banking facilities were guaranteed by related parties of the
Group.
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Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights. During the Year, our Group’s capital
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB955.8 million (2023:
RMB980.9 million). The increase in capital expenditure during the
Year was mainly due to the acquisition of equipment and land use
rights for our production plants.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 420,649,134 ordinary
shares of HKD0.01 each in issue. During the Year, no share of the
Company was issued.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group'’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserve of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in both short term and long term.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in the United States (“US") dollars and Hong Kong
("HK") dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade
payables, bank balances and bank loans are denominated in US
dollars and HK dollars, therefore exposing the Group to the currency
risk of US dollars and HK dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CASH FLOW HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets out our Group’s cash flow highlights during
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

BEEE I wR D

BERERNE

TREBIAEBRBE_ S _MFR_T_=
Ft-A=T-"HBLFEZRSRERE:

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETFT

Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBFREHReFE 1,415,490 1,466,607
Interest received 2 F B 46,070 63,220
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE BERSEZHR

plant and equipment (955,826) (980,917)
Interest paid SATF R (128,217) (146,135)
Net (decrease)/increase in bank borrowings RITIERE ) S FEE (270,141) 648,486
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BRNANTHEE AZRKE (245,629) (141,047)

We generally finance our operations through internally generated
cash flows and bank borrowings. Our Directors believe that on a
long-term basis, our liquidity will be funded from operations and, if
necessary, additional equity financing or bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB2,726.1 million (31 December 2023: RMB2,840.4 million),
among which 1.8% was held in US dollars, 1.5% was held in HK
dollars and the remaining balance was held in RMB.
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SALE OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES
(i) Xingfa Plaza

“Xingfa Plaza” (#2135 X /&), a property project wholly-owned
by the Group, is located at the northern side of Jihua Road
and western side of Changang Road, Chancheng District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The land use
rights of the property were granted for a term of 40 years
expiring on 19 May 2050 for commercial service, office,
culture and entertainment uses. The property comprises a
parcel of land with a site area of approximately 16,961.36
sq.m. and a gross floor area of approximately 123,527.29
sq.m..

During the Year, no unit of “Xingfa Plaza” (# % X&)
had been sold and delivered. There was revenue of RMB3.7
million recognized from the sale of completed properties for
the Year (2023: RMB8.1 million). As at 31 December 2024,
approximately 40.3% of the saleable floor area have been
delivered to the customers.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, our Group employed a total of
approximately 10,035 full time employees in the PRC and Hong
Kong which included management staff, technicians, salespersons
and workers. In 2024, our Group’s total expenses on the
remuneration of employees were approximately RMB1,188.3 million,
represented approximately 6.3% of the revenue of our Group. Our
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees, which will be reviewed regularly every year.
Apart from the provident fund scheme (according to the provisions
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for Hong
Kong employees), housing fund, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance and other relevant insurance (according to the PRC rules
and regulations for PRC employees), discretionary bonuses and
employee share options are also awarded to employees according
to the assessment of individual performance. In-house and external
training programmes are provided as and when required.
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Directors and Senior Management

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Li ("Mr. Wang"”), aged 46, has been an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company (“Chairman”) since
14 April 2022. Mr. Wang has over 19 years of working experience
in investment banking, mergers and acquisitions, and operation
management. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Investment
Economics Management from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics in 2001 and a Master’s degree in Finance from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in 2004. Mr.
Wang held different positions in various banks and financial
institutions during the period from June 2004 to June 2018.
Mr. Wang was the general manager of the investment banking
department of Guangzhou branch of China Everbright Bank (¥
Bl Yt KER7TE M 9 17) from May 2014 to November 2016. From
November 2016 to June 2018, Mr. Wang was the general manager
of Guangdong Finance Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (B8R B8 &£ 4
EIE AR A a)). From June 2018 to February 2021, Mr. Wang was
the assistant to general manager and head of the capital operation
department of Guangdong Province Guangging Holding Group Co.,
Ltd.* (BRE BEIL KR EE AR A 7). Since February 2021, he has
been serving as the operation management director of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Co., Ltd.* (BEEREEEHIEREBGRE D
Al) ("Guangxin Holdings”). During his employment with Guangxin
Holdings, Mr. Wang also took up the position of director in various
companies invested by Guangxin Holdings, namely FSPG Hi-Tech Co.,
Ltd. (BBILEE BRI E AR D B R A 7)), the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000973) (from
August 2021 to March 2022), Star Lake Bioscience Co. Inc. Zhaoging
Guangdong* (BEREE 2\ EWEHERHG BR AR, the shares
of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600866) (from August 2021 to April 2022), Guangdong Foodstuffs
Import & Export Group Co., Ltd* (ERERRELIEE AR
‘A A]) and Guangdong Guangxin Emerging Industries Investment
Private Equity Management Co., Ltd.* (BHREMINEEEILER
E2HSEEAMRAF). Guangxin Holdings is the holding company
of Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited, which holds approximately
31.47% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this
annual report, and is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Liao Yuqing (“Mr. Liao”), aged 56, is an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He is in charge of
the sales and marketing activities of the Group and is responsible
for the planning, development, implementation and evaluation of
the marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group
in January 1993. Prior to that, Mr. Liao was in the military between
1986 to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the Agricultural Bank of China
Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992. Mr. Liao is the director of
Guangdong Xingfa and an executive director of Foshan Xingfa
Trading Co., Ltd., Guangdong Xingfa Precision Manufacturing
Co., Ltd., Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture Technology Co.,
Ltd., Alxin Investment Co., Ltd. ( $B2{E#RE B A7) and Alxin
Development Co., Ltd. ( $2{2 8 E AR 2 7). Mr. Liao is the son-in-
law of Mr. Luo Su, the Honourable Adviser of the Group.

Ms. Zheng Jianhua (“Ms. Zheng”), aged 51, has been the chief
financial officer of the Company since 30 September 2022 and
has been appointed as an executive Director on 16 August 2024.
Ms. Zheng is also a director of Guangdong Xingfa. Ms. Zheng
has extensive experience in accounting, finance and business
management. Ms. Zheng obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
(majoring in accounting) from Sun Yat-Sen University in July 1999.
Prior to joining the Group, she worked in various departments
and subsidiaries of the group companies of Guangxin Holdings.
From May 1995 to January 2002, she was a deputy manager of
the finance department of ERESHEEEREBR A A, a
subsidiary of Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp. Co., Ltd.* (B
A HNE RIS A 7). In January 2002, she served as a deputy manager
of the finance department of Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp.
Co., Ltd.* (BEERAINERE A 7)), and has been promoted to the
manager of the finance department of Guangdong Foreign Trade
Imp. & Exp. Co., Ltd.* (B & YMNE 7852 7)) since December 2005.
She then served as the deputy head of the clearings department
and the deputy head of the capital management department of
Guangxin Holdings from March 2010 to June 2014. Later, she served
as the deputy head of the operating management department in
June 2014 and was then promoted to the head of the operating
management department in September 2018. Subsequently, she was
appointed as the head of the innovation and strategic management
department in February 2019. She has been promoted to the general
manager of the information management department since February
2020. From January 2021 to August 2022, she was promoted to the
deputy general manager of the strategic management department
(Group Director). Since August 2022, she has been the chief financial
officer of Guangdong Xingfa.
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Directors and Senior Management

During her employment with Guangxin Holdings, Ms. Zheng also
took up the position of director in various companies invested by
Guangxin Holdings, namely Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp.

Co., Ltd.* (BEEEINE R AT (from June 2020 to June 2022),
GMG International Tendering Co., Ltd.* (B3 812 A 7)) and %5 4%
372 A) (from June 2020 to August 2022).

Mr. Law Yung Koon (“Mr. Law"), aged 67, has been appointed
as an executive Director since 28 April 2009. He is responsible for
the sales and marketing of our products in overseas market. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Law was the general manager of Hang Fat
Aluminium Profiles Company Limited, which was the sole distributor
of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau and one of the suppliers of
aluminium ingots.

Mr. Wang Zhihua (“Mr. Wang”), aged 54, has been appointed
as an executive Director since 1 March 2008. Prior to joining the
Group in January 2003, from 1992 to 1997, Mr. Wang worked
at Guanglian Industrial Co., Ltd. and the Guangzhou Branch of
Huaxia Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree
in statistics from the Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics in
1992. Mr. Wang is also an executive director of Xingfa Aluminium
(Chengdu) Co., Ltd..

Mr. Luo Jianfeng (“Mr. Luo”), aged 53, has been appointed as an
executive Director since 16 April 2018. Mr. Luo has approximately
32 years of experience in accounting and finance. He worked in
(i) Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996;
(i) Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability
from April 1996 to December 2001; (iii) Guangdong Gongcheng
Accounting Firm from January 2002 to December 2007. He then
worked in Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co.,
Limited as a certified public accountant from January 2008 to April
2016. In addition, Mr. Luo was the independent non-executive
director of Bestsun Energy Co. Ltd. (B JII8E/RAZ (D B BR A F) (stock
code: 600681), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from June 2009 to June 2015. Mr. Luo obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in economics from Guangdong University of
Business Studies in the PRC in June 1993 and is a non-practising
member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Luo is an executive director of China Lesso Group Holdings
Limited (Fh BB 28 £ B 1A B PR A 7)) (stock code: 2128) (“China
Lesso”), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also a director/general
manager/ supervisor of various companies in China Lesso and its
subsidiaries (“China Lesso Group”).

* For identification purpose only
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zuo Manlun (“Mr. Zuo”), aged 52, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director since 16 April 2018. Mr. Zuo has
approximately 25 years of experience in the industry of plastic pipe.
Mr. Zuo has extensive business management experience. He is the
chief executive officer of China Lesso Group and was appointed as
an executive director of China Lesso in February 2010. He is also a
director/general manager/supervisor of various companies in China
Lesso Group. Mr. Zuo's expertise was recognised by several awards
including “Outstanding Worker of the Plastic Industry in the PRC”
accredited by China Plastics Processing Industry Association in 2009
and “Senior Plastic Product Engineer (Technical Entrepreneur)”
accredited by Guangdong Human Resources and Social Security
Department in 2019.

Mr. Wang Lei, aged 55, is a senior engineer, was appointed as an
executive Director on 4 August 2021 and has been re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 16 August 2024. Mr. Wang obtained
his bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from University
of Science and Technology Beijing (3t =} £ K ) and master’s
degree in business administration from Central South University (%
I AE)in 1991 and 2004 respectively. He has extensive business
management experience. Mr. Wang was the executive president of
Guangzhou Zhongyong Group Co., Ltd.* (EM WA BEE B R
A 7)) from 2005 to 2006 and the general manager of Guangdong
Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd.* (ERERMRIEEEBEFRAF])
stationed in Guangdong Hongli Machinery Co., Ltd.* (/& 5554 ) #
22 HBR A F]) from 2006 to 2009. Since 2009, Mr. Wang has served
various group companies of Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group
Ltd.* (EREHIEREB B R A7) (“Guangxin Holdings”). He
was the vice president of FSPG Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. (ff LI 2E Rlik &
BB EBRZAR), the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000973), from 2009 to 2016 and
was a member of the party committee of FSPG Hi-Tech Co., Ltd..
From 2016 to 2017, Mr. Wang served as the deputy director of the
operation department of Guangxin Holdings and the deputy general
manager of Guangxin Maritime Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.* (Z¥1/&
EETRMABRZAF). He was also the chairman and secretary of
the party committee of Guangdong Guangging Metal Technology
Co., Ld*(BREFTBEIE AR AT as well as the executive
director of Guangdong Guangging Metal Rolling Company* (& 3R &
HEBELAF])from 2017 to 2020. From 2020 to present, he is a
director of Guangxin Shengte Investment Co., Ltd.* (J& 3R & #T & &
WERRRAAD.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Mo (“Mr. Chen"), aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 29 February 2008. He
obtained the lawyer qualification certificate issued by the Guangdong
Provincial Department of Justice in June 1989. Mr. Chen has been
a practicing lawyer in the PRC since 1993 and has been a partner
of (i) Goldsun Law Firm (B {Z B & 2 /0 F % A7) from 1998 to
2011; and (i) Guangdong King & Land Law Firm (R ZE [E2ED
E7AT) from 2011 to March 2019. Mr. Chen was admitted as a
lawyer by the Department of Justice of Guangdong Province in June
1989 and obtained = #% {2 il & #&(Third Grade Lawyer) from the
Department of Personnel of Guangdong Province in 1999. Mr. Chen
graduated from the Political Education Department of South China
Normal University (ZERI BT &5 X2 ) in 1986. He has been granted
the BRI EBH LR E B E K FEZ ) (Certificate of Engaging in
Securities Law Business) jointly by the Ministry of Justice and China
Securities Regulatory Commission in 1996, the {7 Al ¢ = %= B %l
HEOEEEATERERKEKFS) (Certificate of Engaging in
Delimitation of Property Rights of Collective Science and Technology
Enterprises) jointly by the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Science
and Technology of the PRC and the State-owned Asset supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Council in 1998, and
the { LA R EILE B 7I45 %35 ) (Certificate of Completion of
Training on Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the School of Management
of Fudan University jointly in 2001. Mr. Chen joined Guangdong
Lianyue Law Firm (BEER & #ZRD = H5FT) in April 2019.
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Dr Hon Junius K. Y. Ho, JP (fil& 2&) (“Junius"”), is a Senior Partner
of Messrs K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors & Notaries where he is the head
of the Litigation and Commercial Department.

Having studied at Anglia Ruskin University in the United Kingdom
(formerly known as the Chelmer Institute of Higher Education),
Junius obtained his Bachelor of Laws in 1984. He then enrolled
at the University of Hong Kong to complete his Post-graduate
Certificate in Laws study. In 2019, Junius was awarded an Honorary
Doctorate in Law by the China University of Political Science and Law
in recognition of his “outstanding contribution and achievements in
the legal sector.”

Junius was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1988. He was
subsequently admitted in Singapore, and England and Wales in
1995 and 1997, respectively. In 2003, he was appointed as a China-
Appointed Attesting Officer. In 2022, he was also admitted as a
lawyer of the People’s Republic of China (Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area).

Over the 30 years of his career, Junius’" commitment to serving the
community and contributing to the economic co-operation between
Hong Kong and Mainland China has never wavered. Furthermore,
other than serving as a legal practitioner, Junius also serves on
various government and public boards as follows:

1. Member of the 14th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (since 2023);

2. Member of Legislative Council of HKSAR (since 2016);

3. Representative of the non-governmental organization (IPLSA)
granted Special Consultative Status by the United Nations
Economic and Social Council (since 2022);

4. Bronze Bauhinia Star from the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (since 2023);

5. Justice of the Peace of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (since 2016);

6. New Territories Justice of the Peace of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (since 2016);

7. Accredited Speaker on National Security Education, Supervisor
and Co-Ordinator for the Curriculum of the National Security
Education, Chairman of the Examination Board of the
National Security Education (since 2022);
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Ex-officio Executive Councilor of Heung Yee Kuk (since 2016);

Indigenous Village Representative of Leung Tin Village (2011-
2023);

Director and Chairman of Yan Oi Tong (1993-1997) and
Advisory Board Member of Yan Oi Tong (since 1997);

Founder of Butterflyers Association Limited (a charitable
organization) (since 2010);

Founder and Chairman of International Probono Legal
Services Association Limited (“IPLSA”) (since 2018);

Spokesman of New Territories Concern Group (since 2013);

Member of the 14th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (since 2023);

Arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission Hong Kong Arbitration Centre (2021
t0 2026);

Arbitrator of Guangzhou Arbitration Commission (since
2021);

Arbitrator of Zhaogqing Arbitration Committee (since 2021);

Arbitrator of South China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission (Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration) (since 2012);

Special Adviser of “One Belt One Road” Legal Services
Research Centre of the Guangdong Lawyers Association
(since 2017);

Expert of Compliance Expert Think Tank of Guangzhou
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Federation for
Enterprise Compliance and Anti-corruption (since 2022);

Trainer of National Security Education (Train the Trainers)
Course (since 2022);

President of the Foreign Legal Services Branch of Guangzhou
Lawyers Association (2024);

Advisor of the Dongguan Foreign-related Rule of Law
Research Association of the Dongguan Law Society (2024);
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24.  Member of the Office of Rule of Law of the Guangdong
Provincial Party Committee (2023-2028);

25. Part-time Tutor of Master of Public Administration, China
University of Labor Relations (2018-2021);

26.  Independent Director of Hong Kong Football Association
(2011-2019);

27. Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Huangpu District, Guangzhou (2013-2021);

28. Elected Member of Lok Tsui District of Tuen Mun District
Council (2016-2019);

29.  Member of the Council of Lingnan University of Hong Kong
(2015-2021),

30. Past President (2011-2012) and Council Member (1995-
2017) of the Law Society of Hong Kong;

31.  Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Obscene Articles
Tribunal (2013-2022);

32. Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Guangzhou Committee (2022-2023);

33. Visiting Professor at the Law School of Jinan University (since
2024); and

34.  Solicitor of Honour of the Law Society of Hong Kong (2024).

Mr. Lam, Ying Hung Andy (“Mr. Lam”), aged 60, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 29 February 2008. He
is an associate member of various professional organisations, namely
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He obtained his master’s degree in
professional accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience in the accounting, banking
and finance sectors and currently is the managing consultant of
Lontreprise Consulting Limited. Mr. Lam was also the president
of Dragon Junior Chamber, a local chamber affiliated with Junior
Chamber International Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as
the national vice president of the Junior Chamber International
Hong Kong in 2005. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of each of Litu Holdings Limited (formerly known as Brilliant
Circle Holdings International Limited) (stock code: 1008), Synertone
Communication Corporation (stock code: 1613) and Weiye Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1570), the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Wen Xianjun (“Mr. Wen"), aged 62, graduated from Central
South University ( # KX £) with a bachelor of engineering
majoring in metallic materials in July 1984 and Beijing Non-Ferrous
Research Institute* (Jb B & & & #ff % 8 Fx) with a master of
engineering majoring in metallic materials in June 1990. Mr. Wen
has approximately over 37 years of experience in the industry of
non-ferrous metals. He successively served as an associate engineer
of Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute* (b A &% B 7T 4&
Br) from 1984 to 1987, an engineer of the technology department
of China National Non-ferrous Metals Industry Corporation* (4B
BESETELLNA]) from 1990 to 1992, a deputy director and
a senior engineer of Development and Exchange Centre of China
Nonferrous Metals Industry Technology* (7 B1 /& & & /& £ i1 5 3 &2
FA L) from 1992 to 1996, a deputy director of the investment and
operations department and a senior engineer of China National Non-
ferrous Metals Industry Corporation* (FEIB & E T ¥4 21 R)
from 1996 to 1998, the deputy head, a director level consultant and
a senior engineer of Industry Administration Department of the State
Non-ferrous Metals Industry Administration of the People’s Republic
of China* ("PRC") (BIRAEELEILXBITXEEILA) from 1998
to 2000, as well as the director of CPC Central Enterprise Working
Committee (R R % T &) from January 2001 to March 2001. He
also served as the chairman of China Non-ferrous Metals Processing
Industry Association* (FEIEEEEBIINT TEW=E) from 2010 to
2017, and has successively served as the deputy head of industry
coordination department, head of the aluminium department, and
the vice chairman of China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Association*
(FREGSETEHS) from April 2001 to April 2021.

EENEREEAR

XBEXRE (XRED @625 R— N NA\HEF
tAEERFTEAE BMEBIBSBL 26 £
BeBME R—NANLZTEFSAEENIERE
e BIRTTARIFIRAESS G TEE B
FEEBMB XEERBREBITEHREGR
IVFEH - HE - NN\WFE—NLNEFEL
ItRECLENEEREIRM 8-
TFEE-NN_FEATEEECEBIEAR
AR BIRA - B — AN ZFE2—NAAF
EETEHBCSBREMAZRIAFRLIERR
SATEM 8- NANAANFE—NANFET
TRECEBIXBL AR ELENERERK
SRTIEM B—NWNANFEZZZZFEF
FEARAMBE(HREDERECEBIER
TEEEAFER TERAFARERSHRITE
e BT F— A2 —F=AEC
FRMPETZER BNB_Z—TFE-FT
—tFEATHEFEEBN I IEBEREER
WE-ZEE—FNAE T - —FNANRFH
BB IEHEEERETITERAINRIEE
RIS EEMEIE R -

Annual Report 2024 F 3 35



Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAR

Mr. Wen has served as an independent director in various listed
companies. From August 2008 to July 2021, he served as an
independent non-executive director of China Zhongwang Holdings
Limited (R Bl B HE3E AR B R 2 Fl) (@ company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1333, and was
delisted from the Stock Exchange in April 2023). He served as an
independent director of Henan Zhongfu Industrial Co., Ltd. (A&
FEZEEERMAMRAF)@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600595) from October 2009 to November
2015 and since November 2021, an independent director of Ningxia
Orient Tantalum Industry Co., Ltd. (BEE R FBERHERAA)
(@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000962) from April 2011 to October 2014, an independent director
of Wanbangde Pharmaceutical Holding Group Co., Ltd. (& #5158 %
7 f% &= B A {5 B PR A a)) (previously named as Zhejiang Dongliang
New Material Co., Ltd. CHT#RRF M A HDER 2 7)) (@ company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002082) from
May 2011 to September 2013, an independent director of Jiaozuo
Wanfang Aluminum Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (FE{EE IR ER KA
fR72a])(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 000612) from July 2013 to February 2016, an independent
director of ZYF Lopsking Aluminium Co., Ltd (F1 {82 28 ¥ 85 & #1 #
BB R A 7] (previously named as Suzhou Lopsking Aluminium
Co. Ltd. (BRI EEEZHT 28 ERMDBMR A F])) (@ company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002333) from October
2013 to December 2014. He has served as an independent director
of Henan Shenhuo Coal & Power Co., Ltd. GAlFg 8 A EERHH
FR /2 F]) (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 000933) since May 2020, an independent non-executive
director of China Honggiao Group Limited (B =& £ B AR A 7))
(@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 1378) since March 2021, an independent director of Zhejiang
Hailiang Co., Ltd G/ L8 =R B PR A ) (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002203) since September
2021 and an independent non-executive director of Nanshan
Aluminium International Holdings Limited (/3 L1l $7 3£ B0 B 45 A% 5 (R
‘A F])(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2610) since March 2025.

36 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 545 %42 ja A 1R 2\ 7

NEAEREZR ETAREEBYIES - FR
CEENENAEZEE-—FLAETEHES
AR AERAR (BRERET AR - BHA
5% 11333 WR Z T = =4F00 B REE SRR IR)
NBYIRTES FR _ETNFT+AZEZ
T—RE+—ARA-_E-—F+— ARET
MERFEERGERAR(LEBBESFRZH
FHAT BRI ASE : 600595) HEES - —
E-—FNAEE - NF+AEETEERH
BEBROABRAT CFIEFELRZH EHAT
B ARSR 000062 B EE — T ——4F
RAZZZ—=FhAETEBEBEITRE
BB RAE (RN TRER RGO AR
»a) CRYNEHR SR ETmAGE - RO :
002082) B EE —_ET—=F+AE_F
—ANFZAEEEEEFIRERBBR AR OF
JFEHER B EMAT - BRI 000612) H
BYEE —ZT—=F+AEZFT—HF+=
AEFREEZ LM AR AR AR (7]
WEgMNELHTSmERMNDBRAT) ORIIEFHF
RS EMAR - BRMHA  002333) KB
BE-FE_ZT_EFAHARBREDTEEAE
ERMHERRAR (RINBELZ ST ETMRAA B
MARS%:000933) BV EE BT —4F
—AREATEERBEEBR AR BRME
R ETAR - BRDARE : 1378) MBI IEITE
= HIE - —FRAAREENIERRNE
RAB ORYBEHR G LTRGBS
002203) B EERNB T -_AF = ABE
EEILnERBRIERABR AR (WA ER L
MARTE - BRIDHREE : 2610) BB IEMITES o



Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management

Mr. Lin Yan (“Mr. Lin"), aged 56, is the deputy general manager of
Guangdong Xingfa Group. Prior to joining Xingfa Aluminium, Mr. Lin
worked in a state-owned enterprise, Guangdong Metals & Minerals
Import & Export Group Corporation (BERE A& EE#R T N1EE
A A]), with more than 20 years of experience in international trade.
He was awarded a certificate of Economist by Ministry of Human
Resources of the PRC in 1996. Mr. Lin held a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from lJinan University, the Degree of Executive Master
of Business Administration (EMBA) at South China University of
Technology.

Mr. Liu Yuntang, aged 56, is the deputy general manager of
Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Liu Yuntang joined Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1993. Prior to joining the Group
in October 1993, Mr. Liu Yuntang worked at Nanhai Guangdong
Cable Factory Co., Ltd. from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu Yuntang was
granted a bachelor’'s degree in engineering by the Guangdong
Mechanics Institute in 1991. He was certified as assistant engineer
in 1993 by the Nanhai City Science Technology Committee and
certified as engineer in 2001 by the Foshan City Human Resources
Bureau. He was awarded as senior engineer by Guangdong Human
Resources and Social Security Department on 4 May 2015, and was
granted a senior Executive Master in Business Administration Degree
by Sun Yat-sen University on 29 December 2015. On 15 December
2020, he was awarded as Intermediate Certified Safety Engineer by
Human Resources and Social Security Department of the PRC.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Chen Wensi (“Mr. Chen"), aged 54, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Chen joined Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1997. Prior to joining the Group
in January 1997, Mr. Chen worked for Guangdong Chang’e Thermal
Insulation Container Factory (&R &% H R B2 MER) from 1995 to
1996. Mr. Chen graduated from Guangzhou Zhongkai Institute of
Agricultural Technology (E/MNH1E 22 MT26T) in 1995. He was
qualified as a senior engineer in mechanical engineering in 2018.
He is also a member of the Measurement Technology Committee
of China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Association and an expert
of the Expert Committee of China Non-ferrous Metals Processing
Industry Association. Mr. Chen has participated in the development,
management and standardization of scientific research projects from
various national, provincial, municipal and district governments. He
has won 5 excellence awards in patents in China, 3 first prizes of the
excellence awards in technical standards by the National Non-ferrous
Metals Standardization Technical Committee, and 2 progress awards
in science and technology by Guangdong Province. On 4 November
2020, he was awarded as senior engineer in metal pressure
processing by Foshan Science and Technology Association ({8 L /1 %}
BRI

Mr. Guan Dubiao (“Mr. Guan”), aged 54, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Guan is a senior
Economist and is currently the council member of Foshan City CPA
Institute and Foshan City Association of Chief Financial Officers.
His education background is undergraduate, studying business
management (accounting) and economic management. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Guan started his accounting career in the
business department of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic Development
Company. Subsequently, Mr. Guan served as different important
financial positions, such as chief accountant, chief of finance, etc.,
within several group companies of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic
Development Company. Mr. Guan joined the Group in 1999 as
deputy head of finance department and chief accountant and
subsequently promoted as head of finance department. He was
further promoted as deputy general manager of Guangdong Xingfa
Group since September 2011.
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Mr. Wu Xi Kun (“Mr. Wu”), aged 53, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group since 12 May 2020. Mr.
Wu obtained Bachelor of Material Science and Engineering from
Guangdong Industrial University in the PRC and joined Guangdong
Xingfa Group in July 1994. Currently, Mr. Wu is a postgraduate
student of Master of Philosophy (Engineering) in Central South
University in the PRC.

Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the production
management, quality control and research of manufacturing of
aluminium ingots and aluminium profiles. Mr. Wu participated in
the academic research and seminars in the industry. He published
the “Practical Handbook in the Processing Techniques of Aluminium
Profiles” in 2006. He also participated in the set up of various
national standards regarding aluminium profiles.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Ho (“Mr. Pang”), aged 36, joined our Group as the
company secretary of the Company since February 2021. Mr. Pang
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since March 2015. He obtained the Bachelor degree
of Business Administration in Accountancy and Master degree
of Science (Professional Accounting and Corporate Governance)
from City University of Hong Kong in July 2010 and June 2024
respectively. He has more than 10 years’ experience in accounting,
auditing and company secretarial matters.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHE

The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
("Company”) present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), for the year ended 31
December 2024 (“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of other members of the Group are set out
in note 16 in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2024.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 107
of the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.64 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: HKDO0.64).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 26 May 2025 to Thursday, 29 May
2025, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfer of Shares
accompanied by the relevant Share certificates must be lodged with
the branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 23 May 2025.
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To ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlement to the final dividend,
subject to Shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
4 June 2025 to Friday, 6 June 2025 (both days inclusive). During such
period, no transfer of the Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the final dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant
Share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at the above address not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 3 June 2025.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 4 June 2025 to Friday, 6 June 2025 (both days inclusive).
During such period, no transfer of the shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 3 June 2025.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five years is set out on page 215 and page 216.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance sheet
date are set out in note 24 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 in notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in note 28 in notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DONATIONS

The Group made no donation (2023: RMB100,000) for charitable or
any other purposes during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year
or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a new share option scheme
("Share Option Scheme”) on 29 December 2017. The Share Option
Scheme became effective for 10 years commencing from 5 January
2018.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme include directors
and employees of the Group or any Invested Entity; any suppliers,
customers, advisers or consultants of the Group or any Invested
Entity; any persons or entities that provide research and development
or other technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity;
any holders of securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and any other groups or classes
of participants whom the Board considers have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

With effect from 1 January 2023, any grant of share options shall
comply with the new requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules which took effect on 1 January 2023.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
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The total number of shares of the Company which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
41,800,000 ordinary shares, being 10% of the ordinary shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by
the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on
29 December 2017. As at 1 January 2024, the total number of
ordinary shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
39,150,866 shares. As at the date of this report, the total number
of ordinary shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
is 39,150,866 shares, which represents approximately 9.3% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report. No
service provider sublimit has been authorised under the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group to each
eligible participant (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued shares of
the Company from time to time.

The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the directors of the
Company, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the
shares on the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.
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No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or expired
under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2024. No share option was outstanding as at 1 January 2024 and 31
December 2024.

Further details of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are set out in Note 26 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

PLEDGE OF GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's pledged deposits amounting
to approximately RMB196.1 million (31 December 2023: RMB124.3
million) and bills receivable with carrying value of approximately
RMB273.3 million (31 December 2023: RMB887.3 million) were
pledged as security for issuing bills.

As at 31 December 2024, certain plants with net book value of
RMB375.4 million (31 December 2023: RMB365.6 million) and land
use rights under right-of-use assets with carrying value of RMB390.7
million (31 December 2023: RMB379.8 million) were pledged as
security for bank loans and borrowings of the Group.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 28 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands amounted to RMB652,686,000 (2023: RMB639,723,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2024 (2023: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 14.1% (2023: 12.4%) of the
Group's revenue where sales to the largest customer accounted for
5.8% (2023: 5.6%) of the Group's revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 59.6% (2023: 77.0%) of the
Group's total cost of purchase whereas purchases from the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 30.9% (2023: 43.0%) of the
Group's total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers
during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this report as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business,
financial key performance indicators and performance indicators and
performance and indication of future development of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024 can be found in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED
BY THE GROUP

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties. The effects
of such risks may vary over time. The following sets forth material
risks classified by the Group and the relevant alleviating measures for
each material risk for the management of such risks.

Business risks

Firstly, most of the Group’s revenue was generated from customers
in the PRC. Should there be any material adverse change in the
political, economic, legal or social conditions in the PRC and the
Group is unable to divert sales to other markets outside of the PRC,
the turnover, profitability and prospects may be adversely affected.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will continue to put efforts
to expand overseas market and increase the proportion of overseas
sales. During the Year, we have export sales to Australia and
Vietnam. In addition, a joint venture project of the Group in Australia
has completed equipment installation and commissioning, with a
project planned capacity of 20,000 tonnes. The Group believes that
setting up factories overseas will help it to understand customer
needs in the overseas market and accelerate the overall overseas
business development. The Group will also continue to review
competitive edges of the Group in the industry and market trend.
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Secondly, the Group’s production activities of aluminium profiles
rely on, among other things, sufficient and uninterrupted supply
of aluminium ingots, being our principal raw materials. The Group
procures such principal raw materials from several major suppliers
and has not entered into any long-term purchase contracts with
any of our major suppliers of aluminium ingots for flexibility in
purchasing aluminium ingots at competitive prices at various times.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will conduct investigation
and assessment on suppliers periodically to ensure stable supply
source of raw materials.

Financial risks

Delayed payments of customers who were granted credit period by
the Group will increase the Group’s exposure to financial risks and
have an impact on financial performance and operating cash flows
of the Group.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will review accounts
receivables due from major customers on a regular basis and control
over it to an appropriate level. The Group will also manage and
maintain strict control internally and put additional efforts to collect
trade receivables overdue.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

48

Employees

Human resources are the most valuable asset of the Group.
Developing and retaining talents are vital to our success.
The Group is committed to providing our employees with
a safe, pleasant and healthy working environment. The
Group rewards and recognises employees by competitive
remuneration package and implements a key performance
index scheme with appropriate incentives, and promote career
development and progression by providing opportunities for
career advancement to employees.

In addition, each department of the Group is responsible
for determining its training needs for employees in its
department and any suggested applicable training courses
either arranged internally or by external service providers
shall be submitted to the senior management of the Group
for approval. Knowledge, skills and capacities of employees
are vital to continuous business growth and success of the
Group. The Group strives to ensure that all employees can
fulfill the relevant job requirements in terms of education,
training, technical and work experience.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and take great care to ensure that
they share our commitment to quality and ethics. We
carefully select our suppliers and require them to satisfy
certain assessment criteria including track record, experience,
financial strength, reputation, ability to produce high-quality
products and quality control effectiveness.

Distributors and customers

We sell our products to distributors and customers. We
require our distributors and customers to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations and our sales and marketing
policies, including but not limited to selling price, promotional
activities and usage of our ERP system. We also monitor the
financial condition and repayment history of our distributors
and customers, and their sales performance.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
to enhance the transparency of the Company and to facilitate its
shareholders and investors to make informed investment decisions
relating to the Company. The Dividend Policy allows shareholders
to share the Company’s profits while reserving sufficient reserves
for the Group’s future development. Proposed dividends, if any,
will be proposed and declared at the discretion of the Board.
When proposing any dividend payment, the Board will take
into consideration, among others things, the general financial
position and strategies, expected operating cash flows and capital
requirements, surplus, contractual restrictions of the Group, actual
and expected government financial conditions, macroeconomics
and such other factors as the Board may deem relevant from time
to time. Furthermore, any payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the articles
of association of the Company.

Subject to the above factors, the final dividend to be declared and
paid by the Company shall be not less than 30% of the Group's
audited consolidated profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed by the Board from time to
time and there is no assurance that any dividend will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period or that the Company is
obliged to declare any dividend at any time or from time to time.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

As a supporter of environmental protection and taking into account
of the national green manufacturing development plan and guided
by enterprise strategy, the Group formulated the Xingfa Aluminium
Protection System. The primary mission of the Group’s environmental
production policy is to govern production emissions by relying on
technology, comprehensive utilisation of production waste residue,
reduce environmental pollution and develop clean production.

During the Year, the Group has complied with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in both PRC and Hong Kong.

A further discussion of the environmental policies of the Group is
contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with relevant
requirements could lead to adverse impact on business operation and
financial position of the Group. The Board as a whole is responsible
to ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company. During
the course of the business operations, the Group shall comply with
different laws and regulations, including i) laws regarding employee
recruitment and benefits, such as the “Labor Law of the PRC”, the
“Labor Contract Law of the PRC”, and the “Rulings of Implementing
the Labor Contract Law of the PRC”; and ii) the PRC national and
local laws and regulations with respect to environmental protection,
including the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group was in strict compliance with
the aforesaid laws and regulations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and as at
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WANG Li (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuqing (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. ZHENG Jianhua (appointed on 16 August 2024)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO lJianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun

Ms. XIE Jingyun (resigned on 16 August 2024)

Mr. WANG Lei (redesignated as non-executive Director
on 16 August 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Mo
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy
Mr. WEN Xianjun
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The names of Directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are available on the Company’s website “www.xingfa.
com”.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
with reference to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and the Company considered all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent. Please refer to the details
disclosed in the section headed “Independent non-executive
Directors” in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 27 to 39 of the annual report.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in paragraph headed “Connected transactions” in
this report, (i) there is no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance subsisting during or at the end of the Year in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly; (ii) no other contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with its controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (iii) no other contract
of significance in relation to provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix C3 (formerly known as Appendix 10)
of the Listing Rules (“Model Code"), to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position

No. of
ordinary
shares of the
Name of directors Capacity Company
KAF
EEHR g% ZBEREE
LIAO Yuging Founder of a 48,200,100
discretionary trust who
can influence how the
trustee exercises his
discretion
BEE REEFEAISIA - A5
BZEATHEERE
- Iy
LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 19,432,000
ERAH EniEA
Interest of spouse 1,719,000
B (B A o
WANG Zhihua Beneficial owner 128,000
ke BEnfEAA
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ESRA QTR EAABER 2R
MERMD R ERES ZER

RZBEZMNFE+_A=+—H BERFIRE
BEPIFSTEZESF KRB ED (TEF KB
16151 1) 35216 B T IRF 2 B MR
AR IR b AR B8R C3 (BT REP 8% +) PR L 1
MBTABFETESFRZNEESTR (1F
TR BBMEARRA BRI ER
BEEFRARAETBTBRABRARARE
EAEEEE (& R E S L AEEHIEXVER)
ZBdn - MR REREZ R SOARIAT

m%\//

P

\

\

i)
No. of

underlying Percentage of
shares of the interest in the
Company Total Company
b VNS EAEAR
HEROEE By ERED

- 48,200,100 11.46%

- 19,432,000 4.62%

- 1,719,000 0.41%

- 128,000 0.03%



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

Other than the share options granted under the share option
scheme disclosed in note 26 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2024
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of
Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Director to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17 March
2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any business
apart from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE

THEIR INTERESTS PURSUANT TO PART XV OF

THE SFO

As at 31 December 2024, the following persons, other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company, had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which are required to be recorded in the register required to be kept

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position

Name of entities
EREE

GuangXin (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited
B BEBREARAA

Guangdong Guangxin Holdings
Group Ltd*
BREBHEREEBRAR

State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of
The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*

BREARBNEBEEEERE

ERELZEE

Lesso Group Holdings Limited
BEREEZERBER AT

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
R R BT R B R A A

New Fortune Star Limited

3}
Total number of
ordinary shares
Capacity of the Company
KRATZ
g4 TERAY
Beneficial owner 132,382,000
E=EAA
Interest of controlled corporation 132,382,000
A E R
Interest of controlled corporation 132,382,000
A E R
Beneficial owner 109,842,900
EREAA
Interest of controlled corporation 109,842,900
ZESAE R
Interest of controlled corporation 109,842,900

R E RS
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Percentage of
interest

in the Company
RN
EZEEDL

31.47%

31.47%

31.47%

26.11%

26.11%

26.11%



Name of entities
BEEEE

Xi Xi Development Limited

PIEERBR AT

UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited

WONG Luen Hei

e
=S

Sure Keen Limited

A IEA R 8

Glorious Joy Limited

TMF (Cayman) Limited

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Directors’
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above, as at 31 December
2024, no other person had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO.

Capacity
&4

Interest of controlled corporation
REtEEE R

Interest of controlled corporation
It EEER

Founder of a discretionary trust
who can influence how the
trustee exercises his discretion

EREETEVA AIRE%:

ATEEBRBEZT A

Beneficial owner

BEalEAA

Interest of controlled corporation
REH AR S

Trustee
ZFEA

RS
ATRARRB]Z B D N AR R B {0 7 B B RO 8%
RARBRIERE 7 MIEGRDIE336 FMFE
ZETMAZERmIORE -

Total number of
ordinary shares
of the Company
KRAFZ
EERAY
109,842,900

109,842,900

109,842,900

48,200,100

48,200,100

48,200,100
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Percentage of
interest

in the Company
EARRDT
EZEDL
26.11%

26.11%

26.11%

11.46%
11.46%

11.46%
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A

56

The following entities are connected parties of the Company  A.
and had connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions with the Group during the year ended 31

December 2024:

Name of the entity
BEEH

[ PR L EE E ik P % 5 PR A A] (Guangdong Xingfa
Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd.*
("Xingfa Curtain Wall"))

EREEERIIEARAR ([HERRE])

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
("China Lesso Group”)

hEIR 2 E B AR AR R EME AR
(TR ERE 22 R )

TPE R EREREGERR QA
(Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*
("Jiangxi Jingxing”))

IPE R BREREERR AR (DIERE])

BREEFEREEARAF
(Guangdong Guangxin Holding Group Co., Ltd.*
("Guangxin Holding"))
BREBEFIEREBEFRAE ([EHER])

A R R AR 45 B R 2 A (Henan Province
Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*
("Henan Jingxing"))

AR EREREGERR AR (DR E])

BEXS

NTER/ARRZEEAL  WNE
E-T-_NME+-_A=+—HLHEE

WEEMEI IRER SR HIHER

Relationship with the Company
BAQRZBAR

Owned as to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuging and as to 46% by Mr.
LUO Su as at the date of this report. Mr. LIAO Yuging is an
executive Director and Mr. LUO Su is the father-in-law of Mr.
LIAO Yuging.

RABREBH HBREETERB21%E R NERTE
WEHA6% Em - BEBRRERNTEEREHREERE
FESREMNER -

A substantial shareholder of the Company, holding, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, approximately 26.11% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report.
ARARFERREBEZEWBRRNARE BEBRE
RRFBEITRD Z#)26.11% °

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

REBE (AATN— A EBRE) ZHRENBEAT -

The controlling shareholder of the Company and is indirectly
interested in approximately 31.47% of the total issued shares
of the Company as at the date of this report.
RATERIRER - RS B EREEE AR R D #1T
Betn B EEHI31.47% °

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

AR (RARN—SEBRE) 2 E2EMBAT -
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Name of the entity

BEEEE

EREFRIBEMZARAT

(Guangdong Xingfa Environmental Technology Co.,

Report of the Directors

BAQNRZAR

Ltd.* ("Xingfa Environmental”))

FERAZFRFHHARAR ([HEFRR])

EREIEREERAT]

(Guangdong Province Foreign Trading

Development Co., Limited* report
("Guangdong Foreign Trading”))

BERENERBARAR (ERINE]D

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the following
continuing connected transactions were non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and are subject to the
reporting, announcement and annual review requirements.
The following is a brief description of the continuing
connected transactions:

1. 2024-2026 Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement

(i)

Nature of transactions

Reference is made to the announcements of
the Company dated 29 December 2023. &
REZ IR E G MR A A (“Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd.*) (“Guangdong Xingfa"”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Xingfa Curtain Wall entered
into a master supply agreement (“Xingfa
Curtain Wall Agreement”) on 29 December
2023 in relation to the supply of aluminium
profiles to Xingfa Curtain Wall by Guangdong
Xingfa and its subsidiaries (“Guangdong
Xingfa Group”), for a term of three years
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026
(both dates inclusive). The aluminium profiles
purchased by Xingfa Curtain Wall were further
processed into windows and curtain walls and
sold to its customers.

ESEHE

Relationship with the Company

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.
PR (A QRN —REERR) 22 EMB AT -
Owned as to 4% by Guangdong Xingfa and a non-wholly

owned subsidiary of Guangxin Holding as at the date of this

RARE B - BEREBAEEL% o R EHERAIER
BB AT

RBE-_ZE-_WNF+-_A=+—81t
FE - THFBERERSAIFRRFE

MER S WARES

HE - D RFE

BHMRTE  ATARERERSZHN

1. TE_NEE-EBE-XREH

S A
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(ii)

(iii)

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2024 of the continuing connected
transactions set out above was RMB111.0
million, and the actual aggregate amount
of sale transactions was approximately
RMB52,132,000 for the Year.

Internal control procedure

The Group has complied with the following
internal control measures to monitor the
pricing and terms of the transactions in
relation to the sale of aluminium profiles by
Guangdong Xingfa Group to Xingfa Curtain
Wall and ensure that the prices and terms
offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to Xingfa
Curtain Wall will be no more favourable than
prices and terms offered to independent
customers and that the annual cap is not
exceeded:

(a) monitoring the prevailing average price
of aluminium ingots as quoted on the
Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous Metals
Market and/or Shanghai Nonferrous
Metals Market on a daily basis;

(b) comparing the price and terms of the
supply of aluminium profiles to Xingfa
Curtain Wall with the prices and terms
of aluminium profiles supplied by
the Group in the PRC as agreed with
independent customers on a regular
basis;

(0) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the price and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles
offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
Xingfa Curtain Wall to ensure that they
shall be no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent
customers; and
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(d) financial report containing information
on all connected transactions carried
out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions
under the Xingfa Curtain Wall
Agreement was submitted to the Board
on a monthly basis.

2023 Lesso Master Supply Agreement
(as amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement)

(i) Nature of transactions

Reference is made to the announcements of
30 December 2022 and 27 October 2023
and the circular of the Company dated 28
November 2023. On 30 December 2022,
Guangdong Xingfa and China Lesso entered
into a master supply agreement (“2023 Lesso
Master Supply Agreement”). The 2023 Lesso
Master Supply Agreement was then amended
and supplemented by the supplemental
agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”)
dated 27 October 2023 entered into between
Guangdong Xingfa and China Lesso. Pursuant
to the 2023 Lesso Master Supply Agreement
(as amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement), Guangdong
Xingfa Group, as suppliers, would supply
and China Lesso and its subsidiaries (“China
Lesso Group”), as purchasers, would purchase
aluminium profiles and/or panels supplied by
Guangdong Xingfa Group members on an
on-going basis for a term of three years from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025 (both
dates inclusive).

(ii) Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the
2023 Lesso Master Supply Agreement
(as amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement) for the Year was
RMB350,000,000, and the actual aggregate
amount of purchase and sale transactions was
approximately RMB50,644,000 for the Year.
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(iii) Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the pricing and terms of
the transactions under the 2023 Lesso
Master Supply Agreement (as amended
and supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) and ensure that the prices and
terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
China Lesso Group were no more favourable
than prices and terms offered to independent
customers and that the annual cap was not
exceeded:

(a)

monitoring the prevailing average price
of aluminium ingots as quoted on
Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous Metals
Market on a daily basis;

comparing the prices and terms of the
supply of aluminium profiles and/or
panels to China Lesso Group with the
prices and terms of aluminium profiles
and/or panels supplied by the Group in
the PRC as agreed with independent
customers on a regular basis;

adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the prices
and terms of supply of aluminium
profiles and/or panels offered by
Guangdong Xingfa Group to China
Lesso Group to ensure that they would
be no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent
customers; and

financial report containing information
on all connected transactions carried
out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions
under the 2023 Lesso Master
Supply Agreement (as amended and
supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) was submitted to the
Board on a monthly basis.
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Further details of the 2023 Lesso
Master Supply Agreement (as amended
and supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated
30 December 2022 and 27 October
2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2023.

3. 2024 Guangdong Foreign Trading Group
Master Supply Agreement

(i)

(ii)

Nature of transactions

On 29 December 2023, Guangdong Xingfa
and Guangdong Foreign Trading entered
into a master supply agreement (2024
Guangdong Foreign Trading Group Master
Supply Agreement”) pursuant to which
Guangdong Xingfa Group, as suppliers, agreed
to sell to Guangdong Foreign Trading Group,
as purchasers, aluminium profiles and/or
panels for a term from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the 2024 Guangdong
Foreign Trading Group Master Supply
Agreement for the period from 1 January 2024
to 31 December 2024 was RMB80,000,000,
and the actual aggregate amount of
sales transactions were approximately
RMB11,606,000 for the period from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024.

Report of the Directors

3. ==

ESEHE

TR FRIBAR
HERZE (EHx
WEIBET R
Ryt — B RHIBER
AArBHEA—Z
ZZF+ZHAZ=T
Ak -_=F+
B=-t+tBz2afH
S NUNECIRER- -
ZE=F+—A
—+NBZBEK

—HERRIABEEEHA

R

(i)

(ii)

XEME

RZEZ=ZF+= A
—t+hB EREHHEE
RONE R B E
(ZZE—mFERIINEE
l@fﬁ% = DI 4l
EBREEFER (EAHE
ERERERIIEEER
(EBREHR) HERAY
5/ ARBEIR - i%m
—E-_mMF—fF—AHZE
EoNF+=ZR=+— E
(BEEREMA) -

FE LR

RZE-_mMF—H—HZ
—E-NE+—A=+—
HER  —ZE-FER
INEEBEBEERZET
BMETRHICFELR
A A R #80,000,0007T °
5_7_E¢ A—H
BEZZE-_WNF+ A
=t— Et%WiZ%E/\
SEBRRBRESEARBARE
11,606,0007T ©

Annual Report 2024 F iR 61



Report of the Directors

ESEHE

(iii) Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the pricing and terms of the
transactions under the 2024 Guangdong
Foreign Trading Group Master Supply
Agreement and to ensure that the prices and
terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
Guangdong Foreign Trading Group were no
more favourable than prices and terms offered
to independent customers and that the annual
cap was not exceeded:

W)

monitoring the prevailing average price
of aluminium ingots as quoted on
Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous Metals
Market on a daily basis;

comparing the prices and terms of the
supply of aluminium profiles and/or
panels to Guangdong Foreign Trading
Group with the prices and terms of
aluminium profiles and/or panels
supplied by the Group in the PRC as
agreed with independent customers on
a regular basis;

adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the prices and terms of supply of
aluminium profiles and/or panels
offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group
to Guangdong Foreign Trading Group
members to ensure that they were no
more favourable than those offered by
the Group to independent customers;

financial report containing information
on all connected transactions carried
out by the Group, including the
continuing connected transactions
under the 2024 Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group Master Supply
Agreement, were submitted to the
Board on a monthly basis.
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4,

Further details of the 2024 Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group Master Supply Agreement were
set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 December 2023.

2024 Henan Tenancy Agreement

(i)

(ii)

Nature of transaction

On 29 December 2023, [& & # 2% §8 ¥ (7
) ABR A A (Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Henan) Co., Ltd.*) (“Xingfa Henan”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as landlord, and Henan lJingxing,
as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement
("2024 Henan Tenancy Agreement”) pursuant
to which Xingfa Henan agreed to lease the
property located at 1 B & i[5 b3k T
¥ &£ F[& (Qinbei Industrial District, Qinyang
City, Henan Province, the PRC*) to Henan
Jingxing for the welding, assembling, recycling
and maintenance of aluminium panels which
were applied as construction materials and
the sale of such aluminium panels for a fixed
term of one year from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the 2024 Henan Tenancy
Agreement for the period from 1 January 2024
to 31 December 2024 was RMB3,232,128,
and the actual aggregate amount of rent was
approximately RMB3,018,452.
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(iii) Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with
the following internal control measures to
monitor the rent and terms of the transactions
under the 2024 Henan Tenancy Agreement
and to ensure that the rent and terms offered
by Xingfa Henan to Henan Jingxing would be
no more favourable than the rent and terms
offered to independent tenants and that the
annual cap was not exceeded:

(a)

monitoring the prevailing market rent
at similar locations on a quarterly basis;

adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent
under the 2024 Henan Tenancy
Agreement to ensure that they were no
more favourable than those offered by
the Group to independent tenants; and

financial report containing information
on all connected transactions carried
out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions
under 2024 Henan Tenancy Agreement
was submitted to the Board on a
monthly basis.

Further details of the 2024 Henan Tenancy
Agreement were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 29 December 2023.
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5.

2024 Jiangxi Tenancy Agreement

(i)

(ii)

Nature of transactions

On 29 December 2023, ER # 3R %¥ (T
78) B R A 7 (Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.*) (“Xingfa Jiangxi”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as landlord, and lJiangxi Jingxing,
as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement
("2024 Jiangxi Tenancy Agreement”) pursuant
to which Xingfa Jiangxi agreed to lease the
property located at #° BT P& B & 4B £ 1l
3@ 48 K3E21 9% (No. 21, Jingfa Road,
Yichun Economic Development Zone, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC*) to Jiangxi Jingxing for the
manufacturing of aluminum panels for a fixed
term of one year from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the 2024 Jiangxi Tenancy
Agreement for the period from 1 January 2024
to 31 December 2024 was RMB4,296,528,
and the actual aggregate amount of rent was
approximately RMB4,296,527.

Report of the Directors

5.

ESEHE

“ECNETREERR

(i)

(ii)

XEMHE

R-_ZTE-_=F+_A
—+hH ARRZEE
2 EMB AR ERE R
X OIf) BARAR ([ HEE
I (ERZEE)M)IA
S8 (EARF) IV HEE
W ((ZZE g, ma
Bl B EETA
B & [A))T 78 5 8 L FE A R
FEDIFAE BB
MR LB RER 2D
¥ A{ERERBER -
BETHRE —E - mF—
A—HEZZ-ZZ_NF
+-—A=+—HB(BEE
EmB) BH—F -

FELR

_Y_Eilﬁﬂf%
HTI#BETRS B =
—FE—A— Et§_7
“WME+=-A =+—H
IR ZFEERABAR
#4,296,52870 * K BB 4B
HE B ARK4296,527
5o

Annual Report 2024 F 3 65



Report of the Directors

ESEHE

(iii) Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with
the following internal control measures to
monitor the rent and terms of the transactions
under the 2024 Jiangxi Tenancy Agreement
and to ensure that the rent and terms offered
by Xingfa Jiangxi to Jiangxi Jingxing would be
no more favourable than the rent and terms
offered to independent tenants and that the
annual cap was not exceeded:

(a)

monitoring the prevailing market rent
at similar locations on a quarterly basis;

adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent
under the 2024 Jiangxi Tenancy
Agreement to ensure that they were no
more favourable than those offered by
the Group to independent tenants; and

financial report containing information
on all connected transactions carried
out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions
under 2024 Jiangxi Tenancy Agreement
was submitted to the Board on a
monthly basis.

Further details of the 2024 Jiangxi Tenancy
Agreement were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 29 December 2023.
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6.

Xingfa Precision Tenancy Agreement

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Nature of transactions

Reference is made to the announcements
of the Company dated 31 December 2021
and 16 October 2023. On 16 October 2023,
BREZEBTEEAR LA (Guangdong
Xingfa Precision Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*)
("Xingfa Precision”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as landlord, and
Xingfa Environmental, as tenant, entered into a
tenancy agreement (“Xingfa Precision Tenancy
Agreement”) pursuant to which Xingfa
Precision agreed to lease the property located
at FEEREH LTI = /KELEFER LR
T % ED %12 % (No. 12 Central Science and
Technology Industrial Zone D, Leping Town,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC*)
to Xingfa Precision for the processing and
recycling of waste resources for a fixed term
of nineteen years from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2041 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the Xingfa Precision
Tenancy Agreement for the period from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2024 was
RMB4,228,285, and the actual aggregate
amount of rent was approximately
RMB4,228,285.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with
the following internal control measures to
monitor the rent and terms of the transactions
under the Xingfa Precision Tenancy Agreement
and to ensure that the rent and terms offered
by Xingfa Precision to Xingfa Environmental
were no more favourable than the rent and
terms offered to independent tenants and that
the annual cap was not exceeded:

(a) monitoring the prevailing market rent
at similar locations on a quarterly basis;
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(b) adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the rent under Xingfa Precision Tenancy
Agreement to ensure that they were no
more favourable than those offered by
the Group to independent tenants; and

(c) financial report containing information
on all connected transactions carried
out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions
under New Tenancy Agreement was
submitted to the Board on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the Xingfa Precision Tenancy
Agreement were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 31 December 2021 and
16 October 2023.

7. 2024-2026 Engineering Service Agreement

(i)

(ii)

Nature of transactions

On 29 December 2023, Guangdong Xingfa
and Xingfa Curtain Wall entered into a service
agreement (”2024-2026 Engineering Service
Agreement”) pursuant to which Xingfa
Curtain Wall agreed to provide the certain
engineering services, including but not limited
to the installation of windows, doors and
curtain walls (“Engineering Services”), to
Guangdong Xingfa Group members for a fixed
term of three year from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2026 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the 2024-2026
Engineering Service Agreement for the period
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
was RMB7,500,000 and the actual aggregate
amount of service fee was approximately
RMB1,211,000 for the period from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024.
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(iii) Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the pricing and terms of the
transactions contemplated under the 2024-
2026 Engineering Service Agreement and to
ensure that the service fees and terms offered
by Xingfa Curtain Wall to Guangdong Xingfa
Group were no less favourable than service
fees and terms offered to Guangdong Xingfa
Group by independent suppliers and that the
annual cap was not exceeded:

(a) monitoring the prevailing average
market service fee of the engineering
service which is identical to or
comparable to the Engineering Services;

(b) comparing the service fees and terms
of the provision of Engineering Services
by Xingfa Curtain Wall with the service
fees and terms of the provision of
engineering services in the PRC as
agreed with or quoted by independent
suppliers on a regular basis;

(0) adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the service fees and terms of provision
of Engineering Services by Xingfa
Curtain Wall to Guangdong Xingfa
Group to ensure that they shall be no
less favourable than those offered by
independent suppliers; and

(d) financial report containing information
on all connected transactions carried
out by the Group, including the
continuing connected transactions
under the 2024-2026 Engineering
Service Agreement , was submitted to
the Board on a monthly basis.

Further details of the 2024-2026 Engineering
Service Agreement were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29
December 2023.
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8. 2024-2026 Hazardous Waste Processing
Service Agreement

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Nature of transactions

On 29 December 2023, Guangdong Xingfa
and Xingfa Environmental entered into a
service agreement (“2024-2026 Hazardous
Waste Processing Service Agreement”)
pursuant to which Xingfa Environmental
agreed to provide certain hazardous waste
processing and disposal services (“Hazardous
Waste Processing Services”), to Guangdong
Xingfa Group members for a fixed term of one
year from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the 2024-2026 Hazardous
Waste Processing Services Agreement for
the period from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 was RMB15,000,000 and the
actual aggregate amount of service fee was
approximately RMB3,352,000 for the period
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.

Internal control procedures

During the period from 1 January 2024 to
31 December 2024, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the pricing and terms of the
transactions contemplated under the 2024-
2026 Hazardous Waste Processing Agreement
Service Agreement and to ensure that the
service fees and terms offered by Xingfa
Environmental to Guangdong Xingfa Group
were no less favourable than service fees and
terms offered to Guangdong Xingfa Group by
independent suppliers and that the annual cap
was not exceeded:
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monitoring the prevailing average
market service fee of hazardous waste
processing services which is identical to
or comparable to the Hazardous Waste
Processing Services;

comparing the service fees and
terms of the provision of Hazardous
Waste Processing Services by Xingfa
Environmental with the service fees and
terms of the provision of hazardous
waste processing services in the PRC as
agreed with or quoted by independent
suppliers on a regular basis;

adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the service fees and terms of provision
of Hazardous Waste Processing Services
by Xingfa Environmental to Guangdong
Xingfa Group to ensure that they were
no less favourable than those offered
by independent suppliers; and

financial report containing information
on all connected transactions carried
out by the Group, including the
continuing connected transactions
under the 2024-2026 Hazardous Waste
Processing Service Agreement, was
submitted to the Board on a monthly
basis.
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Further details of the 2024-2026 Hazardous Waste
Processing Service Agreement were set out in the
announcement dated 29 December 2023.

Views of the independent non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions
carried out pursuant to 2024-2026 Xingfa Curtain
Wall Agreement, 2023 Lesso Master Supply
Agreement (as amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement), 2024 Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group Master Supply Agreement, 2024
Henan Tenancy Agreement, 2024 Jiangxi Tenancy
Agreement, Xingfa Precision Tenancy Agreement,
2024-2026 Engineering Service Agreement and 2024-
2026 Hazardous Waste Processing Service Agreement,
and have considered the information on internal
control procedures referred to in sections B.1(iii),
B.2(iii), B.3(iii), B4iii), B5(iii), B6(iii), B7(iii) and B&Kiii)
above, and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

(i) on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from independent third parties
(as the case may be); and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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10.

Review by the auditors

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued its letter
to the Board containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
as set out in this sections “B1” to “B8” above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The
auditors confirmed that:

0) nothing has come to the attention of the
auditors that caused the auditors to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group, nothing
has come to the attention of the auditors
that caused the auditors to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

(iii) nothing has come to the attention of the
auditors that caused the auditors to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing
has come to the attention of the auditors
that caused the auditors to believe the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the annual cap as set by ‘the
Company.
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1.

The 2024-2026 Xingfa Curtain Wall Master
Supply Agreement, 2024 Guangdong
Foreign Trading Group Master Supply
Agreement, 2024 Henan Tenancy
Agreement, 2024 Jiangxi Tenancy
Agreement, the 2024-2026 Engineering
Service Agreement and the 2024- 2026
Hazardous Waste Processing Service
Agreement (collectively as the “2024 CCT
Agreements”)

Given that the parties to each of the Xingfa Curtain
Wall Agreement, 2023 Tenancy Agreement A, 2023
Tenancy Agreement B, the 2023 Engineering Service
Agreement and 2023 Hazardous Waste Processing
Service Agreement expected that the continuing
connected transactions contemplated thereunder
would continue on an on-going basis, on 29
December 2023:

(i) Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall
entered into a new master supply agreement
("2024-2026 Xingfa Curtain Wall Master
Supply Agreement”) for a term of three years
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026
(both dates inclusive);

(ii) Guangdong Xingfa and Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group entered into a new master
supply agreement (2024 Guangdong Foreign
Trading Group Master Supply Agreement”) for
a term of one year from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 (both dates inclusive);
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(iii) Xingfa Henan and Henan Jingxing entered
into a new tenancy agreement (“2024 Henan
Tenancy Agreement”) for a fixed term of one
year from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024 (both dates inclusive);

(iv)  Xingfa Jiangxi and Jiangxi Jingxing entered
into a new tenancy agreement (“2024 Jiangxi
Tenancy Agreement”) for a fixed term of one
year from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024 (both dates inclusive);

(v) Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall
entered into a new service agreement (“2024-
2026 Engineering Service Agreement”) for a
term of three years from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2026 (both dates inclusive); and

(vi) Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Environmental
entered into a new service agreement (”2024-
2026 Hazardous Waste Processing Service
Agreement”) for a term of three years from
1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 (both
dates inclusive).

The terms and conditions (including the pricing
policies) of each of the 2024-2026 Xingfa Curtain
Wall Master Supply Agreement, 2024 Guangdong
Foreign Trading Group Master Supply Agreement,
2024 Henan Tenancy Agreement, 2024 Jiangxi
Tenancy Agreement, 2024-2026 Engineering Service
Agreement and 2024-2026 Hazardous Waste
Processing Service Agreement are substantially similar
to those of the Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement, 2023
Guangdong Foreign Trading Group Master Supply
Agreement, 2023 Tenancy Agreement A, 2023
Tenancy Agreement B, 2023 Engineering Service
Agreement and 2023 Hazardous Waste Processing
Service Agreement respectively. Further details of
the 2024 CCT Agreements were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 December
2023.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the following
connected transaction was non-exempt connected
transactions and was subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements. The following is a brief
description of the connected transaction:

Disposal of equity interest in/E X & & 57 B/ %7
52 Bz B IR 2 El(unofficial English translation
being Guangdong Guangxin Innovative
Research Centre Co., Ltd.) (“Guangxin
Research Centre”)

On 6 November 2024, Guangdong Xingfa, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, FSPG Hi-Tech Co.,
Ltd (“FSPG"”) and Star Lake Bioscience Co., Inc Zhaoging
Guangdong (“Star Lake Bioscience”) entered into the Equity
Transfer Agreement with Guangxin Holding. Pursuant to
the Equity Transfer Agreement, each of Guangdong Xingfa,
FSPG and Star Lake Bioscience agreed to sell and transfer
2.80% equity interest in the Guangxin Research Centre
and Guangxin Holding agreed to acquire and accept the
transfer of an aggregate of 8.40% equity interest in the
Guangxin Research Centre. The aggregate consideration
of the disposal amounts to approximately RMB33,559,390
(equivalent to approximately HK$36,579,735) and the
consideration of Guangdong Xingfa's disposal amounts to
approximately RMB11,186,463 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,193,245). As at the date of this report, Guangxin
Holding is indirectly holding 91.60% equity interest of the
Target Company. Upon completion of the disposal, the
Group ceased to hold any interest in the Guangxin Research
Centre.

The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as
the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all
the code provisions of the prevailing Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules for year ended
31 December 2024.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct (“Code of
Conduct”) regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After having
made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company has received
confirmations from all Directors that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Conduct for the Year.

The Company has also adopted procedures on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code in respect of the securities transactions of the
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force
and was in force throughout the Year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

No significant event has occurred after the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tomatsu
("Deloitte”).

Deloitte was appointed as the auditors of the Company following the
retirement of KPMG at the conclusion of the 2024 annual general
meeting of the Company. Save for the appointment of Deloitte,
there was no change in auditors of the Company for the preceding
three years. The consolidated financial statements for FY2024 were
audited by Deloitte and they have issued an unqualified opinion.
Deloitte shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the 2025 AGM. A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte
as auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix the
auditors’ remuneration will be proposed at the 2025 AGM.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

WANG Li
Chairman

Foshan China, 26 March 2025
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (“Corporate Governance
Code”) during the year ended 31 December 2024. In the opinion
of the Directors, the Company had complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate
governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise the interests of the
Shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2024.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code"”) as its own
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the year ended 31
December 2024.
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Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors. As
at the date of this report, the Board consisted of the
following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WANG Li (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuqing (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. ZHENG lJianhua (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 16 August 2024)

Mr. WANG Lei (redesignated as non-executive Director
on 16 August 2024)

Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO lJianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun

Ms. XIE Jingyun (resigned on 16 August 2024)

Mr. WANG Lei (redesignated as non-executive Director
on 16 August 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. WEN Xianjun

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses,
approving investment and strategic plans, maintaining
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, and monitoring the
performance of the Group. There are currently three
committees established under the Board, being the
audit committee, nomination committee and the
remuneration committee. Each committee has its
terms of reference and reports to the Board regularly.
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(iii)

Corporate Governance Report

In addition, the executive Directors, with the assistance
from the senior management, form the core
management team of the Company. The executive
Directors have the overall responsibility for formulating
the business strategies and development plan of the
Group and the senior management are responsible for
supervising and executing such plans of the Group.

Board meetings

During the Year, three full board meetings were held,
at which, among other matters:

— the Directors approved the annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 and reviewed the related results
announcement, annual report and the circular
to the Shareholders in relation, amongst
others, to the general mandate proposal and
re-election of the Directors retiring by rotation;

— the Directors approved the interim results
of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2024 and reviewed the related results
announcement; and

During the Year, the Board also discussed and
approved the Group's affairs by way of circulation of
written resolutions.

Prior notices convening the Board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters
to be discussed. At the Board meetings, the Directors
were provided with the relevant documents to be
discussed and approved. The company secretary of
the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of
the Board meetings.

(iii)
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(iv) Attendance record (iv)

The following is the attendance record of the
meetings held by the Board and general meeting held
during the year ended 31 December 2024:

Executive Directors: HITEE:

Mr. WANG Li (Chairman) ITUERE(EE)

Mr. LIAO Yuging (Chief Executive Officer) BEELLE (77HE)
Ms. ZHENG Jianhua (Chief Financial Officer)* EbZE4r+ (A1 48 8)#

Mr. WANG Lei#2 THEEER
Mr. LAW Yung Koon ERBRE
Mr. WANG Zhihua HEEE
Mr. LUO Jianfeng FrlELE
Non-executive Directors: FHITEE
Mr. ZUO Manlun TmtmEE
Ms. XIE Jingyun* WREL LS
Mr. WANG Lei* FEEEM

Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHITEE -

Mr. CHEN Mo BRERE A
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu MEERE
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy MEB LA
Mr. WEN Xianjun NEE R E
" (appointed on 16 August 2024)

# (redesignated as non-executive Director on 16 August 2024)
# (resigned on 16 August 2024)

”4 (redesignated as non-executive Director on 16 August 2024)
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Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive Directors. The Board considers that
all independent non-executive Directors have the
appropriate and sufficient industry or finance
experience and qualifications to carry out their duties
so as to protect the interests of shareholders of the
Company. In compliance with Rule 3.10 (2) of the
Listing Rules, one of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy, has over
30 years of experience in the accounting, banking
and finance sectors and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence with reference to
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considered that each of the independent
non-executive Directors, with a diverse business
and professional background as well as his in-depth
understanding of the Company’s operations and
business, have brought his valuable experience to the
Board and contributed to ensuring that the interests of
the Company’s shareholders were taken into account.
In assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, particular consideration is
paid to those independent non-executive Directors
who have been serving on the Board for more than
9 years and seeking re-election in the forthcoming
annual general meeting. When appropriate, reasons
will be given in the annual general meeting circular
to explain why the Board believes those independent
non-executive Directors are still independent and
should be re-elected.

By virtue of the above, the Board considers that all
four independent non-executive Directors as at the
date of this report, namely, Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO
Kwan Yiu, Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy and Mr. WEN
Xianjun were independent having regard to the
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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(vi)

(vii)

Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuging, an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, is the son-
in-law of Mr. LUO Su, the Honourable Adviser of
the Group. Save as aforesaid, there is no other
relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between any of the
Directors, the chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. All of the Directors are free to exercise
their independent judgement.

Continuous professional development

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Company has provided regular updates to Directors
on material changes to regulatory requirements
applicable to the Directors and the Company and on
the latest business development of the Company.
The Directors confirmed that they have complied with
code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. Every newly appointed
Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and full awareness
of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, all
Directors, namely Mr. WANG Li, Mr. LIAO Yuging, Ms.
ZHENG Jianhua, Mr. LAW Yung Koon, Mr. WANG
Zhihua, Mr. LUO Jianfeng, Mr. ZUO Manlun, Ms.
XIE Jingyun, Mr. WANG Lei, Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO
Kwan Yiu, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy, and Mr. WEN
Xianjun, have participated in continuous professional
development by reading materials to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in areas related to
their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics
related to aluminium industry, and provided their
respective record of training to the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated. The Chairman, Mr. WANG Li, is chiefly
responsible for managing the Board. Mr. LIAO Yuging is the
chief executive officer of the Company who takes charge of
the supervision of the execution of the policies determined
by the Board. The Chairman also chairs the Board meetings
and briefs the Board members on the issues discussed at the
Board meetings.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu and Mr. WEN
Xianjun has been appointed for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 4 August 2024 and Mr. LAM Ying Hung
Andy has been appointed for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2023.

Mr. ZUO Manlun has been appointed for a fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 April 2023 and Mr. WANG
Lei has been appointed for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 16 August 2024.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgement on the
issues discussed thereat.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the remuneration committee comprised Mr. HO Kwan
Yiu (chairman of the remuneration committee), Mr. CHEN
Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. WANG Li and
Mr. LIAO Yuging. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee are to review and make recommendations to
the Board on the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management. The remuneration committee shall also be
responsible for review and/or approve matters relating to
share option scheme of the Company. No share option has
been granted by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2024.
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It is the Company’s policy that the remuneration package of
each Director and senior management shall be determined
by reference to the duties, responsibilities, experience and
qualifications of each candidate.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no meeting
was held by the remuneration committee during the year
members of the remuneration committee members have
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of certain Directors.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the nomination committee comprised Mr. WANG Li
(chairman of the nomination committee), Mr. HO Kwan Yiu,
Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. ZUO
Manlun. The primary duties of the nomination committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the nominees
for appointment as Directors and senior management of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no meeting
was held by the nomination committee. During the Year,
members of the nomination committee have considered
matters relating to the re-election of Directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall
retire from the office and offer themselves for re-election.
The Directors to be retired by rotation shall be those who
have been longest in office since their last appointment. At
a full Board meeting held on 21 March 2024, the Directors
have reviewed the Directors who would retire at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2024 and
approved the recommendation of re-electing such Directors
at the aforesaid annual general meeting of the Company.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognizes and embraces the
benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board has adopted a
Board Diversity Policy (“Board Diversity Policy”) to comply
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
which was effective from 1 September 2013. The Company
believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors including,
but not limited to, skills, regional and industry experience
cultural and educational background, race, gender and
other qualities. In informing its perspective on diversity, the
Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The
composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board
retains core members with longstanding knowledge of the
Group alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to
time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to
the Board. The Board considers that gender diversity is vital
in order to achieve a diverse Board composition. To achieve
gender diversity within the Board, the Company’s objective is
to have at least 1 female director in the Board composition.
At present, out of the 12 Board members, 11 of them are
male and 1 of them is a female.
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The process for the nomination of Directors is led by the
nomination committee, which has been made on a merit
basis. A nomination policy (“Nomination Policy”) was
adopted on 31 December 2018 and became effective on
1 January 2019, which serves to improve the transparency
of the process and criteria in selecting and recommending
candidates as directors of the Company for the Board'’s
approval from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. The Directors and the nomination
committee will consider and nominate candidates according
to the Nomination Policy based on objective criteria with due
regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, to the Board for approval. In identifying
individuals and making recommendations for nominations,
the nomination committee considers whether such individuals
have the appropriate qualifications, ability and perspectives
that would enable them to effectively fulfill their roles and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. The Board will
review the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy
on a regular basis to ensure their continued effectiveness.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the nomination
committee was satisfied with the diversity of the existing
Board composition and did not, for the time being, set up
any measurable objective regarding board diversity.

The following sets out the gender distribution in the
workforce of the Group (including senior management):

Employment by gender

BRIl 2 IR
Male B
Female pegia

BERAK

Total number of employees
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POLICY IN RELATION TO INDEPENDENT
VIEWS AVAILABLE TO THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board
adopted the Policy in relation to Independent Views Available
to the Board which aims to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board.

The Policy in relation to Independent Views Available to the
Board served as a guideline on the requirements in relation
to independent non-executive Directors. The independent
non-executive Directors shall satisfy the independence criteria
under the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange. In this connection,
each independent non-executive Director is required to
confirm in writing to the Company his/her independence
upon his/her appointment as a director of the Company
with reference to the independence guidelines as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Each independent non-
executive Director is also required to inform the Company
and the Stock Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any
subsequent change of circumstances which may affect his/
her independence and must provide an annual confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company. An annual review
shall be conducted by the Company to assess the continuing
independence of independent non-executive Directors,
with attention to ensuring that they remain independent
in character and judgement, and continue to present an
objective and constructive challenge to the assumptions and
viewpoints presented by the management and the Board.

The implementation and the effectiveness of the Policy in
relation to Independent Views Available to the Board are
subject to review by the Board on an annual basis.
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H. REMUNERATION OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the range of remuneration payable to
the members of the senior management (other than the
Directors) of the Group is set out below:

Remuneration range

¥ E

Nil to RMB2,000,000
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000
RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000

I AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, Deloitte, the Group's
external auditors, provided annual audit services and other
non-audit services to the Company. A breakdown of the
remuneration of the Group’s external auditors is as follows

Audit service BRI
Annual audit services FEEZRE
Other non-audit services (among others, for H 3B AR 75

reviewing the interim financial information of
the Group)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference based upon the code provisions
and recommended practices of the Corporate Governance
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control systems of the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2024, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, members of the audit committee comprised Mr.
LAM Ying Hung, Andy (chairman of the audit committee),
Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, being the independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. WANG Lei being a non-
executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the audit
committee has held two meetings, at which:

— the audit committee members have reviewed and
discussed with the external auditors of the Company
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023, who is of the opinion
that such statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have
been made;

— the audit committee have reviewed the reasonableness
and fairness of the continuing connected transactions
of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023;

— the audit committee have reviewed and discussed about
the change of auditors and made recommendation to
the Board; and

— the audit committee members have reviewed and
discussed with the external auditors of the Company
the Group’'s unaudited consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2024.
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EXRELRS

The following is the attendance record of the meetings held
by the audit committee during the year ended 31 December
2024

LWTAEZZESREEZE-_2 _UF
+-A=t+—HIEFEETeR2HE
AOEE

Attendance at

meeting

SREER

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy MRIE R ST A4 5/5

Mr. CHEN Mo R K& 5/5

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu MEZLLE 3/5

Ms. XIE Jingyun (resigned on 16 August HREBELT (RZZE_MFNA+NBEE) 0/5
2024)

Mr. WANG Lei (appointed on 16 August ~ T&&E4E (R _Z-_MFENA+NBEZT) 0/5
2024)

DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2024.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective risk management and internal control
system of the Group. The Board has not established a risk
management committee. Instead, the full Board is responsible
for performing the risk management function, including
establishing and approving the overall risk management
strategies of the Group form time to time, overseeing senior
management’s implementation of those strategies to align
with the Company’s risk profile, overseeing risk management
framework structure, reviewing key risks and mitigation
strategies and ensuring risk management effectiveness.
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A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a
holistic risk management process. The bottom-up approach
is supported by key business units to identify and prioritise
risks while the top-down approach reviews and assesses if
risks are comprehensively identified, prioritised, and properly
addressed by key business units to accomplish the Group’s
objectives. The management team is regularly monitoring
emerging risks for continuous risk assessment purpose and
for building the risk-management based internal audit plan
and periodically assesses the adequacy and effectiveness
of risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk
assurance purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the
Group's risk and control framework.

The Group's risk management and internal control system
is designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group's assets,
prevent and detect fraud and protect shareholders’
investment as well as to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under review,
through discussions with the management, the internal audit
team and external auditors and with reference to a report
submitted by the internal audit team and a risk assessment
report prepared by a professional audit firm, the Board has
conducted assessments and reviews of the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
in various perspectives, including, among others, financial
control, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. The risk management and internal control
systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review
covers a whole financial year.
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The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated
to the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the
Group based on the strategic objectives analysis, business
flow analysis, risk assessment and performance evaluation
and the self-inspection mechanism with comprehensive risk
management functions under the authority of the Board and
the guidance of the audit committee. It regularly reports its
audit findings and recommendations on internal control to
the audit committee and the Board. The system is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems
and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the
Company continuously optimized job responsibilities and
functions of different departments according to the annual
audit plan approved by the Board. Such audit work covered
financial, operation, statutory compliance and connected
transactions, etc., of the Group. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and material internal controls
system. Based on information furnished to it and on its own
observations, the Board is satisfied with the present risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
considers them effective and adequate. During the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report, nothing has
been found which requires substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information
disclosure and regularly reminded Directors and employees
to properly comply with relevant policies on inside
information while notifying the Directors (who are also
the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such
information disclosure from time to time to keep all of them
abreast of the latest information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has taken up the corporate governance functions
in accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code and has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and compliance;
has reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company; has reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; reviewed and monitored
the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to employees of the Company and the Directors; and has
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code during the Year as well as the disclosures
in this Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Ho was the company secretary of the Company
("Company Secretary”). In performing his role as Company
Secretary, Mr. Pang directly reported to the Chairman. Mr.
Pang has confirmed that for the year under review, he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(i) Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Company’s articles of
association, any one or more shareholder(s) holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself(themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

M.

EREAHRE

(3Yay

EERRA

BEFEREOEB AT Z TGRS
A2V IRBBEBEEIAREE  WEREMA
RAPREANEO T E BRI ER
ERNEREERARASREEELZ
BIRBEERER  BEHREREAR
R TAEMREREZBRRRER
T ad 3 BRPE CHR ST R A BB AR 2
AREREFENAMFM  URFHA
RARAFREETEEERTRIZIEN
RREREARER ZHKE

RNEWE

EEREERARARAME (AR
ED) - RETERARAIMEZBER
ZRLERAEFERE - ZREERK
EREEFERI TIPS N2
HEE -

IR R R

() EBREMABIBRRASZE
FF

REBEARBZABEIZAAF64
i EA—BRA L ZRER - fi
RIERBERKBH - HARNREH
B (A BRI AN A A R
RELZEZER) IRt DZ
— RlERERAESSAAR
AMERREMENR  BERESR
SAMBRRFRIARE » AR Z
EXREPHEAZEAEE M
REBNRIZEBLERMEA
RETT - MR IERE ®ERKE21
B EFEREZREARZA
g AR ERZ AL A AR
ARABTERAE MAEEE
REEEERITEMEHIRH ER
ZATEEZFEREER &

Annual Report 2024 F 3 95



Corporate Governance Report
EEERHRE

96

(i)

(iii)

the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company. The written requisition must state
the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by
the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business, which is presently situated at Unit 605,
6/F, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Any shareholder enquiry
may be directed to the Board through the Company
Secretary by sending to the Company'’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited. Shareholders may send their enquiries
in respect of other matters to the Company by post
to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong or by email to dennispang@xingfa.com.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to put
forward proposals at the general meeting under
the Company’s articles of association or under the
Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above
to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.
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Dividend Policy

The Company adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
to enhance the transparency of the Company and to facilitate
its shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions relating to the Company. The Dividend Policy allows
shareholders to share the Company’s profits while reserving
sufficient reserves for the Group's future development.
Proposed dividends, if any, will be proposed and declared at
the discretion of the Board. When proposing any dividend
payment, the Board will take into consideration, among
others things, general financial position and strategies,
expected operating cash flows and capital requirements,
surplus, contractual restrictions of the Group, actual and
expected government financial conditions, macroeconomics
and such other factors as the Board may deem relevant from
time to time. Furthermore, any payment of dividend by the
Company is subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the articles of association of the Company.

Subject to the above factors, the final dividend to be declared
and paid by the Company shall be not less than 30% of
the Group’s audited consolidated profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Company in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed by the Board from time
to time and there is no assurance that any dividend will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period or that the
Company is obliged to declare any dividend at any time or
from time to time.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
(i) Constitutional documents

During the year under review, the Company did not
amend its constitutional documents.
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(i)

Shareholders’ communication policy

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy (“Shareholders’
Communication Policy”) which sets out the provisions
with the objective of providing shareholders of the
Company with ready, equal and timely information
on the Company for them to make informed
assessments of the Company's strategy, operations
and financial performance, and enabling them to
engage actively with the Company and exercise their
rights as shareholders in an informed manner. The
Board reviewed and considered the Shareholders’
Communication Policy was effective during the year
under review. The Shareholders’” Communication
Policy is available on the website of the Company at
"http://Awww.xingfa.com”.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

WANG Li
Chairman

Foshan China, 26 March 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRR 2B ZHETRS

Deloitte

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 107 to
214, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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FEMBHRR2BUZHMES

Key audit matters

REESEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FIEEBASTHEERERFNEELLE  RAEY
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated ~ ANEJ4RA M BERNBA R AEENEE - &
financial statements of the current period. These matters were LEFHRERMIBABBLEAUMERRLIE
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial —HEZ BEEITEEN - KT SYHELER
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we R EIBHE R o

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables not backed by bank bills

We identified the expected credit losses (“ECL"”) allowance for
trade receivables not backed by bank bills as a key audit matter
because the gross carrying amount of the trade receivables
not backed by bank bills and the related ECL allowance
are significant to the consolidated financial statements and
determining the level of the ECL allowance requires the exercise
of significant management judgement, which is inherently
subjective.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s gross trade receivables
not backed by bank bill amounted to RMB4,189,857,000,
against which an allowance of RMB1,094,199,000 for ECL was
recorded.

Management measures the ECL allowance for trade receivables
not backed by bank bills at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Management assessed the ECL allowance for credit-impaired
trade receivables not backed by bank bills individually, taking
into account the estimated future cash flows to be derived from
the collateralised assets, if any.

For remaining trade receivables not backed by bank bills, the
ECL allowance is measured using a provision matrix, which
involves the use of estimated loss rates for each category of
trade receivables not backed by bank bills which are grouped
according to ageing profiles. The estimated loss rates take into
account the historical observed default rates of the debtors
taking into consideration of the forward-looking information
that is reasonable, supportable and available without undue
costs or effort.

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance
for trade receivables not backed by bank bills
included the following:

e Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design and implementation of relevant controls
relating to estimating the ECL allowance;

e Evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating the
ECL allowance with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standard;

e Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables not backed by bank bills at year end,
including their identification of credit-impaired
trade receivables not backed by bank bills, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of
the remaining trade receivables not backed
by bank bills into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision
matrix (with reference to historical observed
default rates and forward-looking information);

e For credit-impaired trade receivables not backed
by bank bills, evaluating if managements
estimation of cash flows to be derived from the
collateralised assets (if any) with reference to
market information;

100 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED. S 5% §2 3£ 122 a5 R /A =




Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key audit matters (Continued)
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FEMBHRR2BUZHMES

Key audit matters (Continued)

FEREETEE®)

Key audit matter (Continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables not backed by bank bills (Continued)

The details are set out in Notes 3.2(v), 4 and 30(a) to the | e
consolidated financial statements.

Testing the accuracy of the ageing analysis of
a selection of the trade receivables not backed
by bank bills by tracing to the supporting
evidence;

Testing and retrospective reviewing the
accuracy of the estimated loss rates and
evaluating whether the estimated loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on forward-
looking information.

MEETSEEE)

EMNESFNNEERRETSEE)

WERITRBZIFHIXE BN B R EEERE ()

BN AR A M IS IHRAFE3.2(v) ~ 4530(a) °

BBEPERAXFAABOLERITRES
Fr R 5 e Wk IR AR i 0 AT B0 R RE A

ESSVEC IR P R E S I
f 1B 1R S 2 75 4R R AT R T
B -

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 21 March
2024.

Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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n‘l'.R

Other information (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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FEMBHRR2BUZHMES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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SEMBHRR2BULZHMEES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the
audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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FEMBHRR2BUZHMES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Chi Hong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2025
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables

Finance costs
Share of loss of an associate

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share, in RMB
Basic

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

. =
HelEER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ T _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

EES ]
HEMRA

E7

H ez

H s o g5 18
7 SHAAR
TTHRRFX

X5 REMERFERERE

BUR IO

DME—EEE A

BR Bt Al % A
PS5 B 5

FEEN

THATEMEEF :

ZAYNCIE/ 2SN
IR 2R

BREN(ARET)

YN

Notes

et

6(a)
6(b)

10

13

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R#517R)

2023

—E_=F

RMB'000

AERETFT

18,854,641 17,352,551
(17,090,943) (15,362,349)
1,763,698 1,990,202
200,851 193,658
20,571 (21,040)
(399,438) (374,054)
(447,887) (439,264)
(67,883) (293,204)
(104,558) (138,056)
- (1,919)
965,354 916,323
(137,259) (108,222)
828,095 808,101
826,033 804,171
2,062 3,930
828,095 808,101
1.96 1.91
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L ] =
HGeoEakHttZEmIRER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ T _NF+_-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R#517R)

Profit for the year FERF

Other comprehensive income for the year: FE Hth 2 U= :

Items that will not be reclassified to profit ¥ A EEH S EEEHE ZEE :
or loss:

Exchange differences on translation from N EEREZ 20N EEEEN
functional currency to presentation currency [ 7 Z=%a

Fair value (losses) gains on equity investments &2 FEFT AHE 2 E (1A
at fair value through other comprehensive FEFAHMEE Y] /AR
income (“FVTOCI"), net of related income KENRFE(BE) ke - 1k
tax EE R

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to E & Al i E# 7 2 Eas 2 HH -
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign & SIS 2 [E 5 =58
operations

Total other comprehensive (expenses) FEHME2E X)) WREH
income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year FEZH Uz

Total comprehensive income attributable T3 A LHEEEENEELEE :
to:

Owners of the Company VN/NEIEZ SN
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR
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2023

—E-=F

RMB'000

AR¥For

828,095 808,101
134,209 81,699
(1,581) 3,112

132,628 84,811
(133,465) (81,498)
(837) 3,313
827,258 811,414
825,196 807,484
2,062 3,930
827,258 811,414




Consolidated Statement of Financiql Position

e R IEIRR R

At 31 December 2024 ﬁfgfﬂng A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R#517R)

31 December

2023
—_— ? ——ﬂz
+—A=+—8H
Notes RMB'000
B it AEREFor
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties B 14 197,920 193,580
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 14 3,562,266 3,303,653
3,760,186 3,497,233
Right-of-use assets EREESE 15 447,164 465,218
Intangible assets B EE 3,823 2,586
Equity securities designated at FVTOCI  $§E AR A FEAEMEE
W25 B IR AN 78 5 17 23,462 36,508
Derivative financial instruments MESMTE 6,957 4,315
Prepayments SN S 20 72,700 31,432
Deferred tax assets RIETHIRE E 27 214,098 201,919
4,528,390 4,239,211
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 1,654,256 1,362,123
Trade and other receivables RS K EH b e WG IE 19 5,281,970 4,191,085
Prepayments SN S 20 155,702 107,102
Pledged deposits [EERicE 21 196,062 124,250
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEY 21 2,726,060 2,840,415
10,014,050 8,624,975
Non-current assets held for sale BIELEZIERBEE - 2,040
10,014,050 8,627,015
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables R 5 N E A FER 58 22 5,230,340 3,822,213
Contract liabilities EHAE 23 349,002 382,413
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 24 627,019 499,590
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,995 2,518
Tax liabilities MIEBE 37,716 88,201
6,246,072 4,794,935
Net current assets RBEEFE 3,767,978 3,832,080
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABAE 8,296,368 8,071,291
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FEEMFIRR

At 31 December 2024 R-—Z-NE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R#517R)
Notes
Hiat
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other borrowings WITRAMEER 24
Lease liabilities HEAE
Deferred income PEIEYA 25
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE & 27
Net assets BEEFE
Capital and reserves IR 2 % k4
Share capital N 28
Reserves &
Total equity attributable to ARARHEEABLERER
owner of the Company
Non-controlling interests FEERRER
Total equity SR

The consolidated financial

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

March 2025.

31 December

2023

—E =
+=-—A=+—8H

RMB'000

AR Fr

2,250,332 2,647,902
331 3,537
117,570 66,118
20,675 27,903
2,388,908 2,745,460
5,907,460 5,325,831
3,753 3,753
5,894,122 5,314,555
5,897,875 5,318,308
9,585 7,523
5,907,460 5,325,831

statements on pages 107 to 214 were F107EZF2M4ENEEHBEHEE N ==

“HEZA-tNBEEFSRERRETIE -

Wang Li Liao Yuging
Ehva BEXEE

Chairman Executive Director
FE HITEF
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At1 January 2023

Profit for the year

Exchange differences

Fair value gain on equity investments at FVTOCI

Total comprehensive income for the year

Appropriation to reserves
Dividend recognised as distrbution (Note 28(0))

At31 December 2023

Profit for the year
Exchange differences
Fair value losses on equity investments at FVTOCI

Disposal of equity investment of FVTOCI

Total comprehensive income for the year

Appropriation to reserves
Dividend recognised as distribution (Note 28(0))

At 31 December 2024

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FoESEER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ T _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR ¥ FIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADAREARE
Non-
Shares Share Capital Other Statutory Exchange FvT0C Retained controlling Total
Capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserves reserve eamings Total interests equity
RATEFA
Afe2ERE

B BfE  EABRE RMER  ERER ERER 2ff REEA gt HERES L L
MBI AMBUR AMBON AMBOM  AMBOMO  AVBUMO  AUBUMD  AUBUM  AUBUW  AUBUW  AVBUID
ABRTE  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ

R-%-=£-5-A 3753 14839 6,354 20980 406470 2059 2% 387876 4651871 3593 4655464
ERRT - - - - - - - 804,171 804,171 3930 808,101
EfEE - - - - - 0 - - 0 - 201
BATEALM2ERANRERE

HAFERE - - - - - - 311 - 3112 - 311
FEREMREE - - - - - 01 311 804,171 807484 3930 811414
ERE - - - - 74% - - (749%) - - -
B2AAKZRE (ri28p) - - - - - - - (141,007 (141,047) - (141,047)
it St g 4 3753 148239 6,354 20980 413,966 260 40 458504 5318308 153 53581
ERRA - - - - - - - 826,033 826,033 2,062 826,095
EXZE - - - - - i - - 744 - 4
RAMEALMR ERANRERE

HATEEE - - - - - - (1,581) - (1,581) - (1,581)
HERATEIHAL B2 EMEN

gk’ - - - - - - B 3 - - -
ERENREE - - - - - 7l (1588) 826036 825,19 2,062 821,258
SRZEE - - - - 798 - - (7.982) - - -

KR8 (ias) - - - - - - - (245,629) (245,629) - (245,629)

R=B=mE+=A=t-8 3753 148,239 6,354 209822 41,948 3,004 3826 5100929 5897875 9,585 5907460
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FRRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ T _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A REEFI7R)

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation
Write down of inventories
Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables
Impairment loss on prepayments for
properties
Finance costs
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and other assets
Share of loss of an associate
Gain on disposal of an associate
Changes in fair value of other derivative
financial instruments and forward
exchange contracts
Net foreign exchange gain
Government grants amortised from
deferred income

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables

(Increase) decrease in prepayment

Increase (decrease) in trade and other
payables

(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Dividend withholding tax paid

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") paid

Net cash from operating activities

BEED
BR3¢ AT A 7
ETIIBERE
e
H
R 5 R E B RRERE

MEBNFRBREESR

TR

FEHA

HEDE « BE RREAREMD
BEMNEE

NIE—RBE AR

HE— R E QR

HitnfT4E @ p T A RRHISNE

A2 ATEED
SN B B

BTN 2 B R Rh

il

FE (MR
22 5 J Bt R IR (35 0) Bl

RS FOE R B
R 5 K E M A HORE I OB )

BRAECHD) B
XGRS
BERNAEH

ERBSERH
B LR ET ([LisER])

BEZDHEHLFR

112 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LINITED H1%% 42 £ 132 par BR /A =)

2023
o=

RMB'000

AREFT

965,354 916,323
578,806 470,310
1,062 412
3,000 38,107
67,883 293,204

- 23,224
104,558 138,056
(46,070) (63,220)
370 14,880

- 1,919
(12,960) =
(2,642) 7,643
(1,938) (1,844)
(5,609) (9,895)
1,651,814 1,829,119
(295,133) 68,777
(1,174,768) 234,012
(48,600) 56,455
1,522,459 (584,102)
(33,411) 3,896
1,622,361 1,608,157
(193,260) (131,537)
(13,500) (10,000)
(111) (13)
1,415,490 1,466,607




Investing activities

Interest received

Payment for purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Placement of pledged deposits

Proceeds from government grants for
property, plant and equipment acquisition

Proceeds received upon maturity of pledged
deposits

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Payment for purchase of unlisted equity
securities

Payment for deposit of commodity futures
contracts

Refund from deposit of commodity futures
contracts

Proceeds from disposal of an associate

Repayment of loans from an associate

Proceeds from disposal of equity investments
at FVTOCI

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Payment of lease liabilities

Payment of interest on lease liabilities
Interest paid

Additions of bank and other borrowings
Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Dividends paid to owners of the Company

Net cash (used in) generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= 325 =
GeaREeRE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ T _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes

i3

R&EEH
BB
BEME  BELREZFE

FREEREFR
RBEYE - BE &
BEEV RS UR
REERFREPEERAERR

RIBH BT

HEWE  BE RREMEHR
BEIF L MRARESF I

AmBEANEE IR

& — = R B FSSUE
RE—FRkEARERER 33(b)
HERAFEFARGZE

Yok BRI B PTG 308 17

REZBFAMAREFE
MEEE
MEREBEZIR
MEREME I
ERFE
HERITREMER
BERTIAMBEER
ENARAEEAZKE

MEED (A R FR
RERASEEY (BD) BMFEE

R-—A-—BNRESRREEEY
Exgs o FE

RtZA=+t-BHNRERASE
&N

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥%17R)

2023

—T=F

RMB'000

ARETFT

46,070 63,220
(955,826) (980,917)
(2,045,554) (2,022,764)
49,931 -
1,973,742 2,123,250
4,802 4,826
- (27,516)
- (2,000)

- 5,200

15,000 —
16,000 —
11,186 =
(884,649) (836,701)
(3,729) (2,293)
(161) (321)
(128,217) (146,135)
1,993,593 2,771,236
(2,263,734) (2,122,750)
(245,629) (141,047)
(647,877) 358,690
(117,036) 988,596
2,840,415 1,849,773
2,681 2,046
2,726,060 2,840,415
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n'K

B I Rk EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B EHEASN - BRBEUAREIIR)

114

General information

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to
the annual report.

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD"). The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are manufacturing and sale of
aluminium products and sale of completed properties. As the
operation of the Group’s subsidiaries are principally conducted
in the PRC, consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB").

Application of new and amendments to
IFRS Accounting Standards

Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first

time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual

period beginning on 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7 and
IFRS 7

The application of the amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group'’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Application of new and amendments to 2
IFRS Accounting Standards (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification
and IFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?
Amendments to IFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature-
and IFRS 7 dependent Electricity?
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to IFRS Annual Improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards —
Volume 113
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements*

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

Except for the new IFRS Accounting Standard mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e BT IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHAN
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HEAAREIIR)

Application of new and amendments to
IFRS Accounting Standards (continued)

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

IFRS 18, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements. This new IFRS Accounting
Standard, while carrying forward many of the requirements
in IAS 1, introduces new requirements to present specified
categories and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or
loss; provide disclosures on management-defined performance
measures in the notes to the financial statements and improve
aggregation and disaggregation of information to be disclosed
in the financial statements. In addition, some IAS 1 paragraphs
have been moved to IAS 8 and IFRS 7. Minor amendments to
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IAS 33 Earnings per Share
are also made.

IFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation of
the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the future
financial statements. The Group is in the process of assessing
the detailed impact of IFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
issued by the IASB. For the purpose of preparation
of consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

me
g

3.1

3.2

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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HEAAREIIR)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

Basis of preparation of consolidated 3 BEUNBBRRZEHREERE
financial statements and material REFBRER @
accounting policy information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EXRSTHBERER#E)

(Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales
of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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GREUBBRRIEREERE
REFTBERER #)

Basis of preparation of consolidated 3
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment,
in an associate or joint venture, the investment or the
portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use
of the equity method in relation to the portion that
is classified as held for sale from the time when the
investment (or a portion of the investment) is classified as
held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

Basis of preparation of consolidated 3 BEUNBBRRZEHREERE
financial statements and material REFBRER @
accounting policy information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EXRSTHBERER#E)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAAW s (&)

(Continued)

A refund liability represents the Group’s obligation
to offer cash rebate to a customer when the sales
volume reach certain amount, and it is included in other
payables.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception
of the contract. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of motor vehicles and properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including

in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever the lease term has changed, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers to assess whether sale
and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by the

Group.

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that does not satisfy the requirements as a
sale, the Group as a seller-lessee continues to recognise
the assets and accounts for the transfer proceeds
as borrowings within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated 3
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EXRSTHBERER#E)
(Continued)
Government grants BRFHERE

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivables
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
income”.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current
and deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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GREUBBRRIEREERE
REFBERER #)

Basis of preparation of consolidated 3
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax basis used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated 3 BEUNBBRRZEHREERE
financial statements and material REFBRER @
accounting policy information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EXRSTHBERER#E)

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the lease liabilities and
the related assets separately. The Group recognises a
deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can
be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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GREUBBRRIEREERE
REFBERER #)

Basis of preparation of consolidated 3
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (continued)

for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and machinery in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
the management, including costs of testing whether the
related assets is functioning properly and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy. Sale proceeds of items that
are produced while bringing an item of property, plant
and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management (such as samples produced when testing
whether the asset is functioning properly), and the
related costs of producing those items are recognised in
the profit or loss. The cost of those items are measured
in accordance with the measurement requirements of
IAS 2 Inventories. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated 3 BEUNBBRRZEHREERE
financial statements and material REFBRER @

accounting policy information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EXRSTHBERER#E)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued) W% BERRE(E)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
s “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties also include leased properties
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets and
subleased by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.
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GREUBBRRIEREERE
REFBERER #)

Basis of preparation of consolidated 3
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Properties for sale are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
specific identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales. Costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated 3 BEUNBBRRZEHREERE
financial statements and material REFBRER @
accounting policy information (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EXRSTHBERER#E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments @I A
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised THEENEREBERNEEEREX

when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost as measured at fair value through profit
or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to retained
earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group'’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated at
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, pledged deposits
and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.
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HEAAREIIR)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables is assessed
individually for debtors with credit-impaired and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based primarily on the debtors’ ageing
profiles.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

3 an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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HEAAREIIR)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;
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HEAAREIIR)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

()  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group uses
a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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HEAAREIIR)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables and other receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements and material
accounting policy information (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
bank and other borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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HEAAREIIR)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following is the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

ECL allowance for trade receivables not backed by
bank bills

The ECL on trade receivables not backed by bank bills is
assessed individually for debtors with credit-impaired and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings
based primarily on the debtors’ ageing profiles.

The estimated loss rates applied in the provision matrix are
estimated based on the historical observed default rates of the
debtors taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable, supportable and available without undue
costs or effort. At the end of each reporting period, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and updated if
required after considering the forward-looking information that
is available to the directors of the Company.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

4

EEt R EENEERIR

RERAASESTHRE  ARAEFA
FLARBEN B ORI B B M BER AR
[ B HI T~ (R RRER (et R AE R
P“Eﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁﬁﬁm&uﬁ%ﬁ@

FIEEIES - B AR A A BIR LS
5o

3t AR R R S R - REHEE 2
TR RS AT E MR (IS ST R

HAfRD) A& BT H ) e R 2R HAE (R 18 5T &7
£ B Al MR K HARD) RERR o

NTREMBEZZTZBRENBEHR
AET TR EM R EERIR - ATgEE
BN —VBREEEERABZREEARF

HERARZERRER -
FEBITRBFNRZ BRFTENTE
MEEBERE

W EBITRIB IR 5 R YGRIANTAH

EEBREIEREERENEEAET
ﬂﬁﬁﬁ&/&%#%%AM%%ﬁ%ﬁ
RABEE D AN BEREE THRE -
BREBEEMERNGFTERRTERBE
BRNEBANROX HARAGERX
FrE AR BRIEE N B ERAHE HENA]
ERHREEERETE - RERED
R RBEBEARBDESAESHAELEE
B - BEBRNENRABTHELE
W



Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty 4 fHETFAMEENTERERE
(Continued)
ECL allowance for trade receivables not backed by WHEBTERBEIFNRZEWRENE
bank bills (Continued) HEEEBEREE)
The allowance for credit losses is sensitive to changes in EEEEBESETTESEE R - RE
estimates. At the end of each reporting period, the historical REMR BEHEENENEGEHNT
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the B EEEAMEEERNNE L - RZF
forward-looking information are considered. At 31 December “WHEFZA=1T—H WERTERE
2024, the gross carrying amounts of trade receivables XRENRZERARIBNREERESAR
not backed by bank bills is RMB4,189,857,000 (2023: #4 189,857,000 (ZE - =F : AR
RMB3,384,201,000) (net of allowance for expected credit 3,384,201,0007T) (AZ 40 TEHA{E B B 18 5
losses of RMB1,094,199,000 (2023: RMB1,033,451,000). The 1# AR %1,094,199,0007T (Z T = =4 :
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables AR #1,033,451,0007T)) - BATEHEE
not backed by bank bills are disclosed in Note 30. EBEEANEBWERITREZ O S ME
R IE ) B KRR B 5130 B8 o
Revenue and segment reporting 5 KaksHRE
(a) Revenue (@) %Xz
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing AEBZ FEXBRBERIHER
and sale of aluminium products and sale of completed AMRIBEERTIYE - BHEAE
properties. Further details regarding the Group’s principal BErEXBES 2 E—FFBEHE
activities are disclosed in Note 5(b). FABE EES(o) ©
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers REZEMARBERE D Z2EFE
by major products or service lines is as follows: AW AT
2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
AR®FIT
Revenue from contracts with REHEEFESH KRG
customers
Disaggregated of products or service % 2= i sk AR 75 4R 2l 7 2 B8 41
lines
— Sales of aluminium profiles —HE R 18,535,655 16,764,600
— Sales of aluminium panels, —EEmR  mee  KAER
aluminium alloy, moulds and T
Spare parts 315,292 585,582
— Revenue from processing service  — 1L ARFE A #9 Uz
contracts - 2,369
— Sales of completed properties —HEERIME 3,694 =
18,854,641 17,352,551
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(BE=EHERIN  BEAARBIIR)

5
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Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)

The Group's customer base is diversified and does not
include any individual customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue (2023: Nil).

For sales of aluminium products for which the control of
the product is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when control of goods has transferred, being
when the customer accepts the products. The normal
credit term is disclosed in Note 19.

For sale of property for which the control of the property
is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment
and the collection of the consideration is probable.

The performance obligation under the contracts for
the sales of products has original expected duration of
less than one year and as permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts
is not disclosed.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
markets is disclosed below.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

5

Wz K o3 BB 5 (4)

(@) E=XF|#E)

AEEEFPERZ T/ BXTE
BRZEAEEWRBEBI0%ZE
ENEP (ZF_=F &) -

HRERXR - RKHBBEREHIED
MERHE  WEtEsmiEdlES
BoEFPEMEMKER - LH
EEHRME19WE -

HRMEHE  EMROEHIEE
X—RHEBE WAERFPERS
RTYRMITHIE AR EERE
R R B AT BE I [ B RERR o

EmHEANETHROAEERR
HYPRIR—F > AREBERMH
HEEAEISRAAFT - DEEZ
FREXNADNR HER N TIHEE -

m SRR R A RRR TS E
ZEPEAWERN N TXKE



Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

5 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by product lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which the information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following reportable segments.

o Industrial aluminium profiles: this operating and
reportable segment manufactures and sells plain
aluminium profiles, mainly for industrial usage.

o Construction aluminium profiles: this operating
and reportable segment manufactures and sells
aluminium profiles with surface finishing, including
anodic oxidation aluminium profiles, electrophoresis
coating aluminium profiles, powder coating
aluminium profiles and PVDF coating aluminium
profiles. Construction aluminium profiles are widely
used in architecture decoration.

o All other segments: this reportable segment
including the revenue generated from processing
service contracts related to aluminium products,
sale of aluminium panels, aluminium alloy, moulds
and spare parts, sale of office premises and
residential properties.

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

AEELEMRERRLER -1KH
ARAEEZHHTEEABRIZ
HERAETERD B R ERETE
—HZHA AREEZ5ITHA

WEDE -

© TERAM : ZEERTRS
D EB B S N SHE %%ﬂﬁ *
EREIXRZ

o EEIPAN : ZEBRAIRE
DERBIE K S E R MR IR IR
AN BIERS R E LSRR -
TR EIRAN - BARERR
AU 2 PVDFIE 2 $R A i o FB SR
SRAVM B R SRR -

o FTAEMOE: ZAIREDT

@?ﬁﬁéu%*ﬁ%ﬁbul AR5 A

% %%ﬁﬁ Ae KA

ZEF %&%“*%iﬁ
E%%%FEZWA°

g
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(BR=BEBIN

HEAAREIIR)

5 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 5 WakosHHEE)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7HHE &)
(i) Segment results () DEFEE
For the purposes of assessing segment performance BT SENETE Ko S
and allocating resources between segments, BRDEC - NEBE RS RNT
the Group’s most senior executive management BIE A BIgLA T B AR B IR
monitors the results attributable to each reportable RIS D EPEN 24 -
segment on the following basis:
Revenue are allocated to the reportable segments W T2 EZE D EEEZ
with reference to sales generated by those fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂi—fﬂ#&% o AR
segments. The measure used for reporting segment WED RN A EARNRE
profit is gross profit. The Group’s most senior %'J AEESRFEATEEA
executive management is provided with segment SR MHE 5 BB R EA
information concerning segment revenue and ZNEER c HWEER AR
gross profit. Segment assets and liabilities are not I 4% 7E BATAI AN 55 B B = AR AT
reported to the Group’s most senior executive BEEABRE -
management regularly.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable REBEE_T_NEFR-_FT=
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior iJr A=+—HIFEER
executive management for the purposes of HEER S EEBE IS - W\
resource allocation and assessment of segment AEEGeANTEREAER
performance for the years ended 31 December HeBEAAKERES 2
2024 and 2023 is set out below: BRI :
Industrial Construction
aluminium profiles aluminium profiles All other segments Total
TEERN BEER ik @it
2023 2023 2023 2023
ot S . St ot it . St
RVB000 RMB000 FMB000 FMB000
ARETT ARETT NEETT NEETT
Revenue from extenal ~ WE-EB% R
customers recognised by  ZREHREF
point in time ¢ 1914451 2642811 16621204 14,121,789 318,986 587951 18,854,641 17,352,551
Reportable segment profit %% 4457
(Gross profit £ 72,299 151610 1539299 1619793 152,100 218799 1,763,698 1,990,202
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FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 5

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Reconciliations of reportable segment
profit

Wz K o3 BB 5 (4)

(b) 7 ERHRE (&)

(i) &7 Eba R 2 H ik

2023
—E=F
RMB'000
AR For
Reportable segment profit derived ~ RE ANEBINREF Z Al 5RE
from the Group’s external 73 #B A
customers 1,763,698 1,990,202
Other income HAb YA 200,851 193,658
Other gains and losses H o e o E51E 20,571 (21,040)
Distribution costs 7 §H KA (399,438) (374,054)
Administrative expenses THRX (447,887) (439,264)
Impairment losses on trade and R 5 R EAM EWFIBREEE
other receivables (67,883) (293,204)
Finance costs BTSN (104,558) (138,056)
Share of loss of an associate DE— BB & A B & - (1,919)
Consolidated profit before taxation BR%iAT4AR & % Al 965,354 916,323

Geographic information

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results as well
as analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of non-
current assets by geographical market has not
been presented as over 97% (2023: 98%) of the
revenue are generated from the mainland China
and over 99% (2023: 99%) of the non-current
assets are located in mainland China.

(iii) HEZF

jtﬂ%ﬂzk%l%ﬁim@ﬁi@u
D2 Wam R EE DA R E
lih.éﬁé?‘ﬁéﬁ{ﬁz DT
BEA®BT% (B - =4
98% ) Z Wz g2k B B At
T i199% (—F = =4 : 99%)
ZIERE A EMN R AL -
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(BR=BEHAN

HEIAARETIR)

6 Other income and other gains and losses

150

(a) Other income

Interest income

Government grants

— Unconditional subsidies

— Conditional subsidies

Income from additional value-added

A BHA
B RE
— IR RRG
— B IR RRG

6

BHMEB(ED (IEER]) R

tax (“VAT") input deduction (7) HIB U A
Rental income He A
Others HAth
(i) Income from additional VAT input deduction represented the

deduction on VAT input granted by the government authorities in

the PRC.

(b) Other gains and losses

Net foreign exchange gain

Changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and other assets

Gain on disposal of an associate (/)

SN 24T

FESRIAY ATES

HtWAURHEM KSR ER
(@) EHawA

2024 2023

—E_mF ==
RMB’000 RMB'000

ANRBETFTT ARBFor
46,070 63,220
15,308 15,978

5,609 9,895
120,152 88,850

13,712 15,815
- (100)
200,851 193,658

(b)

HEME BB MR EAR

Hib B EZE1R

& — R A Rz Y

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED J 3% $5 3£ 12 B F R AR

(i) FROME BB BRI A TR R BB
BRI T BB (B RHR ©

Htt = R EE
2024 2023
—ENEF —E_=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR For
5,339 1,483
2,642 (7,643)
(370) (14,880)

12,960 -
20,571 (21,040)




Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

6 Other income and other gains and losses
(Continued)

(b) Other gains and losses (Continued)

@)

On 29 December 2023, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of 40% interest in Guangdong Xingfa Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Environmental”) to Yongbao
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of China Lesso
Group Holdings Limited) at a cash consideration of RMB15 million.
Before the disposal, the Group owned 40% interest in Xingfa
Environmental and the investment was previously accounted
for as an investment in an associate using the equity method of
accounting. As at 31 December 2023, the disposal transaction
has not yet been completed, the Group discontinued the use
of the equity method over its interest in Xingfa Environmental
and classified the carrying amount of its interest in Xingfa
Environmental amounted to RMB2,040,000 as “non-current
assets held for sale”. During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the disposal transaction has been completed.

n'.R

B I ER AR B 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

6 HMWAUKRHEMEZERER

(&
(b)

Hft s R 18 (42)

RZT=-Z=F+=-A=+hB K&

Bl — % UEEREARE
15EBILRKERREERHERA
7] (P B E B S EERR A IR 2 A) 2 [
BAR) HEHNERBEZRERZE
RAaE ([FEIRE]) M40%Ea o 1
& Z Al NS E A FLE R 540%
Wi MZRE SRS R
EARIERBMARNRZIRE - HRZF
=+ A=+—H HERHH
KREK  AEBEERERFEHERRN
W2 L E MRS A - WG H A F R
IR 3% /9 25 BR B A R $52,040,0007T
PERIFELENERDEE] - 1
HE-_ZT-_MF+-A=+—HIL*F
E R ERSHB MK °

This transaction has resulted in the Group recognising a gain of R 5EHAREBER BRI A
RMB 12,960,000 in profit or loss, calculated as follows: R#512,960,0007T * 5HE AT :

RMB'000

ARMFr

Cash proceeds &S KIE 15,000

Less: carrying amount of the 40% investment on the date of & : R EYEHEIRIFE KT E N B H
loss of significant influence of Xingfa Environmental 40%I&E M REE (2,040)
Gain recognised in profit or loss RE s HER A W R 12,960
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AR B 35 8 R MY 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RS EHEAS - ERUAREDTR)

7 Impairment losses on trade and other 7 RBRHEHMERRBERESE
receivables

2024 2023
—E_-NF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR For ARBFr
Provision of impairment losses on LA B IEREBE 2 B &
— trade receivables () — R 5 W GRIA() 67,648 293,138
— other receivables —E b W IR 235 66
67,883 293,204
(i) Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 30. i) B R E 2 FEIB A MIEE30 ©
8 Finance costs 8 HBHA
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR Fr ARMFr
Interest expenses on bank and other RITREMEEZF S
borrowings 98,931 92,967
Interest expenses on discounted bills BRIIRRIE 2 RIS K&
and trade receivables R 5 EWFRIE 17,294 50,543
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 161 321
Total interest expenses B 2%E 116,386 143,831
Less: interest expenses capitalised into &, : IATEIE T2 & ALAY
construction in progress N3 (11,828) (5,775)
104,558 138,056
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Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after
charging:

Staff costs

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Total staff cost

Depreciation of investment properties

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services
— other services

Cost of inventories sold (7)
Research and development costs (77)

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

9

BRI AT A J5F0RR A N B IRIZTS

B TR A
0] S FUR KB FET 814 3

¥& TERHMER

REMEFTE
W% - BERREBITE

ERREENE
B B RO 5N

ZEETIN
— B 2R
— B Al iR 5

BEEFERAN)
LN

(i) Cost of inventories sold included RMB913,397,000 (2023:
RMB1,113,899,000) relating to depreciation and staff costs, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed

separately above for each of these types of expenses, and included
RMB3,000,000 (2023: RMB38,107,000) and Nil (2023: RMB23,224,000)
relating to write down of inventories — completed properties for sale

(Note 18) and impairment loss on prepayments for properties (Note 20),

respectively.

(ii) Research and development costs included RMB196,265,000 (2023:
RMB188,131,000) relating to staff costs of employees and depreciation

expenses, which amount is also included in the respective total amounts

disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses.

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

BR B Al 3

2023

—E-—F

RMB 000

ARMFor

104,756 94,010
1,083,561 1,003,189
1,188,317 1,097,199
5,802 5,472
559,028 451,509
13,976 13,329
1,062 412
1,450 2,052
1,518 920
16,251,382 14,553,923
839,561 808,426

EEGERAREENTEREIRAGHZ
AR¥913,397,0007 T (ZZT=Z=F: AR¥
1,113,899,0007T) ' #Z & BIFE 5T A EXHH
FRSENRAIAE  IBMATFE-B%
TrREEWE (Ma18) R ETE N RIE R EE
18 (K5£20) 7 BllEH A A R #3,000,0007T (=
—=%: AR¥38,107,000t) RE(ZZE ==
& AR¥E23,224,0007T) °

PEREF A ERAEEEE I ARITER
X EM2 AR¥196,2650007T (Z B - =4 :
AR #188,131,000T) ' x & FINE T A EX
DHABESENFAST R -
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AR B 35 8 R MY 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHAN

HEIAARETIR)

10 Income tax expense

10

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents:

Current tax

Provision for PRC corporate income tax
Provision for Hong Kong Profits tax
PRC dividend withholding tax

Under provision in prior years

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary

Effect on distribution of dividends

differences (Note 27)

(Note 27)

IR GE R
TREIMRMEHES
FRNEHEE

T B AR S TR
REEFERETR

IEFEBL IR

BBy 2 RREE A S B[l (f2227)

BENIRKFE (H1i27)

154 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED. B5% 555 22 fa 5 PR A F)

FRi8BiBa %
() REEEBERAZHIESR:
2024 2023
—E-ME —F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEHTF T
132,869 148,729
365 137
13,500 10,000
9,652 -
156,386 158,866
(5,627) (40,644)
(13,500) (10,000)
137,259 108,222




Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

10 Income tax expense (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before taxation

Tax at the average income tax rate of
24.41% (2023: 24.66%) (iii)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of share of loss of an
associate

Effect of tax concessions

Super deduction on research and
development expenses in respect of
prior year (v)

Effect of withholding on undistributed
profits retained by PRC subsidiaries
(iv)

Under provision in prior years

Income tax expense

v'.R

B I ER AR B 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=HEEAIN

10 FREHAX

(b)

BEAARKETITR)

REARRTE 2B AMXHR

SEORFEER -
2023
—E_=F
RMB’000
AR¥For
BR A5 AT A 965,354 916,323
B FERIER2441% (=
= 1 24.66%) 2 B TA(ii) 235,684 225,973
TT?D%RE‘%SEZ%RW?/E 1,737 877
DG — RS A BB 2 B
2 - 288
HEBREZTE (83,567) (88,798)
E—FE 2 EFE T IR
(32,799) (46,284)
AR BB ARR D RS &
llzoh=Z=1)]
6,552 16,166
RBEFERETR 9,652 =
Frfs iR 137,259 108,222
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(BR=BEBIN

HEAAREIIR)

10 Income tax expense (Continued)

156

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company
are liable to PRC corporate income tax at a rate of
25% for 2024 (2023: 25%) except for Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Xingfa”),
Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa
Chengdu”), Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan)
0., Ltd. (“Xingfa Henan”), Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Jiangxi”)
and Guangdong Xingfa Precision Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Precision”), which were certified
s “High and New Technology Enterprises “ and
entitled to the preferential income tax rate of 15%
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
15%).

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
2024 is calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits for the year.
One subsidiary of the Company is a qualifying
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime, the first HKD2 million of assessable profits
are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated
at the same basis in 2023.

The average income tax rate for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 represents the weighted
average tax rate of the operations in different
jurisdictions on the basis of the relevant amounts
of profit before tax and the tax rate of the relevant
entities for the year.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

10 FrEHFX< @

(b) BERABERFE 2HEMSIHE
RNk (@)

(i

(iii)

RIEAR B FT S B4R Bl &R 38 ) -
P /NI Dl sl N 5 RN A
T FEBERS% (=
F 0 25% ) 2 i 2 g P B
%% ST HEREIRESR
Aal ([EREE]) - MEin
%@H@ﬁ@ a) ([ HH2pk
#)) - BREERFE(IME) B
RAaE ([HEE]) « ERE
B (I AR AR ([H#EE
IP)) REREE SRS
RAr ([EEFER]) BEEE
M E| c ERITRER
—EoOFEF—A=+—H1t
FEEZAIS% (ZE-=%F:
15%) Z B BFTS TR K o

—E - NERBFEREE
&?ﬁrzmﬁr&mmﬂu
16.5% (ZZE - =4 : 16.5%)
HEGE - ARF—HH AT
SRS EREE B
AR B2EBBTERF G
FILA8.25% B B S BAL » 1M &4
T FE R R i B BA16.5% M) i R
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10 Income tax expense (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

(iv)

According to the “Arrangement between the
Mainland of China and the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with
respect to Taxes on Income” and Guoshuifa 2008
No. 112, where the Hong Kong resident company
directly owns at least 25% of the capital of the
Mainland company, 5% dividend withholding
tax rate is applicable. The amount represents
the withholding income tax provided on the
undistributed profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
during the year.

At 31 December 2024, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB20,000,000 (2023: RMB26,948,000) (Note 27)
have been provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

During the year of 2024, Guangdong Xingfa,
Xingfa Chengdu, Xingfa Henan, Xingfa Jiangxi
and Xingfa Precision were entitled to super
deduction on research and development expenses.
As such, the income tax for 2024 was reduced
by RMB32,799,000 (2023: RMB46,284,000).
Such additional tax deduction on research and
development expenses equals 100% (2023: 100%)
of the amount actually incurred.

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=HEEAIN

BEAARKETITR)

10 FREHAX

(b) BERABRITE 2HEARIE
RNk (@)

(iv)
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R 35 P R0 2 7 5 B AT I
BN E P56 o EEHHM
B L R AR B 2 HE ) Ko B 75 2%
[2008]1125% * 5% 3% 8 FE 071
HEBEARNEEEAANHA
Thﬁr 5% B BERAD
o A EIEEFARE THEH
W%ﬂﬂmxﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%
RITEHFTSEL

RZE-_WMF+=-A=+—
B AREHEBRARERTERL
1R A5 &k B R TRE R B A
A% B 5t A R #20,000,000
T(ZZEZ=F: ARK
26,948,0007T) 2 IEEFIE B
BEIE B (5E27) -

RZZZF  FREE
SR ED - HE A Y - E1EET
78 N 2% K 7 B M B O 2
S FAIETHR o Eit
—FEZ AT mﬁQAE%
32,799,0007C (=& = =4 :
AR #46,284,0007T) © A A%
MR 2 EIMIBRENE
BMEESTEZI100% (T —=
1 100%) °
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10 Income tax expense (Continued)

158

(c)

Pillar Two income tax:

The Group is subject to the global minimum top-up
tax the Global Anti-base Erosion Rules (“GloBE Rules”

r “Pillar Two Rules”). Pillar Two Rules are enacted in
certain jurisdiction in which the Company’s subsidiary is
incorporated, and this implementation has no material
tax impact to the Group. Pillar Two Rules has not yet
been enacted in other certain jurisdictions in which the
Company’s major subsidiaries are incorporated and will
come into effect on or after 1 January 2025 within the
Group. Since the Pillar Two Rule is not yet effective at
the reporting date for the Company’s major subsidiaries,
the Group has no related current tax exposure during the
year.

The Group is continuing to assess the impact of the Pillar
Two income taxes on its future financial performance.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

10 FREHRAX

(9]

BoXHEEH
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AR B 35 R R MY 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEIEBI - EREUAREDR)

11 Directors’ emoluments 11 EEHE
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RIEE A ETRARES R RIGRGIHEL
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong FANEERFETHAEMESAT :

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Salary, Contribution

allowance to retirement
and other staff benefit Discretionary 2024
benefits schemes  bonus paid () Total
e 2R BREA BIRIE —ECQE
e HHEIFNEG HE 5 AL @
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. WANG Li Tuksk 241 568 46 1,939 2,79
Mr. LIAO Yuging BEERE 458 270 20 2,686 3,434
Mr. LAW Yung Koon ERTEE 572 - - 980 1,552
Mr. WANG Zhihua THELRE 129 444 40 1,383 1,99
Mr. LUO Jianfeng BRELE 440 - - - 440
Ms. ZHENG Jianhua (appointed o~ HEZEL £ (R-F
16 August 2024) ZIENATRE
BEZf) 27 443 4 1,306 2,012
Mr. WANG Lei (resigned on FEEE(RZEN
16 August 2024) ENATABET) - - - - -
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. XIE Jingyun (resigned on HERERL
16 August 2024) (R=Z-mF
NAT7~BEE) - - - - -
Mr. ZUO Manlun i Yo 330 - - - 330
Mr. WANG Lei (appointed on IZEE(R-Z-N
16 August 2024) ENATAEZ
f£) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. CHEN Mo R EE 181 - - - 181
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu EZEE 181 - - - 181
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy MEBRE 181 - - - 181
Mr. WEN Xianjun NEEEE 180 - - - 180
Total @5t 3,110 1,725 152 8,294 13,281
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B EHEASN - BRBEUAREIIR)

11 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

11 EEME®)

Salary, Contribution
allowance to retirement
and benefits benefit Discretionary 2023
Fees in kind schemes  bonus paid (7)) Total
e 2R BRIRER BEREE “T-=F
we EWFlE HESS TEAL(i) 4Bar
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. WANG Li TUkE 180 548 4 350 1,120
Mr. LIAO Yuging BEExE 465 271 19 2,054 2,809
Mr. LAW Yung Koon ERTELE 557 - - 1,683 2,240
Mr. WANG Zhihua FHELE 238 114 17 1,040 1,409
Mr. LUO Jianfeng BHEELE 429 - - - 429
Mr. WANG Lei IEEE - - - = =
Non-executive directors FHTEZR
Ms. XIE Jingyun HRELL = = = = =
Mr. ZUO Manlun EmmEE 322 - - - 322
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Mr. CHEN Mo BRER L 179 - - - 179
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu DEEE 179 = = = 179
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy ~ #REEEAEAE 179 - - - 179
Mr. WEN Xianjun XEE A& 180 - - - 180
Total @ar 2,908 933 78 5,127 9,046
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

11 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Liao Yuqing is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as
the chief executive. Ms. Zheng Jianhua is also the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company and her emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by her as the Chief Financial Office. Other executive
directors’ remuneration were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, bonuses paid to
the relevant Directors were determined based on the contribution of the
Directors to the Board and the financial performance of the Group.

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the directors
or the chief executive as compensation for loss of office or an inducement
to join the Group. None of the directors or the chief executive waived any
emoluments for both years.

The non-executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors
remuneration were for their services as directors of the Company.

B I ER AR B 5E

n'.R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

11 EEME®)

Hisz

(0]

(iii)

(iv)

BEBEETR/EAARZERTHRAR £ L
MAAREONEBREEESERTRAEM
RERBONE - EiEEL L RAARRR 28
BE - E iR EOMe e R RN
HEFTRERBOME - EbTEFTNM S
Ty R ER AR B R AL E TR0 fRIS T S AT ©

BE_Z_NFR-_FT_=F+-HA=+—
Hti& AAREENIHEATDREES
HEESNAEBRASENPERREE

AEBERMEFEALERNEEHERTR
ABSASHER B (E R RER R B S AR &
EEYREN - IR EF LT BITHRABRRMEF
BEAREEAIHE

ERTERRBYUNFRTESFOMES DA
ERARRABESRERITM AT ©
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AR e BT IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE=EHERIN  BEAARBIIR)

12 Individuals with highest emoluments 12 BREFHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two TEGEmTMALTH  ME(CTE=F:
(2023: two) of them are directors whose emoluments are WE) BEE  HEZMESRMTEN1HEE -
disclosed in Note 11. The aggregate of the emoluments in MTI=F(ZE=F: =R)Z=aumMA
respect of the remaining three (2023: three) individuals are as TR S ARENT ¢
follows:
2023
T =F
RMB 000
AREFr
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind & & - 285 M E W FzE 1,587 1,801
Contributions to retirement benefit ) 3R PR 18 FI) 51 81 4 7K
schemes 65 106
Discretionary bonus paid EREIETEAL 5,335 3,303
6,987 5,210
The emoluments of the three (2023: three) individual(s) with —HR(CE=F ZR)Ra s ATHEN
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: SN T T5IEHE -
2023
—E-=F
Number of
individuals
A#
HKD 1,500,001 — HKD2,000,000 1,500,00178 7T £2,000,0007% 7T - 2
HKD2,000,001 — HKD2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,0007% T 1
HKD2,500,001 — HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 3,000,000/ 7T 2 -
13 Earnings per share 13 SREF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB826,033,000 (2023: RMB804,171,000) and the weighted
average number of 420,649,000 ordinary shares (2023:
420,649,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the Group did
not have dilutive potential ordinary share for both 2023 and
2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

14 REWNERYE BERSKE

14 Investment properties and property, plant
and equipment

(a) Property, plant and equipment (@) Y% BERRE

Office
Buildings Motor equipment  Construction Investment
and plants Machinery vehicles and others in progress Subtotal properties Total
\ BAERR . B .
BTRER B8 g REf ERIE it REnz it
MBOY  MBN  ABOY MBI ABOY MBI ABW MBI
ARETr  ARETT AREFr AREFr AREFr AREFr AREFE AREFR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2023 ELT::@ A-A 1431212 3901201 33,363 6,601 235510 5,853,893 22,831 6,006,724
Additions 16,304 395,049 4873 9,851 502,866 928,943 - 928983
Transfer from constructon n progress % BERIE 156,45 113584 1216 2197 (213242) - - -
Disposal & (3406) (65,166) (2829) (4383) = (75,784) - (75,784)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZE+2A=1-A 1,606,355 4,344,674 36,623 254,266 465,134 6,707,052 12831 6,919,883
Addmons e 595 3313 1560 92,618 294,381 828811 - 828,817
Transfe flom property, plant and BIZ  ARRRE/RRE
equipmentight-of-use asets fo REBEEREN:
nvestment property (1.078) - - - - (1.078) 1838 4,760
Transer from consrucion nprogress - EFEERTE 164475 210,007 1541 1751 (477,780) - - -
Disposal it - (978) (3755) (879) - (1442) - (1442)
At 31 December 2024 RZB-mE+=R=1-H 1,864,347 4,978,616 41,969 347,762 8173 1514429 24,669 1739098
Accumulated depreciaton: EitliE
At Jany 2003 R-Z-=F-f-A P50 (457860) (21907) (174700 - B (379 B0
Charge for the year g (60,885) (372,0460) (3.34) (15,344) = (451,509) (5472) (456,981)
Flminated on dsposéls HERHk i 1925 2456 390 - 56,078 - 56,078
At 31 December 2023 RZZZZE2A=1-A (#13.9%9) (2,780,651) (22,685) (186,124) - (3,403,3%9) (19.251) (3,422,650)
Cha gef or the year ?Wﬁ ‘ . (75,965) (46, 183) (3,080) (15,800) - (559,028) (5.802) (564,830)
Tranfer from property, plant and % HERRE/ AR
equipmentight-of use asets to BEBEEREN:
investment property 1014 - - - - 101 (1,696) (682)
Flminated on csposals HE R - 6479 1981 790 - 9,50 - 9,250
At 31 December 2024 RZBZRE+ZA=1-A (488,890) (3,238,35) (23.784) (201134) - (3,952163) (26,749) (3.978912)
Carrying value: B
At 31 December 2024 RZB-ME+=A=1-H 1375457 1,740,261 18,185 146,628 8173 3,562,266 197,920 3,760,186
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZE+2A=1-AR 1,192,416 1564023 13938 68,142 465,134 3303653 193580 3497233
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHAN

HEAAREIIR)

14 Investment properties and property, plant

164

(i)

(ii)

and equipment (Continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group is in the
process of applying for the title certificates
of certain properties with carrying value
of approximately RMB283,711,000 (2023:
RMB27,165,000). The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the use of and the conduct
of operating activities at the properties referred to
above are not affected by the fact that the Group
has not yet obtained the relevant property title
certificates.

Details of pledge of certain plants are set out in
Note 34.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings and plants held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 35 years
after the date of completion.

Machinery 3 - 15 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years
Office equipment and others 3 - 10 years

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

(i)

(i

14 REVNERYE BERRE

(@) M=% - BEKKREE)

R_Z-—mE+-—F=+—
H ASEEEAREEY
A AR #283,711,000T (==
—=%F: AR#¥27,165,0007T)
2B T YR E P IREREE
AAREZRE  FH LAY
ERIE L ER L EEE)
WA g A A 5 B W R EAS A RS
VIXFEREEMX I FE -

BREIRS THENFIEHN
BizE34 °

7N HA ] K b B A e 6 i = AT AR 67
B

R HEELHIHEERAZET
Re B BS 1A K Je i R B R A 51 )
ERFHmE 2B EHRE (R
SHEBEK B I ET355)
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

14 Investment properties and property, plant
and equipment (Continued)

(b)

Investment properties

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every
year to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

Within 1 year 1A
Over 1 year 1FE R E

Investment properties of the Group were stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Fair
value of these investment properties is RMB298,846,000
as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
RMB312,691,000). The fair value has been arrived at
based on a valuation carried out by independent valuers
not connected with the Group.

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

14 REVERNE BERRRE

(b) REY=

NEFRIBELHE HAREDE -
HME—RUZABIHIE10F - WEH#
BEBET BENEKRHESEN
Em-HEMRBEETFEMN .
AR TSHEEKE - FEHEY
TEERSHEEMNK -

AEEBNARBERER RS A
HARTSZ 0 IS A] AR R A = TR E R Mk

REBFAEMZHKOT «
2023
—T =4
RMB’000
AR¥For
12,362 3,954
2,266 -
14,628 3,954

REBRIRE YT R & B AR
MFRALK AR R eI E RO EE 1R
25| c ZEREMER T _UF
+ZA=+T—HHNAFEAARE
298,846,000 (ZE-_=%F+=_AH
=+—H: AR#312,691,0007T) °
RN ETIIRR AR E E MR 2 B
HEAETH{EMS D -
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AR e BT IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE=EHERIN  BEAARBIIR)

15 Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the carrying value of right-of-use assets by class
of underlying asset is as follows:

Cost: B
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—HF—H
Additions NE
At 31 December 2023 R-ZZBE_=F+-_H=+—H
Transfer to investment (S EN S =S

properties

15 EREEE

BIRAEERR ST AR EEREEN
T

At 31 December 2024

Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2023
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2023

Transfer to investment
properties

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2024

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2024

At 31 December 2023

166

RZZE-_NF+=-_A=+—H
E-g:
NR-—TE-_=%F—H—H
FRZH

RZE_=F+=-_A=+—H
B EYE

FAX

RZE-_NWFE+-_A=+—H

ARMEE :
RZZE-_NMF+=—A=+—H

RZZE—_=F+=-_A=+—H

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

Land use  Other leased

rights assets Total
THEAE HMaBEEE #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETFT AEETFT AEETFT
500,507 11,913 512,420
76,437 297 76,734
576,944 12,210 589,154
(4,760) - (4,760)
572,184 12,210 584,394
(105,391) (5,216) (110,607)
(11,182) (2,147) (13,329)
(116,573) (7,363) (123,936)
682 - 682
(11,577) (2,399) (13,976)
(127,468) (9,762) (137,230)
444,716 2,448 447,164
460,371 4,847 465,218




Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

15 Right-of-use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in
profit or loss is as follows:

Expense relating to short-term leases
Total cash outflow for leases

HER SRR

Details of land use rights under right-of-use assets pledged are
set out in Note 34.

0]

(i)

(iii)

Land use rights

As at 31 December 2024, the remaining period of the
land use rights ranges from 32 to 49 years (31 December
2023: 33 to 50 years).

Other leased assets

The Group has obtained the right to use properties in
its plants and office through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 10 years.
Lease payments are usually increased to reflect market
rentals.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

HEMHEERRZMAX

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

15 FREEE®

BN BEERHERMZRAXXHEB AT

R

2023
—E-=F
RMB'000
AERETFT

947
4,837

1,487
4,101

BRAEAEREEER T THERENF

BRI T3S o
(i) LTibfERARE

(i)

(iii)

RZF_MF+ZA=+—RA *
St {52 F 48 ) TR R B BR 1 324F 249

F( B =F+=-_A=+—H:33
FEHELOE) o

HtHEESE
AEEEBAHERRESFERER
ERRAEMENRES - ﬁﬁ—%
%)J 7"/':7«5_"! ,HﬁZJJ O$ fﬂ 1—JL/T>)\

N ARBRTISHE K

HE RS

BREBEARAHEHEEENEMER
S - & 1 % 1 b AN AE ] 2256 - A
EEETSREEER -
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n'K

B I Rk EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHAN

16

168

HEAAREIIR)

Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated:

Name of companies
AREB

China Xingfa (BVI) Limited
("Xingfa BVI”) (i)

China Xingfa (BVI) Limited ([ Xingfa BVIL) i/

Xingfa Aluminium (Hong Kong) Limited

("Xingfa Hong Kong ") (i)

BRE% (BR)AROF(REER)/)

Guangdong Xingfa Holdings Limited
BREZERARA DMt
("Guangdong Xingfa Holding")

BRELERARA A1)

(EREZER)

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co,, Ltd
BREZRZERAT L)

("Guangdong Xingfa”)
BREZEZERAAN)
(EREZ)

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd
BRRR (KB BRAAN

("Xingfa Chengdu”)

EREX (NB) BRAA)

(TE%mH))

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangx) Co,,
lid. BREHEZ (IR BRAZ I

("Xingfa Jiangxi")

BERELEE (IE) ARAA))

(TRETA])

Place and date of

incorporation/establishment

MR IEER
ER5F/RIEH

BVI
2 October 2007

ABELES
“SRCEHAZE

Hong Kong

14 April 2008

(30
“2Z\EMATIE

PRC
25 January 2021

hE
“5_-%-A-1HA

PRC
26 May 2006

¢ﬁ
=% 7/\¢ﬁﬂ +/\E

PRC
7 July 2009

]
“SENFLALA

PRC
14 August 2009

7
“EENE\ATEE

Registered and
paid-up capital

AR RES

United States

Dollars ("USD")
2,000USD2,000
2000%T
(&7))/2,000% 7

HKD1,000/

HKD1,000
1,000%7,/1,000% 7

RMB50,000,000/
N
AREH50,000,0007/%
RVIB360,041,350/
RMB360,041,350

AR #360,041,3507/
NE360,041,3507

RMB130,000,000/
RMB130,000,000

AR1130,000,0007/
AR%130,000,0007

RMB100,000,000/
RMB100,000,000

AR 100,000,007,/
AR100,000,0007

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

16 RMBARAZRE

TREFHEE

oh B2
BERE

REBRLE

BEN

BEZHBRRFE - BRAAREAEIN -
HREB 2B ER AT Ek

Proportion of ownership interest

BAELH

Group's
effective  Held by the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary
A58 BARE  HWELT
EREL 1) 1)
100% 100% -
100% - 100%
100% = 100%
100% - 100%
100% = 100%
100% - 100%

Principal activities
TEEH

Investment holding

RELER

Sales of aluminium
profiles

HERLY

New materials
technology research
and development

R UIES

Manufacturing and sales
of aluminium profiles

EERHERIY

Manufacturing and sales
of aluminium profiles

EERHERIM

Manufacturing and sales
of aluminium profiles

EERHERIY
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FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

16 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 16 REBARZRE®)
Proportion of ownership interest
ERELA
Group's
Place and date of Registeredand ~ effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of companies incorporation/establishment paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
EMALEER A5H HALAT AKEAR

ARER EEEH/HIARS AMRARER  ERER b BE TEER

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan) Co.,  PRC RMB100,000,000/ 100% - 100% Manufacturing and sales
ld EREREZ(TE)ERAEN) 10 May 2010 RMB100,000,000 of aluminium profiles
("Xingfa Henan”)

ERAZEE(TE) BRAR) i AE 100,000,000,/ EEREEREN
([B%mE)) “2-ZERATH AR 100,000,007

Foshan Xingfa Real Estate Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB8,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Development, sales
BUTAREHERZARDEN)  5lune 2013 RMBB,000,000 and management of
("Xingfa Real Estate”) properties

PTRREHERZERAFN) 41 AR 8,000,007,/ NEFE  HERER
([BEEHE]) “Z-Z%xAAA ABH8,000,0007

Foshan Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100% Trading of aluminium
BT EEHERRA) 3 December 2014 RMB10,000,000 profiles
("Xingfa Trading")

BmREEEERA T hE AR10,0000007,/ BHIES
([8%®E)) “2-mET-AZA AR 10,000,000

Xingfa New Material (Zhejiang) Co., Ltd. PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100% Manufacturing and sales
A NI ARAE 21 January 2023 RMB200,000,000 of aluminium profiles
("Xingfa Zhejiang”)

ERH (L) BR A 41 K 200,000,000,/ FERBEENY
([&E#11]) ZBC§-ACt-H AB#200,000,0007T

Guangdong Xingfa Precision Manufacturing  PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100% Manufacturing and sales
Co, ltd. EREZEZHIEBRAF)) 26 September 2017 RMB200,000,000 of precision products
("Xingfa Precision”)

ERAZBRLERRAT)) i AE 200,000,007,/ FERHEREER
([B%Rz]) ZB-tENRZTRE AR 200,000,000

Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture PRC RMB20,000,000/ 51% - 51% Manufacturing and
Technology Co., Ltd. 20 July 2018 RMB19,622,070 sales of architecture
EREZRMERBEERAAN) products
(“Xingfa Aoke")

ERERBHRENRARAAN) hE AR20,000,0007/ 51% - 51% FERHERSER
([B%2H]) 2 \EtAZTA ARE19,622,0707

Alxin Australia Industrial Pty Ltd Australia AUD 1,000/ 100% - 100% Manufacturing and sales
("Alxin Australia") 4 September 2020 AUD 1,000 of aluminium profiles

Alin Australia Industrial Pty Ltd 7/ il 1,000%7/1,0002 70 EEREEREN
([ Abin Australia ) ZE2-TENAMA

Annual Report 2024 F 3k 169



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n'K

B I Rk EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHAN

16

17

170

HEAAREIIR)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

(i) The English translation of the entities names are for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(ii) The subsidiaries are companies with limited liabilities.

(iii) The subsidiary is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise.

Equity securities designated at FVTOCI

Investments in unlisted equity securities 3F_E MR ANE AR E

The unlisted equity securities are the investments held for
strategic purposes. No dividends were received on the
investments during the year (31 December 2023: Nil).

On 6 November 2024, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of 2.8% interest in Guangdong Guangxin Innovative
Research Centre Co., Ltd. to Guangdong Guangxin Holdings
Group Co., Ltd. at a cash consideration of RMB11,186,000.
The cumulative gain in the FVTOCI reserve of RMB3,000 at the
date of disposal was transferred to retained earnings. Before
the disposal, the Group owned 2.8% interest in Guangdong
Guangxin Innovative Research Centre Co., Ltd. accounted as
equity investments at FVTOCI. As at 31 December 2024, the
disposal transaction has been completed.
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EERBAFEHFAHRMEM

W 5 B9 BR 25 5% 25
2023
—E-=F
RMB'000
ARETFT
23,462 36,508

FE_E T IRANTE FH T A B Em%ﬁﬁm
"E o $¢fIEW&§Wﬂ% -

MR-ZE-_E+—A B KEBEFH
& LIRS REARE1,186,0007T A &
RERTEREEGRARLEEREE
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HEBH  BAFEF AR M EE RS H
R 25T Uzs AR E3,0000 B B R E R
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

Inventories

Inventories

Aluminium profiles manufacturing
— Raw materials

— Work in progress

— Finished goods

Completed properties for sale
— Properties developed by the Group
— Acquired properties (i)

(i) Up to 31 December 2024, the Group has entered into the sale and
purchase agreements with property developers to obtain certain
properties with total consideration of RMB217,063,000 (31 December
2023: RMB206,258,000). Also, the Group has settled the consideration
by endorsing its trade receivables to the property developers without right

of recourse.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has completed the purchase of
properties of RMB136,091,000 (31 December 2023: RMB130,754,000)
with ownership certificates obtained as recorded at costs, net of the
provision for write down of such acquired properties held for sale to
net realisable value amounted to RMB41,107,000 (31 December 2023:

RMB38,107,000).

rE&
SREIM BLiE
—RE
—HEHm
— &Ko

ERTHFEWE
—AEEFENYE
—EREBWED

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

18 F&

(BB EFEHIN - BEBUAARETIR)
2023

—E-=F

RMB 000

ARMFor

237,336 215,491
307,600 170,684
863,717 731,712
1,408,653 1,117,887
150,619 151,589
94,984 92,647
245,603 244,236
1,654,256 1,362,123

HE-Z-_mM&E+-A=+—H8  A£EHY
%ﬁ%ﬁmi%ﬁ;ﬁ% LABEERE % - R
BAARKE217,063,000 (ZE==F+=A4
=+—H : AR#¥206,258,0007T) ° A % & i
AR RER R 5 MR IE R T W3
F%E - UEERE-

R-Z-—ME+-_A=+—8 "&EEZE
B AR136,091,000t (ZE=_=&+_F8
=+—8 : AR#130,754,0007T) K B} 2 HE 75
A ERARIERA  WENBRZED
W ELEMEMRE SR EEFED
B ARY41,107,00000 (ZE==F+=A
=+—H : AK%38,107,000;T) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B EHEASN - BRBEUAREIIR)

18 Inventories (Continued) 18

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold B &7 & RE{E (#1729)
(Note 9)

Write down of inventories — completed #URi7F & — 28 T & W%
properties for sale

All of the inventories are expected to be recovered within one
year, except for the properties held for sale which are expected
to be recovered after more than one year.

78 @®

BRARI MG ABR . FESES T
T

— T =&
RMB’000
ARBFor

16,248,382 14,492,592

3,000 38,107

FIAFEBRHAR —FAKE - EEHR
—EF R AT E 2 FE YRR o

19 Trade and other receivables 19 REREMEWRRIE
=4
RMB 000
ARMFr
Trade debtors and bills receivable, net 32 5 & Uk 018 J% fE s Z 1%
of loss allowance (}) (IBREEEAE) () 4,939,460 3,995,609
Other debtors, net of loss allowance (i) H fih & Y 7038 (FOBR ES I8 B (i) 342,510 195,476
5,281,970 4,191,085
(i) As at 31 December 2024, loss allowance on trade debtors (0} RZZ-_WF+=—A=1+—8  XHEWRKE

and bills receivable is RMB1,094,199,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB1,033,451,000).

Bills receivable with carrying value of RMB273,251,000 were pledged as
security of issuing bills payable by the Group as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: RMB887,325,000).

(ii) As at 31 December 2024, VAT input receivable of RMB307,874,000 was
included in other receivables (at 31 December 2023: RMB164,600,000).
As at 31 December 2024, loss allowance on other debtors is RMB363,000
(31 December 2023: RMB1,476,000).
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R EW R 8 E BB 3 A R 51,094,199,000
T(ZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H: AR%
1,033,451,0007T) °

R-ZE-_ME+_A=+—0 REEAAR
#£273,251,0007C K FE N E R E HIER RS
EHTEMNEENERR (ZE==F1+=A
=+—H : AR%887,325,0007T) °

(ii) RZTE-_NE+=-_A=+—H EKEE
T8 A R #307,874,0007T 5t A £ b & U
HERZZTEZ=F+ZA=1+—H: AR
#164,600,000T) - R =T —_MF+ = A
=+—0 ' it ERHEZ ERREAARE
3630007 (ZE==F+=-A=+—0: AR
#1,476,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

19 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables and bills receivable (which are included in
trade and other receivables), based on the invoice date or bill
acceptance date and net of allowance for credit losses, is as
follows:

Within 1 month —EAR

1 to 3 months E={AH
3 to 6 months =ENEA
Over 6 months BB~ EA

The credit period of trade receivables and bills receivables
is within 30 days to 360 days from the invoice date or bills
acceptance date. Further details on the Group’s credit policy
and credit risk arising from trade receivables and bills receivable
are set out in Note 30.

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

19

(B2 BEHEREI - SBBUARET|TR)
REREMEWEIE2)
BRI AT

RBEHR  REZEHAREEAAS
AEIU MR EEERREE X EKFIR
KM RE (Bt AR 5 M E A B FIR)
ZERE AT

—T-=F

RMB’000

ARBFT

2,142,174 2,009,535
1,663,596 1,217,612
932,157 672,929
201,533 95,533
4,939,460 3,995,609

RS EW AR EREIENEERREE
B Hisk =155 49 B HA #8308 =3608 A 2
B EAAEBEERRKEAR S ERR
HREREREENEERBIE T+
TEE M FE30 o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B EHEASN - BRBEUAREIIR)

20 Prepayments

20 FEfYFRIA

2023

—E =5

RMB'000

ARBFT

Prepayments for raw materials and others [ #7&} K H ftb 69 8 (- 7B 170,654 86,254

Prepayments for properties (7) I ESEENEC L)) 80,972 75,504

Less: D 251,626 161,758
Impairment loss on prepayments for V)3 T8N I8 2 R E B E)

properties (7) (23,224) (23,224)
Non-current portion included in ST ATERRIE Z IEm BB H

prepayments (72,700) (31,432)

155,702 107,102

(i) The prepayment represented completed properties obtained from the (0} FENRBEEEDERBEREERONE XM

property developers that have been delivered to the Group but without
obtaining the related ownership certificates. The properties will be
transferred to inventories of the Group subsequently upon the issuance of
ownership certificate to the Group. As at 31 December 2024, impairment
loss on prepayment for properties amounted to RMB23,224,000 (31
December 2023: RMB23,224,000).

21 Cash and cash equivalents/Pledged
deposits

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and short
term deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short
term cash commitments, which carry interest at market rates
range from 0.1% to 3.5% (2023: 0.01% to 4.9%).

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, pledged deposits

represented bank deposits pledged to banks as securities for
issuing bills payable.
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FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 Trade and other payables 22
Trade payables R FERFRIE
Bills payable (}) AR
Accrued payroll and benefits st T & K&
Other payables and accruals Hin e RIBE R ESTE A

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

Ra REMENRIE

Payable for purchase of property, plant BEYHE  BER&EZEAFHIE

and equipment
Deferred income YA

Financial liabilities measured at amortised (ZE K At E2 SR EE

cost
Refund liabilities BREE
— arising from volume rebates —IRE#EITH

All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due
to related parties) are expected to be settled or recognised as
income within one year or are repayable on demand.

2023

—E-=F

RMB 000

ARMFor

1,084,474 1,153,505
3,377,143 1,853,247
274,627 253,667
411,104 373,613
42,613 137,823
5,173 12,303
5,195,134 3,784,158
35,206 38,055
5,230,340 3,822,213

FTBR 5 M EAM EN TR (B R RERE
ﬁmlﬁ)Tﬁiﬂ;ﬁﬂﬂA FAREMNIERR/E
AREERKIEE
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AR e BT IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE=EHERIN  BEAARBIIR)

22 Trade and other payables (continued) 22 RFRHEMBENTRIE @)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade payables and bills payable (which are included in trade
and other payables), based on the invoice date or bills issuance

RBERR  REZAHXRRHETEH
B R BENFARENRE (BT
AR R EMENFIR) 2 fRE DT -

date, is as follows:

2023

=4

RMB 000

ARMFr

Within 1 month —@EAR 567,917 508,500
1 to 3 months —Z=={@A4 1,906,863 1,205,945
3 to 6 months =Z=EA 1,509,035 1,018,991
Over 6 months i@~ E A 477,802 273,316
4,461,617 3,006,752

BEMHNEESRN120RA - EBNFEE
MEHHBRNFAREAZE—F - AEES
HEMBRBREEBRAEREERBR

The credit period on purchase of materials is within 120 days.
The maturity period of bills payable ranges from six month to
one year. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to monitor the settlement.

RZE-_WNE+-_A=1+—8 " ENZEE
AR ¥2,104,143,0000C (ZE=-_=4F+—
H=+—8: AK®1,183,074,0007T) &
A& B 2 FENERIR K B AR IR SR R (BT
F£34) o

As at 31 December 2024, bills payable of RMB2,104,143,000
(31 December 2023: RMB1,183,074,000)was secured by bills
receivables and pledged deposits of the Group (Note 34).

(i)  These relate to trade payables in which the Group has () RZEFHEXFEMNFIEEH BIASE

issued bills to the relevant suppliers for future settlement E AR RAEER FENFKIED [AE
of trade payables. The Group continues to recognise BAHERELRE AEEEERE
these trade payables as the relevant banks are obliged REZEXZEMNFIA - B RE IR

TEREBEIHAELENR LB
EEHEERBENRARBR T TE
E—FER - RGERERERT
ZERBNEEREBE LB ER
AREHESRENA -

to make payments only on due dates of the bills,
under the same conditions as agreed with the suppliers
without further extension. In the consolidated statement
of cash flows, settlements of these bills are included
within operating cash flows based on the nature of the
arrangements.
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AR B 35 R R MY 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RS EREEII - BEBUARETR)

23 Contract liabilities 23 EHERE

2024 2023
—E_NE o=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARBFT

Aluminium profiles contracts A A A
— Billings in advance of performance —BATERRIE 349,002 382,413
Movements in contract liabilities EHEEBEEH
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR FT
Balance at 1 January R—A—Rz#& 382,413 378,517
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result Rl #E 2 4F A U 25 (qu)\¢ MEHE
of recognising revenue during the B)MEEZEHNABRD
year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year (382,413) (378,517)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result E2LEEHBNRIBEMERNE
of billing in advance of manufacturing FON=Ri=e:pill
activities 349,002 382,413
Balance at 31 December RTZRA=+—RHz#&&% 349,002 382,413
All of the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as FIE&aHNaERER —FAER AR

revenue within one year.
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AR B 35 8 R MY 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHAN

HEIAARETIR)

24 Bank and other borrowings

Bank borrowings
Other borrowings (i)

(a)

(b)

178

RITIER
H b tEE )

Other borrowings were from financial institutions other than banks.

The analysis of the repayment schedule of
bank borrowings is as follows:

Within one year or on demand —EFERHEEK
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBRAFRA
After 5 years hE &

The analysis of the repayment schedule of
other borrowings is as follows:

Within one year or on demand —FRHEEK
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEBERERN
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBRAFA

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED J 3% $5 3£ 12 B F R AR

24

RITRHMEE

2024 2023
—E_NE —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFIT
2,828,506 3,098,475
48,845 49,017
2,877,351 3,147,492

0 HEEEREERTHSREE -

(@) BITEEZERFBRIFTME :

2024 2023
—EE —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR For ARBFor
623,066 495,746
942,343 1,243,306
1,025,703 1,181,296
237,394 178,127
2,205,440 2,602,729
2,828,506 3,098,475

(b) EAMEENERTEINUT

2024 2023
—E_NE —TE-=F
RMB‘000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥For
3,953 3,844
44,892 3,953

- 41,220

44,892 45,173
48,845 49,017
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24 Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

(c) Assets pledged as security and covenants for

bank and other borrowings

At 31 December 2024, the bank and other borrowings

were secured and guaranteed as follows:

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

24 BITREMEE#

(0 BEFERBRTREMERR
RREAHENEE

RZZE-_WNE+—A=+—H R
TREMEEERRERAT

2023
—E-=F
RMB 000
AERMFor

Secured and guaranteed by intra-  FAtE B AERE B IR KA RIER

group entities
Unsecured 4 17

The bank and other borrowings were secured by certain
plants and land use rights(Note 34). and guaranteed by

the intra-group entities.

As at 31 December 2024, the banking facilities of
the Group amounted to RMB14,231,200,000 (31
December 2023: RMB14,176,200,000) were utilised to
the extent of RMB6,420,069,000 (31 December 2023:

RMB4,509,000,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the bank loans of the Group,
amounted to RMB1,751,493,000 (31 December
2023: RMB946,541,000), are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the subsidiaries’
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down loans
would become repayable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in Note 30. As at 31 December 2024 and
2023, none of the covenants relating to drawn down

loans had been breached.

2,632,515 2,900,502
244,836 246,990

2,877,351 3,147,492

RITREMEEAE THE Rt
£ A #E (KT EE34) (R - W &R [
NERE BB IEE(R

RZT_WE+_A=+—HB R©
REE A R#14,231,200,0007T (=
E_=F+-A=1+—8: AR
14,176,200,00070) Z $R1T{= &5

IEL /\Eﬁg64200690007£(_
E_ZF+-_A=1+—H: AR
4,509,000,0007T) & E B ©

RZEZNWEFE+ZA=+—H 'K
£ EHIFETTE R A RE1,751,493,000
T(ZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8:
AR #946,541,0007T) ZBiFEK A
BB AR E TEEABRILE Y
Y (HFRRESHEBITI I CE
KL B A AMEE - WASEER
ZERY BIRBZERAREK
ﬁ%% AEETHERESLE
Z:%ﬁ BRAEEHREE
B2 BRI E K
?% RZE_NFER_T_=F
+—A=+—H8B TEEREIHNA
BERIMERZ 2L -

Annual Report 2024 F 3k 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e BT IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B EHEASN - BRBEUAREIIR)

25

180

Deferred income 25 EEWA
2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
AR¥FT
Government grant at 31 December RTZA=+—BMB/EfHE 122,743 78,421
Less: current portion included in trade and & : 7| A 5 K E b B FRIE 2
other payables (Note 22) mENE Y (H7322) (5,173) (12,303)
117,570 66,118

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, deferred income of the
Group represented various conditional government grants
received from the local government authorities for acquisition
cost of property, plant and equipment, which would be
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of the relevant assets, or on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the related costs of relevant activities
are incurred.
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27

Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 15 October 2018 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options at nil consideration to subscribe for shares of
the Company. The options vest after two years to four years
from the date of grant and are then exercisable on or before
14 October 2023. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is settled
gross in shares.

As of 31 December 2023 and 2024, there were no outstanding
options and no options were granted under the share option
scheme during both years.

Deferred taxation

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets FEIEFIAE B
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEAE

CRUEE B

n"'.R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

26

27

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

gﬂﬁ*&%‘—“ BURGAEBRHR

ARRARZ /\EJrﬂJrﬁEl%ZWﬁ%Hx
R l¢t¢ AIESERERBR
AEEES (BRAKEEIAKEARE
F)ANTHERBARFRD - ZEBER
RS B &R B M ENF RN R KB
BN T =F+HATOARZAATIT
& - SMBBER THE AENREAR
Al — AR B AR (DB B4 H o

HE—_Z-_=—€KxR-_T-_NE+-_A=+
—H - RREEE A HRTTER B

& INERERBEERT 8RB

iR T TH
RIEAFE MBI RF 25 - & TIRER
BEEKBEBEREEE - AR HERER
BIEE BRET IR AR DT AT -
2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
AR®FT
214,098 201,919
(20,675) (27,903)
193,423 174,016
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BH1E8ASN - BEBUARKESIR)
27 Deferred taxation (Continued)

182

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior year:

Temporary
differences  Temporary
from differences Impairment
rightofuse ~ fromlease  Creditloss Inventory of
assets liablities allowance Provision  prepayment
FREEE.  HEBRY 3 Bff
ERzE ERZE EERE Gt (] HERE
AIB000 AIB000 R0 AB000 AB000
NEETT  AREFT ARETT ARETT AEFR
At1 January 2023 ;i 675) 864 17,05 - -
Creited (charged) to prfitor o RERMEAGIR) 179 (184 38638 5716 308
Credited (charge) to resrves RERAETAGR) - - - - -
Revesal o withholding tax upon ditibution X9 REZEEAE = = = = =
At 31 December 2023 RZB==F+-A=t-A (196) 680 155,663 5716 3484
AL1 January 2024 R=B-RE-A-A (496) 680 155,663 5116 3484
Credited (charge]) to profit o loss RERAEA R 19 (331 852 150 -
Credited (charged) to resenves RERRETA (IR - - - -
Reversal of withhalding tax pon distrbution XA EE AR EHR - - -
At 31 December 2024 i a3 g o ] (367) 349 164,184 6,166 3484

27

Tax loss

HERR
AIBOY
NEBTT

1017
168

8702

8702
(6702

EERIE (2)

RERLBEFEERNEZELTHIAE

E(BE) REZHNT
Unrealised
profit from
intragroup  Government
Derivative ~transfer of grantsin
finandial ~ certain land deferred
instruments use right income frod
£0R
G EE
£TiH
it i #AYE
fit Bt WAwZ ARt
S$HIR  AEREA  ARENE eyt
B0 Ao Ao A o0
NEETT  AEEFT \REFT ARETR
(512 13351 8039 (406)
1148 (154) 6,298 =
- - - (549
636 13197 14331 (955)
636 13197 14331 (955)
(39%) (68) 12576 -
- - - 80
pL| 1319 26913 (675)

Undistributed
profit

of PRC
subsidiaries

8
KRR
AR
B0
Wiz

(20782)
(16,166)

10,000

(26948)

(26.8)
(6:552)

13500

(20,000)

Total

it
R0
NEETT

139
40,64
(549)
10000

174016

174016
5601
80
13,500

19343

At 31 December 2024, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB258,273,000 (2023: RMB252,573,000) in respect of
temporary differences relating to the undistributed profits
of subsidiaries amounted to RMB5,165,465,000 (2023:
RMB5,051,468,000) have not been recognised as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that these profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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B WAREMRBARTRD KaMAR
#55,165,465,0007T (ZEZ=4F : ARK
5,051,468,0007T) 4 B8 & & s = RE e R I
EFE B E AR ¥258,273,0007T (—F
— =% : AR#¥252,573,0007T) °
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B I ER AR B 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

BEAAREIIR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends

v'.R

(BR=HEEAIN

28 KA HERKRE

(a) Movements in components of equity (a) R
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBGEERSHHCEINRE
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated REEERC EIRRB AR A e B3R o
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes AN B {E B 4 25 48 X 2B AR A W1 K
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s FRZEEBFHBHIIWOT ¢
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company AT
Shares Share Capital Other ~ Exchange Retained
Capital premium reserve reserve reserve eamings Total
RE  RGEE  EARE  HbEE  EXGE  REEA @3t
Notes RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
Wit ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETL  AREFT  ARETT  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2023 RIFZ=E-A-Az&H 37153 148239 154 411,976 (4,764) - 589,358
Changesinequity for 2003 —E-=EEEEH:
Total comprehensive income for ~ FE2FNEEE
the year - - - - 15,232 190,555 205,787
Dividend approved in respect of  BEFE I EHR S
the previous year ) - - - - - (141,047) (141,047)
Balance at 31 December 203 WM=F==#+-A=+-REk
and 1 January 2024 ZEImE-F-BriH 3,753 148239 154 411,976 10,468 49,508 654,098
Changes in equity for 2024:  —B-MEEHEH:
Total comprehensive income for -~ £ 2 A& £
the year - - - - 29,454 258,592 288,046
Dividend approved in respect of B FE TR &
the previous year 17 - - - - - (245,629) (245,629)
Balance at 31 December 204 W=F=ME+=A=1-A
it 3,753 148,239 154 441,976 39,922 62,411 696,515
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 BA - RERRE ®

(b) Dividends b)) ERE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders () FAZENELaEZR
of the Company attributable to the year RKRE
2023
—ECo=4F
RMB’000
AREFT
Final dividends proposed after the A ¥R&EFEREEZ RN 2
end of reporting year of HKD0.64 7 #f % B & I% & iR % 0.64
per ordinary share (2023: BT (ZEZ=F: 8K
HKDO0.64 per ordinary share) T EAR0.647 7T ) 247,810 243,968
The final dividend proposed after the end of the RS BRI R IR 5 2 R ER
reporting period has not been recognised as a AR BN AR B R ER A A
liability at the end of the reporting period. f&e
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) RERHERIFN L —1E
of the Company attributable to the BERFEZENELGE
previous financial year, approved and wm R R E
paid during the year
2023
—ECo=4F
RMB’000
ABRETFT
Final dividends in respect of the RE R BLE RORS _E— B8R
previous financial year, approved  F[EZ KEAE S
and paid during the year, of TR B AR0.6475 7T
HKDO0.64 per ordinary share —E-=%F:
(2023: HKDO0.37 per ordinary F%E3mA%0.3778 L)
share) 245,629 141,047
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Fincmcial Statements

S B 35 R R Y 5E

n'.F

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(c) Share capital

(@)

(i)

(B=EEAIN -

AN RESIR)

28 BAE - - @mEERKRE @

@ BE
Issued share capital () ERTRA
2024 2023
—E-ME =%
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
shares fully paid shares shares fully paid shares
RHEA BERRAEE RHEE HRRHEE
RMB RMB
equivalent equivalent
000  HKD'000 000 ‘000 HKD'000 ‘000
AR¥ ARK
(F&) FET EEFx (FRR) FET  EEFT
Ordinary shares, BT

issued and fully  BE L &R

paid
At 1 January and 31 R—A—H &

December +-A=+—H 420,649 4,206 3,753 420,649 4,206 3,753
The ordinary shares of the Company has a par AR EEBR 2 MEASERK
value of HKDO0.01 per share. 10.01%87T ©
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to %i@%%ﬁ)\ﬁ%”ﬁﬂlﬂzﬁﬁ
receive dividends as declared from time to time and IKEAR B - W HERARA
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of #EENER— mLTTi‘%B% ﬁﬁ
the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with ﬁ BREEARRNFIGREE
regard to the Company’s residual assets. in = &A REHAL
Shares issued under share option scheme (i) REBREZZTHR

In 2024 and 2023, there were no shares issued
under share options scheme.
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

186

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(@)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issuance
of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account and other
reserve account of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the
difference between (a) the nominal value of share
capital and the existing balance on the share
premium account of a subsidiary acquired; and
(b) the nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the re-organisation of
the Group on 29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company represents the
difference between (a) the consolidated net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired; and (b) the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the re-organisation of the Group
on 29 February 2008.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financiql Statements

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group comprises the
following:

- waivers of liabilities due to related parties;
and

- the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company.

PRC Statutory reserves

PRC Statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

The subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of their net profit, as determined under the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
general reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
equity shareholders. PRC Statutory reserves can be
used to make good prior years' losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to equity shareholders proportionate to their
existing percentage of equity interests provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than
25% of the registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the consolidated financial statements
of entities with functional currency other than
RMB.

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=HEEAIN

BEAARKETITR)

28 BA& - RFERRKRE )
(d) EEEEREARE)

Giii) BEAfFfE

(iv)

)
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28

29

188

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi) FVTOCI reserve

The FVTOCI reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of equity investments
designated at FVTOCI under IFRS 9, that are held at
the end of the reporting period.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes bank borrowings and other borrowings as disclosed
in Note 24, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of the review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of the new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financiql Statements

30 Financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets: SRR
Derivative financial instruments TESMTAE
Amortised cost ST RPN

Equity securities designated at FVTOCI

EmTA
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Amortised cost B IEAC A

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include derivative
financial instruments, trade and other receivables, pledged
deposits, bank balances, equity securities designated at FVTOCI,
trade and other payables, and bank and other borrowings
and lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk). The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables backed by bank bills,
other receivables and derivative financial assets is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions, which the Group considers to represent low
credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

CRUEE B

n‘l'.R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

WA EFAREMEE RSN

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

30 €@ T A

ERMITENDSE
2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARBFor
6,957 4,315
7,896,218 6,991,150
23,462 36,508
7,827,891 6,703,735

& B B

REBEE
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30 Financial instruments (Continued)

190

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in industries or countries in which the customers operate.
Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, less
than 3% (2023: 2%), less than 2% (2023: 1%) and
8% (2023: 6%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer, the second largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within industrial aluminium and construction aluminium.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

For the trade receivables backed by bank bills, the loss
allowances are assessed individually based on the credit
rating of issued bank. As at 31 December 2024, the gross
carrying amount of trade receivable backed by bank bills
was RMB1,843,802,000(2023: RMB1,644,859,000), no
loss allowance for trade receivables backed by bank bills
was recognised.
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(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

30 Financial instruments (Continued) 30 £@IT R

Financial risk management objectives and policies CRIEREEBRERBEKE)
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) FEmEE &)

Trade receivables (Continued)

For the credit-impaired trade receivables not backed
by bank bills, the loss allowances are assessed
individually taking into account the estimated future
cash flows derived from the collateralised assets. As
at 31 December 2024, the gross carrying amount of
credit-impaired trade receivables was RMB907,866,000
(2023: RMB796,661,000), against which a loss
allowance of RMB907,866,000 was recognised (2023:
RMB796,661,000).

For the remaining trade receivables not backed by bank
bills, the loss allowances are calculated using a provision
matrix. The Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group's different customer bases.

Estimated loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

X ZEWHIE ()

REREERENTERITEES
BRRSEWGIEMN S @ BiEEE

mﬁ&ﬁﬁé??i%ﬁﬁxx
RenE@BFTH RS ZWEF
+=HA=+—8 " mﬁﬁgﬂﬁm
*%ﬁw%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁAEM
907,866,000/t (T —_=%F : ARK
796,661,00070) « H o & R 8 18
# A R #907,866,0007T (— & ==
£ AR#796,661,0007T) °

Y BBITRBIFORTIHE

WHEM S - BERETERRE
EREE - AEENBEEERE

KB EERTREE DA ESR
BEREAHAEEZERE RUEE—F
@D ALEBETERFEEZEHARR
RS TR 4 o

ERtBRLL R IRBE=FNER
ERERAE - ZFLRTEHE
VA S Bk Ut 65 JEE St S H ) 9 A DR
S B AT IA K 7 62 1) 4 e UK
TR TR HR AT A A B A RO 2
BENER -

191

Annual Report 2024 F %5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B 35 8 R MY 5E
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(RS EHEAS - ERUAREDTR)

30 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, loss allowances of the trade
receivables not backed by bank bills are as follows:

Current (not past due) ENER (R H)

1 - 180 days past due BMEI1E 180K
181 - 360 days past due #HI181 360K
361 - 720 days past due BHI361 2 720K
More than 720 days past due  # #ifBiB720K

Assessed collectively using KRB AR
the provision matrix

Credit — impaired assessed R EERE
individually

192 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 13¢5 122 B R A =)

30 £MI A%

TREAREEREREE @)

(@) FEmEEE)
X ZEWHE (B)

R-ZZBE-_mWE+=—A=+—8" 1
BRTEBRIFNOXIEUHIELZ
BEEHENT

2024
—E-mEF
Estimated  Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance

st BRI R SREAE BRER
% RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTFT

1% 2,558,145 26,009
5% 499,760 24,988
15% 76,499 11,475
60% 59,316 35,590
100% 88,271 88,271
3,281,991 186,333

100% 907,866 907,866
4,189,857 1,094,199
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30 €T A%

30 Financial instruments (Continued)

cREAREEBERBEKE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@) GEREEE)

X ZEWHIE ()

Trade receivables (Continued)

2023
—Eo=F
Estimated Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
faT A B = REEsE R
% RMB'000 RMB'000
ABEFT AREFT
Current (not past due) BIER (R A) 1% 1,334,148 11,760
1 - 180 days past due #HI1E 180K 5% 994,387 49,719
181 - 360 days past due #HI1812360K 15% 57,407 8,611
361 - 720 days past due #HI3612720K 60% 87,245 52,347
More than 720 days past due 1 H3iBiB720K 100% 114,353 114,353
Assessed collectively using AR EE RN
the provision matrix 2,587,540 236,790
Credit — impaired assessed R EERE
individually 100% 796,661 796,661
3,384,201 1,033,451
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30 Financial instruments (Continued)

194

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables not backed by bank bills during the year
is as follows:

R—H— B2 &R
B HERR EE 18
55

Balance at 1 January
Impairment losses recognised
Write-off

Balance at 31 December
Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the parent company’s board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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2023

—E-—4F

RMB 000

ARMFor

1,033,451 776,561

67,648 293,138
(6,900) (36,248)

1,094,199 1,033,451
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30 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

S B 35 R R Y 5E

n'.F

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEERI  BEAARBIIR)

30 €M I A%

TREREEREREE @)

(b)

REBELEE (&

TRIFNBERRAEE 20T
reRmABIRBENI KA
TRaHNAMRASRE (BERS
HIR R (a2 8)) MR BE R LZ
BITNEAEZMEFR) RAKE
ANz &P EHFE

2024
ka1
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANRERRERL

More than 1 More than 2 Carrying

Within 1yearor  yearbutless  years but less More than amount at

ondemand  than2years  than5years 5 years 31 December

“t=A

-Ehg -£4% ME# =+-A

EEX ERER BRER bk 4 Eh ZIRAfE

RMB'900 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT

Bank and other borowings ST REfEE 688,265 1,048,160 1,074,774 243,532 3,054,731 2,877,351

Lease liablities HERR 2,097 1,086 - - 3,183 2326
Bill payables, creditors and B2 « TR

acarued charges REER 4,950,540 - - - 4,950,540 4,950,540

5,640,902 1,049,246 1,074,774 23532 8,008,454 7,830,217
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30 Financial instruments (Continued) 30 €T A%
Financial risk management objectives and policies SREAMREEEZERBX#E)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) TEEZELEE(E)
2023
2
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANARRRASRL
More than 1 year  More than 2 years Carying
Within 1 year or but less than but less than More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
iy
e —H mEK =t-H
EZX R [BRER Tk i3 LR
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000

AEETL  AEETr  ARETr  ARETn ARETT ARETT

Bank and other borrowings  $RTREMIEE 507,650 1,312,408 1,324,374 211,356 3,355,788 314749
Lease liablites HEaE 253 2,744 1,103 - 6,379 6,055
Bills payables, creditors and - R ZE - MR

accrued charges REHER 3,556,243 - - - 3,556,243 356,43

4,066,425 1,315,152 1325477 211,356 6,918,410 6,709,790

Market risk 755 & B
The Group’s activities expose primarily to the market risks AN ER (B 3E 7 X 22 I e ) R R e R
of changes in interest rates and currency rates. There BT % AR o AN B HER T %5
has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure [Efp sk EE R MEE RS A I
to market risks or the manner in which it manages and mEANEE) -

measures the risk.
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30 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest
rate risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The Group's interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i)
below.

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

30 €T A%

cREAREEBERBEKE)

©

FIFE R

MERBAEBITAZATFESL R
IR &M = i E FE T 5% ) R B i
R E 2 BB o AN B 2 F R @ F
EREBRBEE - RZBHEKE
EMEBHZEEDRTAEREA
7%%£Ei//\b§f”$ﬂ 2 MR FEH)
b2 o REEHEBEEEER 2
—Irﬁxﬂﬁﬁ’\\—l—x()
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RS EHEAS - ERUAREDTR)

30 Financial instruments (Continued) 30

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate profile
The following table, as reported to the
management of the Group, details the interest rate

profile of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings
at the end of the reporting period.

-

Effective
interest
rates

BRAZ

£RTITHE®

TREAREEREREE @)

() FIEmEE &)
() FIER

AAKREEEEMEHR I TER
FHIARERBEH AR EE

B2 FER -
2024 2023
“mE —To=f
Effective
interest
rates Amount
EBRRNE ik
‘000
FT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:
Lease liabilities HEEE 4.75% - 4.9% 2326 3.4%-4.9% 6,055
Bank and other borrowings 217 & E &k 2.30%- 5.72%
Variable rate borrowings: JZEEE :
Bank and other borrowings 3217 K E &k 2.30%-4.41%

Fixed rate borrowings as T B EHES
a percentage of total BER
borrowings
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564,836 2.3%-3.3% 1,146,590

567,162 1,152,645

2,312,515 2.7% -3.85% 2,000,902
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30 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(9

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ir)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variable held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB9,605,000 (2023: RMB8,504,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit after
tax (and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group's
profit after tax (and retained profits) is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,

payables, cash balances and bank and other borrowings

that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they

relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
HKD and United States Dollar (“USD").

CRUEE B

n‘l'.R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=HEEAIN

BEAARKETITR)

30 €T A%

(©

EEERERBK#E)

FIEmEEE (&)

(i)

BER DT

%:%:E$+:HE+*

(hETFIREE A TA
mmﬁ% i fth BT 5 2 &
W REB 2 BREIE R
FI AR BB o B # Rl 48 N 49
AR #9,605,000T (T ==
&« AR#8,504,0007T) °

LSRE ST EE 2R
Mt 12 4 A 2 AR B % A AT R &
2 BN E) - BURE D TR
BRI E HARE A%

& WERAREFTEAEE
Fris B LR s ARG RS E
HEReRAMNERR s ZES
BT A - i ASERIREHR
W%ﬁZﬁ@ﬂ?%ﬁEI
/E\Fﬁﬁizfﬁimbﬂtﬂ

= $§I2ﬁm&mﬂ&ﬁ
B 2 222 Th AR A B FI =

“@ﬁ?iZﬂgiﬁ%WA
L EERBIEME © ME&
B~ — = AR 2 BT o

N—=——

(d) E#mEE

AEBETEFBARAEEHERZ
MREEB SN2 EEFTEZHER
BE (HEELRER - BH0R

Annual Report 2024 F %5

R ARARRITREMEBER) AR
SRR -
EVM(E SR

ZRBEEREETR

199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n'.F

BB 35 $R R Y 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHAN

HEIAARETIR)

30 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

()

200

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated
using the spot rate at the year end date. Difference
resulting from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency is excluded.

30 M I Am

SHERE

BEERBE#E)

(d) E#mpE &)

()

SN e AR B
Tﬁ‘ﬁﬁl ’*“ﬁ%u%zg
’r@ S HEZ DHREERA

BFrELE 2 B RBRAE - 5L
EE&'JH mﬁﬁ H[KAA7¥(%Z@

BUAREIR » WIAFLEH
ZRERME - MEFINET
RAMBHRREAKEZIE
WRTEL 2 R TEEERA -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

S EBRSE (AARMIIR)

2023
—T_=f
HKD usD
BT =Y
‘000 ‘000
FIr FT
Trade and other receivables R 5 & H fth fE UK 5178 1,377 14,073 15,205 4,651
Cash and cash equivalents BR&REEZEY 373 47,113 36,565 68,943
Trade and other payables X 5 & Efth e {5 508 (10,632) - (41,249) (15,910)
Gross and net exposure  EEREERBEES
arising from recognised 2 BB 485 KF
assets and liabilities (8,882) 61,786 10,521 57,684
Net exposure arising from EHRRABERERE
recognised assets and EERFER
liabilities (8,882) 61,786 10,521 57,684
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30 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ir)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group'’s profit after tax and retained
profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.

exchange rate

EXLH,/

HKD BT

S B 35 R R Y 5E

n'.F

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EEAIN -

AN RESIR)

30 €@ I A

SHARE

EEBEREE#E)

(d) E#mpE &)

(i)

BB EAT

TR AR EREE B
BEARR AR EENZA
BHRE  WBRAA A
RERMETE  ARE B
BRI R AR BRI R
Z EDES BB -

2024 2023
“B-@E —T-o=F
Increase/ Effect on Increase/

(decrease) profit after tax (decrease)  Effect on profit
in foreign  and retained in foreign ~ after tax and
(it exchangerate  retained profit
HERBRER HRBRR R
RiRE ExLF/ RRE
(T88) it 1ok 2 (FF2) WAl Z 2
‘000 000
F T
10% (755) 10% 894
10% 5,252 10% 4,903

UsD XL

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation purposes.

Annual Report 2024 3

EREINZDMEREHAR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHAN

HEAAREIIR)

30 Financial instruments (Continued)

202

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ir)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period,
including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation
of the consolidated financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2023.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

(i)
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ReEAREBAARINERR 2
AEBEMFERITA BN
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CRUEE B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=HEEAIN

30 Financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values measurement

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations:

Level 2 valuations:

Level 3 valuations:

Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available

Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

n‘l'.R

30 €T A%

AFENE

€)]

BEAARKETITR)

BAFPEIEBEZZHBEERE

&

AFEFHE

TREJNBERRIZEEHEE

AEMNAKREESRTANR
5 15 BIFR B 7

FE

EERIE135%

ﬁ?ﬁ# EEN=BRFERR -
BHRNERKS2EME
Bl o 458 P B0 8 A B RO AT B ER 1 S
EUETNT

AT B

e  F—AMHE:

o  FE=MRMHE:
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AR B 35 8 R MY 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RS EHEAS - ERUAREDTR)

30 £MI A%

30 Financial instruments (Continued)

AT

=112

Fair values measurement (Continued) 2B

(@) BAFETBEZLHEERE

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

204

value (Continued)

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager
performing valuations for the financial instruments which
are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The team reports directly to the chief financial officer
and the audit committee. A valuation report with analysis
of changes in fair value measurement is prepared by the
team at each interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

- 4C-)

AEERA - XHPRKEEREL
B BEROBARAFEERS
“RZEBMT AETHE - ZEK
ERAPBEERBERZEERS
HEQATEAEEDOMZHER
STHEBRR T RARE RFERE
BHRE Y HM SRR &I

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2024 categorised into

Fair value at RZB-METZA=t-AZ
31 December ALEFELEA
2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=B-MmE+=R
=t-AZAYHE -8 2R E=R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Recurring fair value ~ ZEEATENE
measurements
Assets: BE -
Equity securities designated 35 A AT B ALf
at FvT0C SARFENRAES
— Unlisted equity securities  —3F £ R AVE % 23,462 - - 23,462
Derivative finandial fTESRIA
instruments:
— Other derivative —Effi4 6,957 - - 6,957
30,419 - - 30,419
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FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

30 Financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values measurement (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

30 €T A%

DNPETEE)

(@) BAFETEZLHEERE
= (&)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023 categorised into

Fair value at RZEZ=F+ZA=+-Bz
31 December AYBEHENES
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RIZEZ=%+-4
=t-AzA¥E F—1 F-& F=R
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Recurring fair value REEATESE
measurements
Assets: EE:
Equity securities REARATEIALL
designated at FVTOC| 2ENERNRAES
- Unlisted equity — 3 ERANGES
securities 36,508 - - 36,508
Derivative finandial fTHESRMIA:
instruments:
- Other derivative —H i 4315 - - 4,315
40823 - - 40,823
During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, REBE_T_NFR_T_=F

there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

T-A=+—HLEFE F—HHA
FoMEALEBE - IEEEA
E=RXEF=RERL - KEE
ZBRBNEZRLEZ HEMRER

ERFEERZHE B -

Annual Report 2024 F %5
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AR e BT IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE=EHERIN  BEAARBIIR)

30 Financial instruments (continued)
Fair values measurement (Continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation
techniques

fEERM

Equity securities designated at FVTOCI
EERRAFEFAHMGEZERENREES
— Unlisted equity securities () Market comparable

companies price/earning

ratios
—3E EMBRAES() e
HRAFATEE

Derivative financial instruments:
fTESRT A :

— Other derivative

—EtiTAE

(i) The fair value of unlisted equity securities are determined using
the price/earning ratios of comparable listed companies adjusted
for lack of marketability discount. The fair value measurement is
negatively correlated to the discount for lack of marketability. As
at 31 December 2024, a decrease/increase in discount for lack
of marketability used in isolation would result in a increased/
decreased in the fair value measurement of the unlisted equity
securities, and vice versa.

206
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Black-Scholes mode

Black-Scholest& £!

30 €T A%

DNV ETEE)

(@) BAFETBEZLHEERE
= (&)

BB E=RLFEGTEHER

Significant
unobservable Weighted
input average
EXRTERAA ¥
Discount for lack of 15.60%

marketability (2023: 15.70%)

H=mi5 15.60%
REMETE (ZE=F:1570%)

Expected volatility 43.56%
(2023:39.77%)
TREK R 43.56%

(ZZ==%:3977%)

0) FELTBABENAFERAAAL
REMARNMBRET  LHRE
MZ BT RETHE - AT EE
ERRZMSRBENERAERE -
RZZE-_MFE+=—A=+—H BB
RS TIERBE R 18
MBI ETRAFESNR T ET
BENBD  RZINA ©
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FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br R EIERIN - BBUAAREEDR)
30 Financial instruments (Continued) 30 €@ TR &)
Fair values measurement (Continued) AT EFTEE)

BAFPEIEBEZZHBEERE

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (a)

value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(Continued)

The movements during the period in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

&)

BHE=RLFEEENEF (B)

%WE&%%’:,

NP EFEBERE

2023
—E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR FT
Unlisted equity securities: JELETRRAE S
At 1 January w—HA—H 36,508 32,847
Disposal during the year $WE&E (11,186) -
Fair value gains or losses in other A /\/rlﬂiﬁﬂﬁl 57
comprehensive income N EW S EE (1,860) 3,661
At 31 December R+ZH=+—H 23,462 36,508
2024 2023
—EC_NE —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR FT AR Fr
Other derivative: HpTaE
At 1 January ®n—A—H 4,315 8,556
Fair value gains or losses in N8z 2 A FE W e
profit or loss 2,642 (4,241)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 6,957 4,315
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AR e BT IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEBIN

30

31

208

HEAAREIIR)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Fair values measurement (Continued)

(b) Fair value of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following commitments:

Contracted for
— Purchase of property, plant and
equipment for the production base in
Mainland China
— Purchase of property, plant and
equipment for the production base
outside Mainland China

R

In addition, the Group was committed at 31 December
2023 for a 3 year lease that is not yet commenced, the lease
payments under which amounted to AUD1,127,972 (equivalent
to RMB5,468,859) per annum. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group entered into a supplement
agreement to change the lease period from 3 years to 10
years that is not yet commenced, and the lease payments was
changed to AUD1,593,589 (equivalent to RMB7,593,452) per
annum. The lease agreement will be commenced upon the
completion and acceptance of the plants and office.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED J 3 $5 3£ 1= R IR AR

30

31

—BRER A ERN
BEWE  BELRE

ERMIA®
NFEHE )

(b) EHERFEARZAMEH
KERBEZAFE

EEERS REAMBHRRPRE
BHAAGENEREERESRA
ERREERE A FERS -

YR
REREEIR - ANEB B LA TAE
2023
—EC=F

RMB'000
ARETT

244,128 495,508

—RPEAMIRIN EEEN
BEYE  BFELRE

21,429 10,550

265,557 506,058

AN AEBR = =FF+ A =+—
BEAE—EHNRFARH3FHEE  EHE
N AT E127,97287T FHER AR
5,468,8597C) c B E T _MME+ A
=t+—RHIEEE  NEBFET—DHET
& AR E SR AR3FRA105
I A% H B R MA E 5 1,593,5898 7T (18
TR ARM7,5934527T) - HEHZE BN
TR AZETT RERRERBERR
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FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEBI - BEUAREDR)

32 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 32 MEEHELENEEZHER
financing activities
Loans and Interest Lease Dividend
borrowings Payable liabilities Payable Total
ERREE FERT7I 8 MEARE ﬁﬁxg B
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB ‘000 RVB000
AEETFT AEETT AREFT AREFT AEETFT
At 1 January 2023 ﬁA_g__E A
2,499,006 14,617 8,051 - 2,521,674
Changes from financing cash mﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁs %
flows: .
Proceeds of new bank loans %ﬁf BN
2,771,236 - - - 2,771,236
Repayments of bank loans (] Eﬁ TEX (2,122,750) - - - (2,122,750)
Capital element of lease rentals Ef{EERE 2 A
paid i) /\ - - (2,293) - (2,293)
Interest element of lease rentals Wﬁ‘*ﬂéZﬂ
paid BR5 - - 321) - (321)
Finance costs paid BRSBKA = (146,135) - - (146,135)
Dividend paid BfTRE - = = (141,047) (141,047)
Total changes from finandng ~ BERESREL
cash flows £9eE 648,486 (146,135) (2,614) (141,047) 358,690
Increase in lease liabilities from ~ AFF IV HHEE
entering into new leases EEZ?EEET
during the year b= - - 297 - 297
Capitalised borrowing costs ﬁN LB A - 5,775 - - 5,775
Interest expenses HEHS = 137,735 321 = 138,056
Dividend recognised Eﬁ%%@ﬂ&% - - - 141,047 141,047
At 31 December 2023 RZFZ=%
+=A=1+—H 3,147,492 11,992 6,055 - 3,165,539
Changes from financing cash BEREHE 2%
flows:
Proceeds of new bank loans  ST4R{T L7 FifE
HIE 1,993,593 - - - 1,993,593
Repayments of bank loans EBRRITER (2,263,734) - - - (2,263,734)
Capital element of lease rentals EAHEME 2
paid 255 = - (3,729) - (3,729)
Interest element of lease rentals 2 &4 2 7l
paid BE5 - - (161) - (161)
Finance costs paid BBRHA - (128,217) - - (128,217)
Dividend paid BfRE = = = (245,629) (245,629)
Total changes from finandng ~ BER S TREZE
cash flows HHE (270,141) (128,217) (3,890) (245,629) (647,877)
Increase in lease liabilities from  AEEIUHAE
entering into new leases EEZHERR
during the year Zm - - - - -
Capitalised borrowing costs ERERAA = 11,828 - - 11,828
Interest expenses FIEHY - 104,397 161 - 104,558
Dividend recognised BREARE - - - 245,629 245,629
At 31 December 2024 R-B_ME+=
A=t-H 2,877,351 - 2,326 - 2,879,677

Annual Report 2024 F 3k 209



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e BT IS SRR b BE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE=EHERIN  BEAARBIIR)

33

210

Material related party transactions 33 EXBEIRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed bRz S sk HAbEb 0 Pk BB M 2 5 [k
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered RN - AEEETATEREEIRS

into the following material related party transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the directors are of REBE-ZT-_MF+-A=+—HILF

the view that related parties of the Group include the following [ ARRIEERAEUT AR ANEER

companies: FET

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group

BESER BAEEEF

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd. Owned as to 21% by Mr. Liao Yuging.
("Xingfa Curtain Wall”) Mr. Liao Yuging is an executive director
(BERFEEEHEFIE AR DE)0) of the Company

BREZEBRZFEARAR (THEERRE] (D) HEEELEER21%ER - BEET

ERARRMITES
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries Substantial shareholder of the Company

("China Lesso Group”) (AP BB 28 & E4ERR B BR A 5] R EKTB A R)) (1)
PEREBEBIERER AT NEME AR ([FREBBEER]) (D RAFEBRR

Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries Substantial shareholder of the Company
(“Guangxin Holding”) (ERA BHIZREBBER A A0

EREEFIEREEAR AR REMB AR (TEFZER]D O RRBIEERR
Xingfa Environmental (& 3R B2 IRIZRIHBR A R]) () A former associate of the Company,

disposed during the year ended
31 December 2024
I IRIA() ARANBEAT  ERBE-E=M

Ft-A=t—HLFEHE

(i) The English translation of the Company names is for reference only. The i) AEBZHBERAZELNRINENEZLEMR
official names of these companies are in Chinese. 2% - ZERAMENGEREHRSE -
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33 Material related party transactions (Continued)

(a) Transactions

Sales and purchase

Sales of goods to HEHEMT
— China Lesso Group — R B R B &
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — RS
— Guangxin Holding — BRI

Purchase of goods from

— China Lesso Group — B R E
Purchase of services I RS

— China Lesso Group — R B R E

— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BRI
Properties leased out and others Y3 A R A

— China Lesso Group — R BB 2B AR

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
disposed 40% interest in Xingfa Environmental to
Yongbao Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (a
subsidiary of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited), at a
cash consideration of RMB15 million details are disclosed
in Note 6.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
disposed 2.8% interest in Guangdong Guangxin
Innovative Research Centre Co., Ltd. to Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings at a cash consideration of
RMB11,186,000, details are disclosed in Note 17.

CRUEE B

n"'.R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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RRTETREER

(B2 BEHEREI - SBBUARET|TR)
BEREEIRS &)

@ X35
=414

2023

—E_=F

RMB 000

AR FT

50,644 176,479

52,132 63,748

11,606 8,726

114,382 248,953

- 26,183

- 26,183

3,352 3,092

1,211 2,457

4,563 5,549

13,640 11,423

BE-—T-mE+-A=+—81

FE- $%lﬁﬂ<?%¥&1%ﬂ$§iﬂxf
ARAR (REBBEBZERERA
A2 MB AR &S EIEIRITAA0%
ez - e REARARE15,000,000
JC  FFIB I ERHIFEG

HE_Z2_WNF+-_A=+—H81
FE mﬁlmrﬁérﬁ¢%ﬁ
EREREENEFAERERA

EWS%%évﬁﬁﬁE%AE%
11,186,0007T * FFIBR BRI FE17 ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B EHEASN - BRBEUAREIIR)

33 Material related party transactions (Continved) 33 BERXBERIRZ (&)

(b) Balances with related parties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following balances with related parties:

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade related HBRXEEH
— China Lesso Group — R BB 2B SR
- Xingfa Curtain Wall — BB
— Guangxin Holding — BT
Non-trade related HIERZER
— Xingfa Environmental* — BB IRIE
* The balances included loans to the associate. The Group

had a 1-year loan of RMB16,000,000 at 31 December
2023 provided to Xingfa Environmental with interest rate
at 4.35% per annum. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the loan has been fully received.

No loss allowances have been made in respect of
these loans.

212 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

(b) EERAET WAER

RBEHR  AEERBEH NG
BT

() XERAMEUME

2023
—F-=F
RMB’000
ARBFor

9,931 31,184
7,269 23,505
301 42

17,501 54,731

- 20,343

o HHBERBEARRENE
Ko AEBMPR-_T-_=F+=
A=+—BREFRERMIF
HIE A R #16,000,0007T © &
FH KL% B - HEZT
—E+—A=t+—HIFE
ZE KT 2 HUER -

WERZFEF LR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financiql Statements

Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) Balances with related parties (Continued)

(ii) Trade and other payables

FE B IR SRR b 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RS EREEII - BEBUARETR)

BERBEIRS &)
(b) EERBESHILEEL (2)

33

(i) X5 REMENFE

2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR FT
Trade related HRX5EEH
- Xingfa Curtain Wall — E B RS 602 764
— China Lesso Group — R BB R E 55 553
657 1,317

The trade-related amounts due to related parties
are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

(c) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including the amounts paid to the Group's
directors as disclosed in Note 11 and the senior
management as disclosed in Note 12.

Pledge of or restrictions on assets
The Group's borrowings and bills payable had been secured by

the pledge of the Group’s assets and the carrying amounts of
the respective assets are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights = 3 {E A
Pledge bank deposits EHRRITIFEAK
Bills receivable e

EABERRSENRERE
- 28 B EETERY -
(0 EEEBASHS
AEEEBEEAR M (RIEH
HEVIRH 12D R HE 2 I T
AEEEEREREEARNDH)
34 EEEKANRE

AEENEERENZREEHAEENE
EFER  SREEMNKREREDT -

2024 2023
—E_ME —Eo=F
RMB‘000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ABRETFIT
375,411 365,562
390,674 379,778
196,062 124,250
273,251 887,325
1,235,398 1,756,915
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(BE=EHERIN  BEAARBIIR)

35 Comparation Information

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in these
consolidated financial statements to conform with the current
year's presentation, which have no material effect on previously

reported financial performance and financial position.

36 Company-level statement of financial

position

Non-current asset
Investment in a subsidiary

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to a subsidiary

Other payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

214 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED $E3¢ $7 £ 1= IRE R AF]

FRBEE
R—HEHBRRZERE

hBEE

JE U P 1B 2 R R IR
BehBR2EHED

RBEE
FEAT P B 2 R R IR
H & R

RBEEFE

REERABAER

BEEFE
BRAR &
L@
s

EmAE

35 LE®RER
TR TN LS ANERETS

Mo UREAFEENIR - EH LA
WENPBERARAGIRAL BEATE -

36 ATRIEMEBEMRRT

2023
—E=F
Notes RMB'000
Viokz3 ARBFT
16 642,794 629,036
58,996 21,969
2,098 9,515
61,094 31,484
1,333 -
6,040 6,422
7,373 6,422
53,721 25,062
696,515 654,098
696,515 654,098
28
3,753 3,753
692,762 650,345
696,515 654,098




Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable 7~ 2 )5 25 % 52 FE
IhRES A

to equity shareholders
of the Company

EERER
FRBEE
MENEE
MEAE
FRBEE

BEEFE
RAEREE

B
(&

Non-controlling interests 3F % % # 25

Total equity

Five Years Summary

hEHE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREETIR)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+t—HLLEFE

2023 2022 2021 2020

—EBE=F T —E-—F —ZET-FTHF

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

ANREFIT AREFT AREFT AREFT

4,528,390 4,239,211 3,640,771 3,126,054 2,743,711
10,014,050 8,627,015 8,455,200 8,216,134 5,692,350

(6,246,072) (4,794,935) (5,423,050) (5,543,085) (4,387,097)

(2,388,908) (2,745,460) (2,017,457) (1,319,703) (351,031)
5,907,460 5,325,831 4,655,464 4,479,400 3,697,933
3,753 3,753 3,753 3,744 3,732
5,894,122 5,314,555 4,648,118 4,475,598 3,693,460
5,897,875 5,318,308 4,651,871 4,479,342 3,697,192
9,585 7,523 3,593 58 741
5,907,460 5,325,831 4,655,464 4,479,400 3,697,933
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Five Years Summary

hEFH=E

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARFIR)

Results
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

&
E

B 35 A1 ik 7
P

FERF

BT AL :

Equity shareholders of the 7N/ A]#Ez5 I% R

Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic (RMB yuan)

Diluted (RMB yuan)

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

216

FEER R

BREF
ERAREET)

BE(ARET)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+t—HLEFE

2023 2022 2021 2020
o= —ZT—_— —E-—F —ZT-FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFIT AREFIT AREFT AREFT
18,854,641 17,352,551 16,933,064 15,432,900 11,886,862
965,354 916,323 511,884 1,055,201 873,412
(137,259) (108,222) (50,575) (168,084) (111,953)
828,095 808,101 461,309 887,117 761,459
826,033 804,171 457,774 887,800 765,385
2,062 3,930 3,535 (683) (3,926)
828,095 808,101 461,309 887,117 761,459
1.96 1.91 1.09 2.12 1.83
1.96 1.91 1.09 2.11 1.83

R TG A B R 2 —

T/'\ ®
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Unit No. 5, 6th Floor, Wing On Plaza, No. 62 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
T JLREEHIE 62 9k KRy 6 1 605 %
Tel ®5E © 852-2175 5388 Fox f#& : 852-2175 5383

No. 5, Zone D, Central Science and Technology Industrial Park, Foshan District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province, China (Postcode: 528137)
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